Collective Agreement

between

Winnipeg Regional Health Authority

Churchill Health Centre

Local 134

and

Manitoba Government and General Employees' Union

April 1, 2012 to March 31, 2017

Table of Contents

Article 1	Purpose of Agreement	1
Article 2	Duration of Agreement	1
Article 3	Application of Agreement	2
Article 4	Definitions	2
Article 5	Discrimination and Sexual Harassment	6
Article 6	Union Business	7
Article 7	Bulletin Boards	8
Article 8	Union Security	8
Article 9	Contracting Out	9
Article 10	Job Descriptions	9
Article 11	Rights of Stewards	9
Article 12	Management's Rights	10
Article 13	Seniority	11
Article 14	Employment Practices	13
Article 15	Promotions	15
Article 16	Acting Pay	17
Article 17	Responsibility Pay	17
Article 18	Hours of Work	17
Article 19	Overtime	19
Article 20	Pay Practices	21
Article 21	Education	22
Article 22	Labour Management Committee	23
Article 23	Standby	24
Article 24	Uniforms, Protective Clothing and Protective Footwear	24
Article 25	Resignation	25
Article 26	Layoff	26
Article 27	Employee Performance Review and Employee Files	27

Article 28	Discipline, Suspension and Dismissals	28
Article 29	Grievance and Arbitration Procedure	28
Article 30	Shift Premium and Weekend Premium	34
Article 31	Retirement Plan/Group Life Insurance/Dental Plan	35
Article 32	Remoteness Allowances	37
Article 33	General Holidays	37
Article 34	Vacations	39
Article 35	Income Protection	43
Article 36	Bereavement Leave	46
Article 37	Leave for Other Reasons	46
Article 38	Workers Compensation	53
Article 39	Jury or Witness Duty	56
Article 40	Employee Expenses	56
Article 41	Patient Escort Duty	58
Article 42	Pay Plan	58
Article 43	Employee Assistance Program	59
Article 44	Damage to Personal Property	59
Article 45	Video Display Terminals	60
Article 46	Technological Change	60
Article 47	Healthcare Employees Benefits Plan- Disability and Rehabilitation Plan (DNR)	62
Article 48	Workplace Safety & Health	63
Article 49	Part Time Additional Hours	65
Schedule "]	B"	67
List of Out	of Scope Employees	68
Letter of U	nderstanding	70
Re:	Additional Hours Utilization Review for Casual Employees	
Memorand	um of Understanding No. 1	72

Re: Past Practices

Memoran	dum of Understanding No. 2	73
Re:	Inclement Weather	
Memorar	dum of Understanding No. 3	75
Re:	Wage Adjustment – Professional/Technical Component Classifications	
Memorar	dum of Understanding No. 4	77
Re:	Northern Isolation/Remoteness Retention Allowance –	
	Professional/Technical Positions Only	
Memoran	dum of Understanding No. 5	79
Re:	Northern Isolation/Remoteness Allowance (excluding those paid	
	under MOU #4 above)	
Memoran	dum of Understanding No. 6	81
Re:	Churchill Regional Health Authority - Article 14:04 Housing	
	Policy	
Memoran	dum of Understanding No. 7	82
Re:	Pension or Benefit Plan Improvements	
Memorar	dum of Understanding No. 8	83
Re:	Maintenance and On Call Schedule	
Schedule	"A" - Salary Schedule	85
	*All changes appear in bold .	

Alphabetical Table of Contents

Article 16	Acting Pay	17
Article 3	Application of Agreement	2
Article 36	Bereavement Leave	46
Article 7	Bulletin Boards	8
Article 9	Contracting Out	9
Article 44	Damage to Personal Property	60
Article 4	Definitions	3
Article 28	Discipline, Suspension and Dismissals	28
Article 5	Discrimination and Sexual Harassment	6
Article 2	Duration of Agreement	1
Article 21	Education	23
Article 43	Employee Assistance Program	59
Article 40	Employee Expenses	56
Article 27	Employee Performance Review and Employee Files	27
Article 14	Employment Practices	13
Article 33	General Holidays	38
Article 29	Grievance and Arbitration Procedure	28
Article 47	Healthcare Employees Benefits Plan- Disability and Rehabilitation Plan (DNR)	62
Article 18	Hours of Work	17
Article 35	Income Protection	43
Article 10	Job Descriptions	9
Article 39	Jury or Witness Duty	56
Article 22	Labour Management Committee	23
Article 26	Layoff	26
Article 37	Leave for Other Reasons	47
Article 12	Management's Rights	11
Article 19	Overtime	20

Article 49	Part Time Additional Hours	65
Article 41	Patient Escort Duty	58
Article 42	Pay Plan	59
Article 20	Pay Practices	22
Article 15	Promotions	15
Article 1	Purpose of Agreement	1
Article 32	Remoteness Allowances	37
Article 25	Resignation	26
Article 17	Responsibility Pay	17
Article 31	Retirement Plan/Group Life Insurance/Dental Plan	35
Article 11	Rights of Stewards	10
Article 13	Seniority	11
Article 30	Shift Premium and Weekend Premium	35
Article 23	Standby	24
Article 46	Technological Change	61
Article 24	Uniforms, Protective Clothing and Protective Footwear	24
Article 6	Union Business	7
Article 8	Union Security	8
Article 34	Vacations	39
Article 45	Video Display Terminals	60
Article 38	Workers Compensation	53
Article 48	Workplace Safety & Health	
	В"	
	of Scope Employees	
	nderstanding	
Re:	Additional Hours Utilization Review for Casual Employees	
Memorand	lum of Understanding No. 1	72
Re:	Past Practices	
Memorand	lum of Understanding No. 2	73

Re: Inclement Weather

Men	norand	lum of Understanding No. 3	75
	Re:	Wage Adjustment – Professional/Technical Component	
		Classifications	
Men	norand	lum of Understanding No. 4	77
	Re:	Northern Isolation/Remoteness Retention Allowance – Professional/Technical Positions Only	
Men	norand	lum of Understanding No. 5	79
	Re:	Northern Isolation/Remoteness Allowance (excluding those paid under MOU #4 above)	
Men	norand	lum of Understanding No. 6	81
	Re:	Churchill Regional Health Authority Article 14:04 Housing Policy	
Men	norand	lum of Understanding No. 7	82
	Re:	Pension or Benefit Plan Improvements	
Men	norand	lum of Understanding No. 8	83
	Re:	Maintenance and On Call Schedule	
Sche	edule "	A" Salary Schedule	85

*All changes appear in **bold**.*

This Agreement made this 10th day of March 2015

between

Churchill Health Centre

(hereinafter referred to as the "Employer")

of the first part

and

Manitoba Government and General Employees' Union

(hereinafter referred to as the "Union")

of the second part.

Article 1 Purpose of Agreement

1:01 The purpose of this Agreement is to maintain harmonious relations and settled conditions of employment between the Employer and the Union, to promote cooperation and understanding between the Employer and staff, to recognize the value of joint discussion, negotiations, in all matters pertaining to the conditions of employment, rates of pay and hours of work, to promote the well-being of all employees of the bargaining unit and to promote efficient operation of the Authority, it is recognized that at all times and under all circumstances first consideration will be given to the welfare of the consumer of the services of the Authority.

Article 2 Duration of Agreement

- 2:01 (a) This Agreement shall be in full force and effect from **April 1, 2012**, until **March 31, 2017**.
 - (b) The provisions of the Agreement shall continue in effect following the expiry date until replaced by a new agreement or until the declaration of a strike or lockout, whichever occurs first.

- (c) The Union agrees to give the Employer at least two (2) weeks (fourteen [14] days) written notice as to the intended time and date of strike action.
- (d) The Employer agrees to give the Union at least two (2) weeks (fourteen [14] days) written notice as to the intended time and date of lockout.
- 2:02 Should either party desire to propose changes to this Agreement, they shall give notice in writing, to the other party not more than ninety (90) calendar days and not less than thirty (30) calendar days prior to the date of termination. Within thirty (30) calendar days of the receipt of proposals, the other party shall be required to enter into negotiations for the purpose of discussing the changes and the formation of a new Agreement.
- 2:03 This Agreement may be amended during its term by mutual agreement.
- 2:04 It is agreed that neither the Union nor the Employer shall sanction or consent to any strike or lockout during the term of this Agreement and further no employee in the unit shall strike during the term of this Agreement.

Article 3 Application of Agreement

3:01 The Employer recognizes the Union as the sole and exclusive bargaining agent for employees in classifications included in the bargaining unit as certified by the Manitoba Labour Board under specific certificates, or as may be granted voluntary recognition by the Employer and identified in Schedule "A".

Article 4 Definitions

- 4:01 "Classification" means the grouping of positions into classes where positions constituting the class require similar general abilities and skills and have similar responsibilities to allow the use of a common occupational title.
- **4:02** Promotion" means the change from one (1) classification to another having a higher maximum salary.

- 4:03 (a) An employee is a person employed by the Employer and covered by this Agreement.
 - (b) A "full-time" employee is one who regularly works the hours specified in Article 17.
 - (c) A "part-time" employee is one who regularly works less than full-time hours, as specified per Article 18:01, on a regular and reoccurring basis.
- 4:04 "Gender" Whenever the singular and the masculine are used in this Agreement, the same shall be construed as meaning plural or the feminine or the neuter where the context so admits or requires and the converse shall hold as applicable.
- 4:05 The word "transfer" shall mean a change by an employee from one (1) position in a grade to another position within the same grade in Schedule "A".
- 4:06 The words "casual employee" shall mean a person employed to replace sick, vacationing, or absent employees and for temporary increases in workloads.
 - (a) Casual employees shall receive vacation pay bi-weekly at the rate of four percent (4%) of the regular hours worked in a bi-weekly pay period.
 - (b) Casual employees are paid in accordance with the salaries specified in Schedule "A".
 - (c) Casual employees are entitled to the shift premium(s) outlined in Article 29.
 - (d) Casual employees required to work on a recognized holiday shall be paid at the rate of time and one-half (1 ½ x) their basic rate of pay.
 - (e) Casual employees shall be entitled to compensation for overtime worked in accordance with Article 19.

- (f) The Employer agrees to deduct Union dues in an amount specified by the Union in any pay period for which the casual employee receives any payment in accordance with Article 8.
- (g) In the event that no payment is made during the pay period, the Employer shall have no responsibility to deduct and submit dues for that period.
- (h) Article 29 herein applies only with respect to the terms of this Article.
- 4:07 (a) A "term position" shall be for a specified period of time or until completion of a particular project within the specific department:
 - (i) The Employer will determine whether positions of less than two (2) months will be posted.
 - (ii) Term positions of duration of two (2) months or more shall be posted.
 - (iii) Term positions shall be for a maximum duration of one (1) year unless this period is extended with the agreement of the Union.
 - (b) When the Employer determines that a term position, as described above exists, the position shall be posted in accordance with Article 15.
 - (i) All employees may apply for the term position.
 - (ii) Additional postings shall not be required for the position of the employee who may be awarded the term position.
 - (iii) Any additional hours occurring as a result of the filling of a term position shall be offered to part-time employees in accordance with Article 4:09.
 - (iv) An employee in a term position may be required to complete the term before being considered for other term positions within the bargaining unit.

- (c) Where the Employer deems a term position to be of an indefinite length due to illness or injury, or for such other reasons as indicated by the Employer and discussed with the Union, the term position shall be posted as "indefinite term".
 - (i) Employees returning from this leave will provide the Employer with as much notice as possible of the date of return.
 - (ii) The employee occupying said term position shall receive notice equivalent to the amount of notice the employee returning from leave provides the Employer, or a minimum of two (2) weeks' notice in case of a position that does not have a previous incumbent.
- (d) Upon completion of the term position, the employee shall be returned to their former position.
- (e) In case an employee on maternity/parental leave wishes to exercise his/her rights to return from such leave earlier than anticipated, having given appropriate notices, the Employer shall state on the job posting that said term position is a "Maternity Leave of Absence term" which may expire sooner than the date indicated, subject to written notice of a minimum of two (2) weeks, or one (1) pay period, whichever is longer.

Any positions directly resulting from the filling of a "Maternity Leave of Absence" will be posted in the same manner.

- 4:08 "Representative" means an elected Steward or Officer or a Staff
 Representative of the Manitoba Government and General Employees' Union.
- **4:09** Wherever the singular or feminine gender is used in this Agreement the same shall be construed as meaning the plural or masculine gender where the context so admits or requires.
- 4:10 The word "qualifications(s)" when used in this Agreement shall mean the required knowledge, education, related experience or certificate as

determined by the Employer to adequately perform the job demands and requirements.

4:11 "Length of Employment" shall mean the period of time since an employee last became a full-time or part time employee in a permanent or term position for purposes of calculating all entitlements pursuant to this agreement including, but not limited to, vacation, bonus vacation and pre-retirement leave and "Length of Service" shall have a similar meaning. Conversion from full-time or part time status to casual status shall be considered a break in service and no period of casual employment or prior full-time or part-time employment in a permanent or term position shall be included in an employee's length of employment or length of service even when a casual employee subsequently becomes a full-time or part-time employee.

Article 5 Discrimination and Sexual Harassment

- 5:01 The Employer and the Union jointly affirm that every employee is entitled to a respectful workplace which is free from discrimination and harassment.
- 5:02 The Parties agree that there shall be no discrimination based on:
 - Ancestry, including colour and perceived race
 - Ethnic background or origin
 - Age
 - Nationality or national origin
 - Political belief, association or activity
 - Religion or creed
 - Sex, including pregnancy
 - Marital status or family status
 - Sexual orientation
 - Physical or mental disability
 - Place of residence
 - Membership or non-membership or activity in the Union

Except as may be allowed under the Manitoba Human Rights Code.

- 5:03 The Employer and the Union agree that no form of harassment shall be condoned in the workplace and it is further agreed that both parties will work together in recognizing and dealing with such problems, should they arise. Situations involving harassment shall be treated in a confidential manner by the Employer, the Union and the employees involved.
- 5:04 The definition of harassment shall consist of the definition contained in the Human Rights code and shall further include the definition of harassment set out in the Centre's Harassment Policy.

Article 6 Union Business

- 6:01 Upon providing fourteen (14) days' notice in a written request to the Employer, and where operational requirements permit, time off, including necessary traveling time, shall be granted on a wage recovery basis to:
 - (a) Officers of locals for purpose of attending at local meetings.
 - (b) Members who are elected as delegates to the Convention(s) of the Manitoba Federation of Labour, and such other conventions to which the Union is affiliated.
 - (c) Officers and Stewards for the purpose of attendance at training sessions.
 - (d) Members who are elected as delegates to the Annual Convention of the Union for attendance at such Convention.
- 6:02 Upon written request to the Employer, and where operational requirements permit, time off without loss of pay for a maximum of two (2) employees as designated by the Union shall be granted by the Employer for the purposes of meeting with the Employer to conduct Local Collective Agreement negotiations.

Any additional time off granted to such employees shall be on a wage recovery basis.

6:03 The Union agrees to reimburse the Employer the wages paid to employees while on wage recovery upon receipt of a statement from the Employer as to the correct amount and for whom wage recovery is claimed by the Employer.

Article 7 Bulletin Boards

7:01 The Employer agrees to supply the Union with a separate bulletin board, which shall be designated for the purpose of posting materials pertaining to the business and information of its' members. All materials to be posted shall be presented for approval and signature to the Executive Director prior to posting.

Article 8 Union Security

- 8:01 The Employer agrees to deduct an amount equal to the dues as set by the Union from each employee covered by this Agreement and to forward such dues monthly together with a list of the names of the employees and the amount of dues so deducted opposite of each employee's name to the Union's Central Office.
- 8:02 The Union agrees to notify the Employer in writing of any change in dues at least one (1) month in advance of the pay period in which the deduction is to be made.
- 8:03 The Union agrees to indemnify and save the Employer harmless against any claim or liability arising out of the application of 8:01 and 8:02, except for any claim or liability arising out of an error committed by the Employer.
- 8:04 Notwithstanding, any other provisions in this Agreement, the Employer shall not later, than ninety (90) days preceding the expiry date of this Agreement, furnish in written form to the Union the following:
 - (a) The name of each employee within the bargaining unit.
 - (b) The classification of each employee within the bargaining unit.
 - (c) The current monthly wage of each employee within the bargaining unit.

Article 9 Contracting Out

9:01 The Employer will give all reasonable consideration to provide continued employment to employees who would otherwise become redundant because work is to be contracted out, and further the Employer shall give the Union notice in writing ninety (90) days in advance of any plan to contract out work being performed by the employees, except in an emergency beyond control of the Employer. Both the Employer and the Union shall explore all other reasonable alternatives to have the work completed by members of the bargaining unit before contracting out.

Article 10 Job Descriptions

- 10:01 In the event that the Employer established or proposes to establish a new classification, or if there is a substantial change in the job content or qualifications of an existing classification and providing that the new or revised classification falls within the bargaining unit, the Union shall receive a copy of the job description and accompanying salary range.
- 10:02 Unless the Union objects in writing within thirty (30) calendar days following such notification, the classification and salary range shall become established and form part of Appendix "A" of this agreement.
- 10:03 If the Union files written objection, as per Article 10:02, then the parties hereto shall commence negotiations forthwith and attempt to reach agreement as to an appropriate salary range.
- **10:04** Failing agreement, the matter may be referred to arbitration in accordance with Article 29.

Article 11 Rights of Stewards

11:01 The Employer recognizes that Local Union Officers and/or Shop Stewards have duties and responsibilities towards and on behalf of the Union.

The Union recognizes that Stewards and Officers are employees of the Employer and as such have jobs to perform on behalf of the Employer.

Local Union Officers and/or Shop Stewards shall be expected to conduct Union business before or after working hours, or during rest or meal breaks.

If impossible to do so, the Officer/Steward may be entitled to leave their work during working hours in order to carry out their functions under the collective agreement which involves the investigation and processing of grievances providing that each employee involved in the issue has obtained approval from the Manager or designate for the time required. Reasonable advance notice will be provided where the Officer/Steward has themselves received advance notice. Permission to leave work during working hours will be subject to operational requirements. Permission shall not be unreasonably sought or withheld.

In the event that the Officer/Steward is carrying out his functions under the collective agreement outside his department, the Officer/Steward must receive permission from the Manager or designate of the department he is entering. When permission to leave work as indicated above is granted, this time shall be considered as time worked.

11:02 The Union agrees to provide the Employer with a list of Representatives subsequent to the ratification of this Contract and shall submit any and all changes or amendments to this list as they occur during the life of this contract.

Article 12 Management's Rights

12:01 The Employer shall retain all rights to manage the Authority, providing that in the exercise of such rights the provisions of this Agreement are adhered to, and shall exercise these rights in a fair manner.

Article 13 Seniority

- 13:01 Seniority shall be defined as the total accumulated regular hours of work, exclusive of overtime, calculated from the date the employee last entered the service of the Employer in a position covered by this Agreement.
- 13:02 Temporary employees shall earn seniority in accordance with this Article however, they shall not be entitled to exercise this seniority unless, at the completion of their period of temporary employment, they become a permanent employee without interruption of service.
- **13:03** Seniority will terminate if an employee:
 - (a) Resigns;
 - (b) Is discharged for just cause and not reinstated under the grievance of arbitration procedure;
 - (c) Is laid off and fails to report for duty as instructed as per Article 10:06;
 - (d) Is laid off for more than twelve (12) months;
 - (e) Fails to report for work as scheduled at the end of an approved leave of absence, suspension, or vacation, without an explanation satisfactory to the Employer;
 - (f) Is promoted or transferred out of the bargaining unit and has completed the trial period in the new position.
 - (g) Is absent for two (2) consecutive work days and does not provide the Employer with an acceptable explanation.
- **13:04** Seniority will continue to accrue if an employee:
 - (a) Is on any period of paid leave of absence;
 - (b) Is on any period of paid income protection;
 - (c) Is on any period of paid vacation;

- (d) Is on any period of unpaid leave of absence up to four (4) consecutive weeks, except those referenced in 13:04(e);
- (e) Is on an unpaid leave of absence due to injury or illness which may be compensable by Workers Compensation, MPI or D&R for a period of up to two (2) years from the date of the first absence from work related to the injury or illness;
- (f) Is on parenting leave;
- (g) Is assigned to temporarily relieve or replace an employee in an out of scope positon;
- (h) She/he is on an educational leave of absence up to two (2) years.
- 13:05 Seniority will be retained but will not accrue if an employee:
 - (a) Is on any unpaid leave of absence in excess of four (4) consecutive weeks except those referenced in Article 15:05(b);
 - (b) Is on an unpaid leave of absence due to injury or illness which may be compensable by Workers Compensation, M.P.I. or D&R for a period of more than two (2) years from the date of the first absence from work related to the injury or illness;
 - (c) Is laid off for less than twelve (12) months;
 - (d) Is on the trial period of an out-of-scope position;
 - (e) Is in a term in an out of scope position;
 - (f) Is on an educational leave of absence in excess of two (2) years.
- 13:06 Where an employee is promoted to a position outside of the bargaining unit and is returned to the bargaining unit within ninety (90) working days from the date of promotion, the employee will re-enter the bargaining unit with the seniority accrued to the date of promotion.

13:07 The Employer agrees to maintain a seniority list showing the total accumulated hours of seniority of each employee. An up-to-date seniority list shall be posted on the bulletin board in January of each year, and the Union shall be mailed a copy at the same time.

Article 14 Employment Practices

14:01 All new employees shall be on probation for four (4) months from the date of their employment. However, this shall not preclude the employer from extending the probationary period of an employee to a maximum of two (2) additional months.

Probationary employees may be terminated during the probationary period provided the employer determines, in good faith and on a fair and reasonable basis, that the employee is not suitable for the position, whatever the reason. The standard of just cause does not apply during the probationary period in accordance with Section 79 of the LRA. A probationary employee shall not have access to the grievance and arbitration articles of this collective agreement.

- 14:02 Where an employee has been called in for a meeting(s) with regard to her performance or with regard to a disciplinary matter involving her, and at any time during the meeting(s) the employee feels that she requires a Representative to be present, she shall be allowed to have a Representative of her choice called in provided such Representative is on duty in the Authority at the time.
- 14:03 All employees for whom housing is arranged through the Employer shall be subject to a regular twice a month deduction of rent from their pay in accordance with the regular rent for the unit they occupy. There shall be no increase in rent made unless three (3) months' notice in writing is given to the employee prior to the increase date.

- 14:04 Prior to any changes to the Housing Policy being affected, the Employer agrees to enter into joint discussion with the Union as to the content of the changes.
- 14:05 No person shall change or amend an employee's time card without the employee being notified of the change.
- 14:06 In the event that Polar Bears constitute an immediate danger to employees traveling to and from the Authority, the Employer shall ensure that employees are reimbursed for, or provided with transportation.
- 14:07 Where employees cannot arrive as scheduled at the Authority due to inclement weather, they shall be rescheduled to work any hours missed or allowed to use banked time, overtime, or vacation for any hours missed to insure maintenance of their salaries.
 - Employees who must tend to serious personal responsibilities due to inclement weather shall be allowed to leave work early without loss of pay subject to the Authority's operational requirements.
- 14:08 All employees shall be required to read and sign for the Authority's Personnel and Procedures Handbook and shall receive a copy of the Handbook at the time of signing and any additions, deletions or revisions as they occur. Where the Handbook has not been up-dated and its' provisions may conflict with this Agreement, employees shall be aware that this Agreement supersedes the Handbook.
- 14:09 The Employer shall, within two (2) working days of an employee making written request, give to that employee a written statement of her credits for income protection, her vacation, and/or her banked overtime as of the date of the last pay period.
- 14:10 The president or designate of the Local Union shall be granted fifteen (15) minutes at the end of the orientation program in order to acquaint new employees falling under the scope of this Agreement with the fact that a

union agreement is in effect and to indicate the general conditions and obligations as they relate to the employees.

Article 15 Promotions

15:01 When the Employer determines a vacancy exists, or when a new job is created, a notice shall be posted for a period of seven (7) calendar days. Such postings shall state required qualifications, current unit/department (as applicable), current or anticipated shift, hours of work and wage rate. Employees will be required to make application in accordance with the employer's defined process.

A five (5) calendar day positing period will be required for;

- (a) Subsequent postings that originate as a result of vacancies occurring due to staff transferring in to initial vacancies;
- (b) An employee terminating employment and not giving full period of notice; or
- (c) Where a term position has been created due to a leave of absence where less than four (4) weeks' notice has been given.
- 15:02 When an employee fails to give proper termination notice, the position may be filled immediately on a temporary basis.
- 15:03 Notice of job vacancies or newly created positions shall contain the nature of the position, minimum qualifications and salary range. The Employer agrees that the position shall be given to employees within the bargaining unit where the applicant's qualifications meet the job requirements.
- 15:04 Seniority shall be the determining factor in matters of promotion, demotion, transfer, layoff, reduction of hours and recall, subject to the employee being able to meet the physical requirements of the job, having the necessary qualifications and a good employment record.

- 15:05 (a) All promotions and voluntary transfers are subject to a four (4) consecutive month trial period of actual time worked.
 - (b) Conditional upon satisfactory performance, she shall be declared permanent after the trial period.
 - (c) During the trial period, shall be returned to her former position without loss of seniority:
 - (i) By the Employer when she proves to be unsatisfactory in the new position, or
 - (ii) On request by the employee but at the Employer's sole discretion.
 - (d) If the employee returns in accordance with (a) or (b) above, she will be placed in her former position and former employment status. If an employee had replaced her, they too will bump back to his previous job/employment status. If that employee was FT or PT permanent they revert back to their previously owned position. If this move displaces another employee they too bump back and so on. If an employee was casual, they revert back to casual. If they were hired specifically for the term then their employment ends.

Notwithstanding Article 15:01, should an employee return to her former position in accordance with (i) or (ii) above within twenty-eight (28) days after commencing the position, the next most senior qualified applicant will be awarded the position.

- **15:06** Within seven (7) calendar days of the date of appointment to a vacant position, the name of the successful applicant shall be posted on the bulletin board.
- 15:07 Where an employee is promoted, she shall be paid at a step in the pay range of the classification to which she is promoted to, which is greater than the rate of pay she was receiving prior to her promotion.

15:08 The Union shall receive a copy of all job postings and the names of successful applicants.

Article 16 Acting Pay

16:01 In the event that an employee is assigned temporarily to a higher paid position within the scope of this Agreement and provided the employee carries out substantially all of the duties and responsibilities of the position, she shall be paid the higher of sixty-five cents (\$0.65) per hour, or the minimum step for the higher classification from the first day of assuming such position with the provision that at no time will the hourly rate exceed the hourly rate of the position to which she is assigned.

Article 17 Responsibility Pay

17:01 Employees assuming greater responsibility of duties for the continued operation of the department shall be eligible to receive responsibility pay of seventy cents (\$0.70) for each hour worked during the normal working hours of the department.

Article 18 Hours of Work

- 18:01 The daily hours of work for employees shall be seven and one-half hours (7 ½), eight (8) hours, or twelve (12) hours as indicated in Schedule "B" attached to, and forming part of this Agreement.
- **18:02** Daily hours of work shall be consecutive, inclusive of rest periods and exclusive of meal periods.
- 18:03 (a) Employees working from three (3) hours up to five (5) hours in length shall be entitled to one (1) 15-minute paid rest period scheduled by the Employer. Rest periods shall not begin until one (1) hour after commencement of work unless mutually agreed to between the employee and the Employer.

- (b) Employees working more than five (5) hours up to less than seven (7) hours shall be entitled to one (1) 15-minute paid rest period and one unpaid meal period of not less than 30 minutes at times scheduled by the Employer.
- (c) Employees working seven (7) hours up to eight (8 hours are entitled to two (2) 15-minute paid rest periods and one unpaid meal period of not less than 30 minutes at time scheduled by the Employer. Meal periods shall be taken not earlier than three (3) hours after commencing a shift and shall terminate no later than five (5) hours after the beginning of the shift unless mutually agreed between the Employer and the employee.
- (d) Employees working shifts of a greater length than eight (8) hours will receive meal and rest periods as per current practice.
- 18:04 Except for those functions listed in Article 18:06 below, the work week shall normally consist of five (5) consecutive days per week with weekends off. A weekend shall mean Saturday and Sunday.
- 18:05 The shift schedules as supplied to the Union for the below listed work areas which were in effect on June 30, 1982 are agreed by the parties hereto to be "Varied Hours of Work" for the purpose of this Agreement; any variations proposed by either party to the foregoing schedules shall be discussed between the parties prior to approval by the Employer.
 - (a) Dietary
 - (b) Housekeeping
 - (c) Receiving Home
 - (d) Health Care Aide (twelve [12] hour)
 - (e) Home Support Workers
- 18:06 Shift schedules will be posted two (2) weeks in advance of the commencement of the first scheduled shift. Shift schedules shall cover a

- period of not less than four (4) weeks in length and the Employer agrees to avoid changes in the schedules as much as possible.
- **18:07** Except in emergencies or circumstances beyond control of the Employer shift schedules will observe the following:
 - (a) All employees will receive four (4) days off for every ten (10) days of work scheduled.
 - (b) No employee shall be scheduled to work more than eight (8) consecutive days.
- 18:08 It is understood and agreed that the provisions of this Article may not be strictly applied to employees who work the twelve (12) hour shift. It is further understood and agreed that the intent of the twelve (12) hour shift is to provide a greater number of consecutive days off to the employee without additional cost being incurred by the Employer.
- 18:09 Requests for changes in shift schedules or requests for specific days off will be submitted in writing at least two (2) weeks prior to the position of the shift schedule and any request for an exchange of shifts between employees must contain the signatures of all affected employees. Where permission is granted by the Employer for a change in shift schedule it shall not result in any increased cost to the Employer.

Article 19 Overtime

- 19:01 Overtime shall be deemed to be time worked in excess of the normal daily hours of work of an employee's classification as set out in Schedule "B" and such time to have been authorized by the Employer.
- 19:02 A part-time employee shall be eligible for overtime where authorized by the Employer on the following basis:
 - (a) Daily overtime is only payable when the employee has worked beyond the daily hours for that classification (i.e. seven and one-half [7 ½], eight [8], twelve [12] hours).

- (b) Overtime on a day of rest is only payable when an employee has worked at least five (5) days in a week (i.e. a part-time employee only has two [2] "day of rest" per week).
- 19:03 Overtime shall be compensated by payment of one and one-half (1 ½ x) times the employee's regular hourly rate of pay for each of the first three (3) consecutive hours of overtime and at the rate of double the employee's regular hourly rate of pay for hours worked in excess of three (3) hours worked in any one day. Overtime worked on a general holiday shall be at the rate of double the employee's regular hourly rate of pay.
- 19:04 Where a full-time employee is required to work on a scheduled day off, the employee shall be paid at two (2) times her regular hourly rate of pay for all hours worked.
- 19:05 Where an employee is called back to work after the completion of her shift, as per Article 18:01 and has left the Health Authority, but prior to commencement of her next shift she shall be paid a minimum of three (3) hours pay at the applicable overtime rate.
- 19:06 By mutual agreement between the Employer and the employee, overtime may be compensated for by the granting of equivalent time off at applicable overtime rates. Such time shall be taken by the employee prior to March 31 of any year or paid out.
 - (a) Mutual agreement between the employee and the supervisor must be reached within two (2) weeks as to the date(s) to be taken off.
 - (b) A maximum of eighty (80) hours may be banked at any one (1) time.
 - (c) The Employer reserves the right to withdraw its agreement as to the date(s) to be taken should emergency situations so dictate.
 - (d) The employee may, at any time, request to have any portion of banked time paid out.

(e) Any changes initiated by the Employer under (c) above which would result in financial loss to the employee due to confirmed travel or vacation arrangements shall be avoided.

Any change initiated by the employee under (d) above which would result in increased cost to the Employer due to alternate staffing arrangements shall be avoided.

- 19:07 The Employer shall either provide transportation or reimburse transportation costs to employees called back to work in an emergency.
- 19:08 Overtime and on call shall be divided as equally as reasonably possible among employees who are qualified to perform the available work. No employee shall be required to work overtime against her wishes when other qualified employees within the same classification are available and willing to perform the required work.
- 19:09 EMS Staff who are on call back performing long distance transportation shall be entitled to a meal allowance of a flat rate of eight dollars (\$8.00) as follows:
 - (a) One (1) meal claim if call back is greater than five (5) hours.
 - (b) Two (2) meal claims if call back is greater than ten (10) hours.
 - (c) Three (3) meal claims if call back is greater than fifteen (15) hours.
- 19:10 Casual employees required to report for a call back shall be paid straight time for not less than three (3) hours for each such call back. Should a casual employee work in excess of the daily or bi-weekly hours of work, then the call back shall be paid at the applicable overtime rates.

Article 20 Pay Practices

- **20:01** Subject to satisfactory performance employees shall be paid within the salary range in the following manner:
 - (a) At commencement of employment

- (b) Not less than the minimum step
- (c) On each successive anniversary date of employment next higher increment
- 20:02 A full time employee shall be entitled to an annual increment on the anniversary date of the commencement of his employment in accordance with the salary schedule attached hereto, if his work performance is considered satisfactory at the discretion of the Employer.

A part time employee shall be entitled to an increment increase after working 1,950 or 2,080 (as applicable) hours from his last increment increase or the commencement of his employment (not including time worked as a casual), if his work performance is considered satisfactory at the discretion of the Employer.

- 20:03 If an increment is delayed under Article 20:04 a further employee assessment shall take place not later than three (3) months following such delay. Subject to satisfactory resolution of the problems causing the negative assessment the delayed increment shall then be granted.
- 20:04 If an employee voluntarily transfers to a lower or equally paid classification, she shall be paid at the same increment step in the new classification as she was at the old classification. She will be entitled to her next increment increase after working 1,950 or 2,080 hours (as appropriate) from her last increase.

(For example, an employee has worked 1,080 hours in a position in pay grade 12 and transfers to a position in pay grade 10, she will progress to her next step after working another 1,000 hours).

Article 21 Education

21:01 The Employer and Union recognize the importance of providing educational opportunities. Requests for education leave or to take courses

(correspondence or class attendance) shall be submitted in writing to the employee's supervisor with a copy to the Department Director. Such requests will be considered on an individual basis and financial assistance may be arranged at the discretion of the Employer.

21:02 Employees shall not be required to participate in any educational program at their own expense.

Article 22 Labour Management Committee

- 22:01 The Employer and the Union agree to maintain a Labour Management Committee consisting of not less than two (2) persons appointed by each of the parties. Appointments shall be made for a term of one (1) year but without limit on the number of consecutive terms a member may serve. The Committee shall meet at the requests of either party on an as needed basis.
- 22:02 (a) The main purpose of the Committee is for the exchange of information, the seeking and considering of the advice and view of each party with appropriate opportunity provided to discuss and comment in a genuine manner, and recommendations made wherever possible.
 - (b) The above does not imply unanimous or majority agreement nor does it interfere with Employer or Union rights arising out of the Collective Agreement.
 - (c) The Labour Management Committee shall not be used as a vehicle for settling disputes which should be processed through the Grievance and Arbitration Procedure.
 - (d) Full minutes of each meeting shall be kept and copies of same shall be distributed to those attending as well as to the officers of the Union and designated Authority Management. The minutes and any changes thereto shall be read, passed, and recorded at each meeting.

Article 23 Standby

- 23:01 Where an employee is designated by the Employer to be available to receive and respond to work related telephone calls without undue delay, the employee will receive a premium known as "on call". The amount of this premium shall be two (2) hours basic pay for each eight (8) hour period or prorated payment for any portion thereof.
- 23:02 An employee who is designated by the Employer to be available on call, immediately available by telephone contact to report to work without undue delay, shall be entitled for payment of two (2) hours basic pay for each eight (8) hour period or a prorated payment for any portion thereof.

Article 24 Uniforms, Protective Clothing and Protective Footwear

- 24:01 All employees who are required to wear a uniform while on duty shall have the uniform supplied and laundered by the Employer. Employees shall be given the opportunity to provide input to the Employer regarding design and colour of the uniform.
- **24:02** The Employer shall provide the following to employees in the maintenance department:
 - (a) Two (2) pairs of pants per year.
 - (b) Two (2) shirts per year.
 - (c) One (1) parka every five (5) years or at an earlier date upon demonstration of need.
 - (d) One (1) pair of ski pants every three (3) years or at an earlier date upon demonstration of need.
 - (e) One (1) pair of safety shoes with replacement upon demonstration of need.
 - (f) Two (2) pairs of coveralls per year.

- (g) Work gloves and winter mitts.
- (h) One (1) pair of winter boots.
- **24:03** The Employer shall provide the following for EMS staff as required:
 - (a) Two (2) pairs of pants.
 - (b) Two (2) shirts and crest.
 - (c) A supply of coveralls shall be available in a variety of sizes for use by casual EMS staff.
 - (d) A supply of winter and summer jackets shall be available for use by all EMS staff while on call back.
 - (e) All such items shall remain the property of the Employer.
- **24:04** (a) Employees hired after May 1, 2005 will receive a one hundred dollar (\$100.00) footwear allowance upon commencement of employment to be applied towards the purchase of approved footwear.
 - (b) A footwear allowance, to a maximum of one hundred dollars (\$100.00) per year, shall be paid on the basis of five and one tenths of a cent (\$0.051) per hour to include regular hours and call back hours paid. Such allowance shall be paid as a lump sum payment annually on the closest pay period prior to March 31st of each subsequent year.

Article 25 Resignation

- 25:01 Where an employee wishes to resign, she shall give written notice, whenever possible of four (4) weeks, but no less than two (2) weeks in advance specifying the last day at work to perform her regular duties.
- 25:02 When an employee terminates employment in accordance with 25:01 the employee shall receive from the Employer on the pay day following the last day referred to in 25:01 above, payment of all or any wages, and any other benefits she is entitled to under the terms of this Agreement.

Article 26 Layoff

26:01 Except for circumstances beyond the control of the Employer, ninety (90) days' notice of the date of a layoff in excess of four (4) weeks duration shall be given to employees.

In the case of a layoff which is beyond the sole control of the Employer, four (4) weeks' notice or pay in lieu thereof shall be given. In cases of emergency and that where the layoff is less than two (2) weeks duration, the amount of lieu pay shall be reduced accordingly. Example: Three (3) day layoff with eleven (11) days' notice or less equals three (3) days lieu pay; five (5) day layoff with ten (10) days' notice equals four (4) days lieu pay.

- 26:02 Layoffs shall be on the basis of seniority within a classification beginning with the most junior employee in that classification and ascending as required from there.
- 26:03 To be eligible for recall, employees must file their name and phone number with the Employer at the time of layoff. Employees must also notify the Employer of any change of address or phone number during the period of layoff.
- 26:04 No new employees shall be hired until those laid off have been given an opportunity for recall to the classification they formerly held prior to layoff or to some other classification for which they possess the qualifications and ability sufficient to perform the required duties.
- 26:05 Employees shall be recalled by phone and such notice shall be confirmed by registered mail to the employee. The employee must be prepared to begin work at a time agreeable to the Employer.
- **26:06** The right of an employee who has been laid off to be rehired under the Agreement may at the discretion of the Employer be forfeited in the following circumstances:
 - (a) If the employee did not communicate with the Employer as specified in Article 26:03 and 26:05.

- (b) If the employee did not report to work when instructed to do so and fails to provide an explanation satisfactory to the Employer.
- 26:07 For the purpose of Article 26:06 (b), a satisfactory explanation shall be deemed to include, but shall not be limited to, situations where an employee is required by some other employer to give two (2) weeks' notice of resignation.
- **26:08** Employees laid off shall be placed on a re-employment list, with a copy furnished to the Union, and shall be called back to work as required beginning with the most senior employee and descending from there.
- 26:09 An employee who is laid off or "bumped" may elect to "bump" the most junior employee with less seniority than herself, in another classification, providing she is capable of performing the required duties of that position, with minimal training and orientation provided by the Employer.

Article 27 Employee Performance Review and Employee Files

- 27:01 Upon written request to her immediate supervisor, an employee shall have the right to examine, along with a representative of her choice, who is so named in the request, the personnel file kept by the Employer for that employee.
- 27:02 When a formal assessment of an employee's performance is made, the employee concerned shall sign the assessment form in question upon its completion to indicate that its contents have been read. The employee shall have the right to place her own comments in a space provided on the form prior to her signing. Immediately upon the employee signing the assessment form the employee shall be handed an exact copy for her own record.
- 27:03 The Executive Director shall be the only individual authorized by the Authority to issue references to prospective Employers.
- **27:04** Letters of reference shall be issued to terminating employees upon request.

Article 28 Discipline, Suspension and Dismissals

- 28:01 No employee shall be disciplined, suspended or dismissed from the Authority without just cause, and the reasons for discipline (excepting a verbal reprimand), suspension or dismissal shall be given in writing to the employee and further the duration of a suspension shall also be given in writing.
- 28:02 Where an employee has been suspended or dismissed, she shall have the right to grieve the matter commencing at Step Two of the Grievance and Arbitration Procedure within fifteen (15) days from the date the employee was suspended or dismissed.

Article 29 Grievance and Arbitration Procedure

- 29:01 An earnest effort shall be made to settle grievances fairly and equitably in the following manner, however, nothing in this Agreement shall preclude the Employer and the Union from mutually agreeing to settle a dispute by any means other than those described in this Article without prejudice to their respective positions.
- 29:02 A grievance is defined as any matter concerning the application, interpretation, administration or any alleged violation of this Agreement.
- 29:03 Hearings shall be held at all steps of the Grievance and Arbitration Procedure and the grievor shall be entitled to have a representative(s) of her choice present providing that this representative can be available to attend a hearing without causing undue delay.
- **29:04** Days referred to in this Article are days excluding Saturdays, Sundays and Statutory Holidays.
- 29:05 Where the Employer fails to render a decision at any step of the Grievance Procedure within the time limits specified, the employee or representative may proceed to the next step. However where the grievor or her representative fails to comply with the time limits specified the grievance will be deemed to be abandoned.

- **29:06** Any grievance shall be presented in writing and if possible presented on the MGEU Official Grievance Form.
- 29:07 Any time limits or meeting times can be extended by mutual agreement of the parties hereto, with written confirmation to follow.
- **29:08** Policy and group grievances shall only be initiated at Step Two, where Step One of the Grievance Procedure is not capable of resolving the matter.

29:09 Step One - Immediate Supervisor/Department Head

Within twenty (20) days from the date of the incident giving rise to the grievance the employee shall present the matter to her immediate supervisor/department head who shall render her decision in writing to the employee and/or her representative within seven (7) days.

29:10 Step Two - Senior Management Member

- (a) Where the decision from Step One is unsatisfactory to the employee, the matter shall be presented to the Senior Management Member within seven (7) days of the receipt of the decision from Step One.
- (b) Within ten (10) days from the date the matter was presented to her, the Senior Management Member shall render her decision in writing to the employee and/or her representative.

29:11 <u>Step Three - Executive Director</u>

Where the decision from Step Two is unsatisfactory to the employee and the Union, the grievance may within twenty (20) days from the date the decision was received from Step Three be referred to Arbitration and proceeded with in the following manner.

29:12 Step Four - Arbitration

- (a) The Union shall state in writing to the Executive Director that the grievance is to proceed to Arbitration.
- (b) Unless both parties agree to the selection of a sole arbitrator within ten (10) days following the matter being referred to arbitration, each party

- shall in the next ten (10) days give notice to the other party in writing naming its appointee to the Arbitration Board.
- (c) Within a further ten (10) days the two (2) appointees shall agree upon a person to be the third member on the Board who shall be the Chairman of the Board of Arbitration.
- (d) In the event the Employer fails to appoint an appointee, or if the two (2) appointees fail to agree upon a Chairman within the applicable time limits, at the written request of either party, the appointment shall be made by the Chief Justice for the Province of Manitoba.
- (e) The Board shall determine its own procedures, but shall provide full opportunity to both parties to present its evidence and make recommendations. The Board shall as much as possible avoid legalistic or formal procedures.
- (f) Both parties shall have the right to the assistance of any employee concerned as a witness without prejudice. All reasonable arrangements shall be made to permit the parties or the Board to have access to the premises of the Authority to view any working conditions which may be relevant to the settlement of the grievance.
- (g) The decision of the majority shall be the decision of the Board and in the event there is no majority decision the decision of the Chairman shall be the decision of the Board. The decision of the Board or decision of a single arbitrator shall be binding and enforceable on both parties.
- (h) Neither the Board nor the single arbitrator shall have the authority to amend, add to, or in any manner change any Article of this Agreement.
- (i) Each party shall bear all expenses of their appointee to the Board and shall bear equally the expenses of the Chairman of the Board or the single Arbitrator as the case applies.

29:13 Grievance Mediation/Arbitration Process:

The process is intended to create a harmonious relationship in order to promptly resolve grievances in an economical and amiable fashion. On this basis, the parties are committed to the utilization of the following process where it is mutually agreed to be appropriate. The parties hereto agree that the following conditions shall apply to the Grievance Mediation Process (GMP).

Part 1 – General

It is understood that this process and the appointment of the Mediators is to continue concurrent with the Collective Agreement.

The Mediator shall be a party whom has been mutually agreed to by the Union and the Employer.

It is recognized that the GMP is a voluntary process and either party may request that any grievance be submitted to GMP, however both parties must agree on each case to be so submitted. Where such mutual agreement cannot be reached then the provisions of the Collective Agreement regarding arbitration shall apply.

It is understood that the opinion of the Mediator is advisory in nature unless both parties agree in advance that the opinion shall be binding.

In the case where the parties determine the GMP is to be non-binding and where one or both of the parties does not accept the opinion of the Mediator, then the option shall remain to utilize the Arbitration procedure contained in the Collective Agreement.

- (a) It is understood that where the parties agree to abide by the opinion of the Mediator, it is done so on a without precedent or prejudice basis.
- (b) An opinion expressed by the Mediator regarding any issue shall not be submitted to any future GMP nor to any arbitrator.

The Mediator shall conduct an investigation into each grievance jointly submitted. It is expected that a hearing will be required in the normal course of the GMP. Within seven (7) days of a grievance being submitted, the Mediator shall schedule a hearing to be held within the thirty (30) days or such reasonable date agreed to by the parties. The mediator is empowered to fulfill his/her role in any manner deemed to be most effective given the individual circumstances of each case. The Mediator's general role is to:

- (i) Investigate and if necessary conduct a hearing into each grievance jointly submitted.
- (ii) Define the issue(s) in dispute;
- (iii) Provide an opinion as to an appropriate resolution of the dispute;
- (iv) Otherwise assist the parties in reaching a resolution.

The Mediator is expected to give a verbal opinion at the conclusion of a hearing, and to submit a brief written opinion to each of the parties within seven calendar days following a hearing. Where no hearing is held, it is expected that the Mediator will provide a written opinion within seven (7) calendar days.

Where either or both parties choose not to accept the opinion of the Mediator, they shall advise the other party in writing within seven (7) calendar days.

Nothing shall preclude the parties from resolving any grievance in any mutually agreed manner either before, during or after its referral to the GMP.

It is expressly understood that the GMP is intended to provide a costeffective, informal, and timely alternative to conventional arbitration.

Part 2 – Submission Of Grievance

In all cases, the grievance procedure contained in the Collective Agreement will continue to apply, however, where the grievance procedure has been exhausted and a party has certain time limits to refer the matter to arbitration, that party might instead within this time limit, advise the other party in writing of its desire to refer the matter to the GMP. Where such a request is made, the time limits referenced in the grievance procedure shall be temporarily suspended until:

- (a) The other party advises the party who has made such a request that does not agree to defer the matter to the GMP, or
- (b) Fourteen (14) calendar days have elapsed from the date the request was made and the other party has failed to respond, or
- (c) Fourteen (14) calendar days have elapsed from the date upon which the Mediator issued his written opinion.

When any one of the events referred to in a), b) or c) above occur the time limits for referring the matter to arbitration shall commence as if the grievance procedure had been exhausted on that date.

Part 3 – Hearings

The parties agree not to be represented at any GMP hearing by legal counsel. When a hearing is conducted, it is expected to be informal in nature. All parties will be entitled and encouraged to speak and ask questions. The Mediator shall conduct any hearing in a manner deemed by him/her to be effective. Witnesses will not give evidence under oath but the Mediator may act as a participant in attempting to resolve areas of conflicting evidence.

Attendance at hearings shall be limited to a maximum of four (4) employees from the bargaining unit and/or the Union, and four (4) Employer representatives. This stipulation shall not prevent the

Mediator from requesting the attendance of any other person who can assist in clarifying the issue in dispute.

The parties agree to provide the Mediator with a jointly prepared statement of facts in an effort to narrow the scope of any dispute and to minimize the need to present evidence through witnesses. The Mediator may through the course of investigation determine additional facts relevant to the resolution of the matter and shall advise the parties accordingly.

The parties shall each pay for their own costs associated with referring and processing a grievance through the GMP except that the parties shall jointly and equally share the fees and expenses of the Mediator.

The Mediator is empowered to consider any grievable matter put to him by the parties including a question of whether or not an issue is grievable.

The opinion of the Mediator is expected to be an informed estimate of the likelihood of the grievance being sustained or denied in the event of its being referred to arbitration.

The Mediator will be provided with any documentation, which might provide assistance to him carrying out his role.

Article 30 Shift Premium and Weekend Premium

- 30:01 Employees shall receive an evening shift premium for each hour or portion of an hour worked between 1600 and the next succeeding 0000 hours' shall be paid a shift premium of one dollar (\$1.00) per hour for that shift.
- 30:02 The above allowance shall be applicable from 1600 hours to the termination of a day shift on a twelve (12) hour shift pattern during which at least two (2) hours are worked between 1600 hours and the termination of a shift.

- 30:03 An employee required to work hours on any shift between 0001 hours and 0800 hours shall be paid a night shift premium of one dollar and seventy five cents (\$1.75) per hour for that shift increasing to one dollar and ninety cents (\$1.90) per hour effective April 1, 2016, and increasing to two dollars and five cents (\$2.05) effective October 1, 2016.
- **30:04** Shift premium shall not be payable while an employee is:
 - (a) On stand-by;
 - (b) Receiving overtime pay;
 - (c) Receiving call back pay.
- 30:05 A weekend premium of one dollar and thirty five cents (\$1.35) increasing to one dollar and fifty cents (\$1.50) per hour effective April 1, 2016 and increasing to one dollar and sixty-five cents (\$1.65) per hour effective October 1, 2016 per hour shall be paid to an employee for all hours actually worked on any shift where the majority of the hours on that shift fall between 0001 hours on the Saturday and 2400 hours on the following Sunday.

Article 31 Retirement Plan/Group Life Insurance/Dental Plan

- 31:01 Enrolment in the HEBP Group Pension Plan, Group Health, Disability and Rehabilitation Plan, Dental Plan and Group Life Insurance Plan is a condition of employment for all employees, providing the employee qualifies under the conditions of each plan.
 - The details of each plan are as determine by the trustees of the above noted plans and identified in the respective plan texts and HEBP rules and regulations.
- 31:02 Employees will pay the employer's and employee's share of Group Health, Dental, Group Life and D&R when on any period of unpaid LOA.
- 31:03 (a) Employees retiring in accordance with the following:

- (i) Retire at age sixty-five (65 years); or
- (ii) Retire after age sixty-five (65 years); or
- (iii) Have completed at least ten (10) years continuous employment and retire after age fifty-five (55) years but before age sixty-five (65) years;
- (iv) Employees who have completed at least ten (10) years continuous employment with the Employer, whose age plus years of that employment equal eighty (80);
- (v) Terminate employment at any time due to permanent disability;

shall be granted retirement bonus on the basis of four (4) days per year of employment.

- (b) Calculation of pre-retirement bonus entitlement shall begin from the date of the employee's last commencing employment at the Facility and shall be based on the employee's total seniority on the date of retirement.
- (c) Employees retiring in accordance with the conditions of section (a) above shall be granted retirement bonus as specified on the following basis. Calculations will be based on the following formula:

Total Paid Hours Actually

<u>Worked from Date of Hire</u> x Four (4) days

Full-time Hours

(d) Payment shall, at the option of the employee, be made in a lump sum or as a continuation of salary until the scheduled retirement date. The retirement date shall be the last day worked in cases where an employee chooses lump sum payment.

Article 32 Remoteness Allowances

32:01 The bi-weekly Remoteness Allowance presently applicable to Churchill, effective March 23, 2013 are:

Dependants Supporting - \$261.89

Single - \$158.90

32:02 The biweekly rates shown in 32:01 above shall be adjusted in accordance with any new agreement reached between the provincial government and the Manitoba Government and General Employees' Union during the life of this Agreement.

The conditions for determining eligibility for the receipt of remoteness allowances shown in Article 32:01 above shall be as agreed to between the Provincial Government and the MGEU.

- 32:03 In the event that there is any dispute regarding the application or interpretation of the Remoteness Allowances, such dispute shall be handled through the Grievance and Arbitration procedure of this Agreement.
- 32:04 (a) A full-time employee eligible for remoteness allowance shall be eligible for up to a maximum of three (3) additional paid days Special Northern Leave travel time in each fiscal year. Such days shall be pro-rated on regular hours worked for part-time employees. Such days shall be prorated based on date of hire for new employees.
 - (b) Effective April 1, 2009, a full-time employee eligible for remoteness allowance shall be eligible for up to a maximum of five (5) additional paid days Special Northern Leave travel time in each fiscal year. Such days shall be pro-rated on regular hours worked for part-time employees.

Article 33 General Holidays

33:01 The following shall be recognized as general holidays

New Year's Day Civic Holiday Louis Riel Day Labour Day

Good Friday Thanksgiving Day
Easter Monday Remembrance Day

Victoria Day Christmas Day Canada Day (July 1) Boxing Day

Any other holiday proclaimed by Federal or Provincial Statute.

- 33:02 All employees shall be assured either New Year's Day or Christmas Day off.
- 33:03 An employee scheduled to work on any of the above holidays shall be compensated in one (1) of the following methods:
 - (a) The employee shall receive one and one-half (1 ½ x) times her regular hourly rate of pay for each hour worked and in addition shall receive another day off with pay in lieu of the holiday to be scheduled within sixty (60) days following the holiday. The day in lieu of the holiday shall be scheduled to fall on a day contiguous to days off unless otherwise mutually agreed, or
 - (b) Where an alternate day off is impractical to schedule the employee shall receive two and one-half ($2 \frac{1}{2} x$) times her regular hourly rate of pay for all hours worked on the holiday.
- 33:04 Where a holiday falls on an employee's day off, or during the employee's annual vacation, such employee shall receive a day off with pay in lieu thereof or receive an extra day's pay at straight time if mutually agreed upon between the employee and the Employer.
- 33:05 Where a holiday falls on a day on which an employee is on income protection with pay she shall be paid for the holiday and there shall be no deductions from her income protection credits for that day.
- **33:06** Part-time employees shall receive pay for the above general holidays in accordance with provincial legislation or as otherwise mutually agreed to in writing by the parties during the life of this Agreement.

33:07 In addition to the pay specified in Article 33:06, a part-time employee shall receive pay at the rate of one and one-half times (1 $\frac{1}{2}$ x) her regular hourly rate for all time worked on a holiday.

Article 34 Vacations

- **34:01** The vacation year shall be from the 1st day of May in one (1) year to the 30th day of April the next year.
- 34:02 Annual vacation shall be earned at the rate of twenty (20) working days per year for the first four (4) years of employment, at the rate of twenty-five (25) working days per year commencing at the fifth (5th) year of employment, and at the rate of thirty (30) working days per year commencing at the tenth (10th) year of employment.
- An employee who has completed less than one (1) year of employment at April 30th shall be entitled to a paid vacation at the rate of one point six-six (1.66) days per month worked, however, unless otherwise mutually agreed, the Employer is not obligated to permit earned vacation to be taken until an employee has completed six (6) months of employment.
- 34:04 For the purpose of determining the paid vacation entitlement, the term "employment" as used above will be deemed to exclude any period of time in excess of thirty (30) days which is not paid by the Employer.
- 34:05 Unless otherwise mutually agreed between the Employer and the employee, the Employer will provide for vacation days to be taken on a consecutive basis, recognizing that five (5) vacation days equal one (1) calendar week. The dates used to calculate vacation earned shall be from May 1 to April 30 in the following year. Vacation earned in any vacation year is to be taken in the following vacation year unless otherwise mutually agreed between the employee and the Employer.
- 34:06 Any trading of scheduled vacation periods must be approved by all other affected employees and submitted in writing to the Employer for approval.

- 34:07 Employees shall not be paid for any vacation granted in excess of their actual earned vacation.
- **34:08** (a) Part-time employees shall earn vacation on a pro-rata basis in accordance with this formula:

Hours paid at regular rate of pay x Entitlement of a Full-time hours Full-time employee

Actual vacation entitlement will be based on years of service. Accumulated hours shall only govern rate of vacation pay for the current vacation year.

- (b) Part-time employees shall receive their entitled vacation over a period of time equivalent to the vacation period of a full-time employee.
- 34:09 The Employer will post vacation entitlement lists not later than March 1st each year, and allow employees to express their preference as to dates until April 1st.

The Employer will post the vacation schedule not later than April 30 having given due consideration to employee preference and individual circumstances including seniority and such vacation schedule shall not be changed unless mutually agreed upon by the employee and the Employer.

34:10 An employee shall be entitled to receive her vacation in an unbroken period, unless otherwise mutually agreed upon between the employee and the Employer.

A maximum of four (4) weeks' vacation may be taken during the summer months (June 1 – September 30).

34:11 Upon termination of employment in accordance with Article 25 an employee shall be entitled to pay in lieu of vacation earned but not taken, at the following percentage rates of basic pay earned during the period which the vacation was earned but not taken.

Fifteen (15) days per year - six percent (6%) of basic pay – (part-time employees only)

Twenty (20) days per year - eight percent (8%) of basic pay

Twenty-five (25) days per year - ten percent (10%) of basic pay

Thirty (30) days per year - twelve percent (12%) of basic pay

34:12 (a) Vacation Travel Assistance shall be paid once annually commencing with the employee's second year of employment, and shall consist of excursion return airfare, or its equivalent from Churchill to Winnipeg. In the event that the employee has complied with Article 34:12 (d) and excursion fares are not available, the employee shall receive full-fare rates. In the event that the employee chooses not to travel outside of Churchill, the employee shall receive the excursion airfare.

Employees shall request the travel allowance as per Article 34:12 (d) of this agreement. A deposit will be issued to the employee for the full amount requested.

- (b) Part time employees who have worked 1,000 or more regular hours in the previous fiscal year will be entitled to Vacation Travel Assistance on the same basis as full time employees but on a prorated basis. If an employee is in more than one part time position she will be prorated on the basis of all hours worked in all part time positions.
- (c) Travel assistance payments shall be processed by payroll for eligible employees and subject to statutory deductions excluding income tax.
- (d) Travel Assistance shall be provided for employees only, however after the fifth year, at the employee's option, one (1) of the two (2) trips may be utilized by a member of the employee's immediate family who travels with the employee. Where that family member is entitled to a child fare or other discount, the amount of Vacation

Travel Assistance shall be reduced accordingly. Travel Assistance shall be issued no later than two (2) working days prior to the employee going on vacation. Unused Travel Assistance shall not be paid on termination of employment.

- (e) An employee with ten (10) years or more years' length of service will be entitled to receive one additional flight under the same rules and regulations currently in practice.
- (f) In the event of the discontinuation of scheduled commercial flights between Churchill and Winnipeg, the amounts referred to above shall be equal to the rates in effect prior to such discontinuation, current excursion rates.
- (g) It is understood that vacation travel assistance payments are provided only when an employee is on vacation and are to be requested thirty (30) days in advance of the vacation date required, and it is also understood that traveling out of Churchill is no longer a requirement. Therefore, receipts are not required. Said amounts shall be paid in separate deposits.
- 34:13 Where an employee is absent for up to one (1) year due to compensable illness or injury for which compensation is paid under the Workers Compensation Act, she shall continue to earn vacation credits.
- 34:14 In the event that an employee is admitted to hospital on a non-elective basis during her vacation period, the period of hospitalization shall be treated as sick time rather than vacation time. No other leaves of absence specified in this Agreement shall displace a period of vacation once commenced without the written consent of the Employer. Any vacation time displaced under this clause shall be rescheduled for use at a later date.

34:15 <u>Long Service Recognition – Vacation</u>

In recognition of length of service, each full-time employee shall receive one additional week of vacation (5 days) on completion of twenty (20) years of continuous service, and on each subsequent fifth (5th) (i.e. 25th, 30th, 35th, 40th, etc.) anniversary of employment. The additional five (5) days shall be

granted in the calendar year in which the anniversary date falls and are not cumulative.

Part time employees shall be entitled to a pro-rata portion of this benefit.

Article 35 Income Protection

35:01 Income protection is provided to an employee to an employee to protect her from loss of earnings to the extent of her earned income protection credits when she is incapacitated by illness, injury, quarantine or for an absence as a result of a claim that is pending a decision of the Workers Compensation Board as per Article 38.

An employee shall earn income protection with pay credits calculated on the basis of one and one-quarter (1 1/4) working days for each month of service. Part-time employees shall accumulate credits on a pro-rata basis of regular hours worked.

35:03 An employee who is unable to report for work due to illness or injury, shall inform her Supervisor or designate prior to the commencement of her next scheduled shift(s) in accordance with the procedure determined by the department. An employee who fails, without valid reason, to give notice as specified below may be subject to disciplinary action and will not be entitled to receive income protection benefits, when warranted, for shift(s) in question.

Prior to day shift 1 hours' notice

Prior to evening shift 1½ hours' notice

Prior to night shift 1.5 hours' notice

An employee who is unable to report for work due to any other reason shall also inform his Supervisor in accordance with the time frames noted above. The employee must always report the reason for the absence (ill, family ill, or other specific reason).

Reasonable notice for pre-scheduled medical or dental exam or treatment or elective surgery will be seven (7) days except in cases of emergency.

Employees not meeting these requirements will be marked absent unless an explanation satisfactory to the Employer is given.

- 35:04 Prior to returning to duty while on income protection, an employee shall inform her immediate supervisor or unit head of when she expects to return to duty.
- 35:05 The Employer reserves the right to require a doctor's certificate to substantiate an employee's claim for income protection or to determine an employee's fitness to perform her job.
 - Employees who are requested to produce a medical certificate prior to returning to work but who are unable to secure a doctor's appointment shall notify the Employer who shall arrange for a doctor's appointment.
- 35:06 A record of all unused income protection credits shall be maintained and an employee shall be informed upon his request, the amount of income protection credits on record.
- 35:07 Days off and holidays which fall within the period of income protection shall not be considered a part of, or charged to the employee's accumulated income protection.
- 35:08 The Employer agrees that any employee's unused income protection credits accrued prior to the effective date of this Agreement shall be retained by the employee.
- 35:09 Employees whose state of health prevents them from performing their own work, or alternate light duties if assigned by the Employer, and who have no income protection entitlement shall not be terminated if a medical

practitioner's judgment is that they will be able to return to perform their own duties within a reasonable period of time which is acceptable to the Employer.

- 35:10 (a) For each one and one-quarter (1.25) days of income protection accumulated, one (1) day* shall be reserved exclusively for the employee's personal use as outlined in Article 35:02. The remaining one-quarter (.25) of a day* shall be reserved for either the employee's personal use as outlined in Article 35:02, or for use in the event of family illness as specified in 35:10 (b). The Employer shall maintain an up to date record of the balance of income protection credits reserved for each of these purposes.
 - (i) Twenty (20) percent of the balance will be reserved for either the employee's personal use or for the use in the event of family leave in accordance with Article 35:10 (b).
 - (b) An employee may use up to five (5) days income protection per calendar year for the purpose of providing care in the event of an illness of a spouse, dependent child, or parent. Such days that may be utilized for this purpose will be set out in 35:10 (a).

Should other situations necessitate an employee's absence for family responsibilities, nothing in this article shall prevent the employer from granting family related leave on a discretionary basis. Such leave, if granted, would be on the same basis as income protection.

35:11 Should it be necessary for an employee to attend a doctor, dentist or chiropractor outside of his/her community by reason of non-availability of service in his/her community, the employee shall be allowed up to two (2) shifts off with pay, to the extent that income protection credits have been accumulated, for the time necessary to attend such appointments.

Article 36 Bereavement Leave

- An employee shall be granted four (4) regularly scheduled consecutive days leave without loss of pay and benefits, one (1) of which shall be the day of internment or cremation, in the case of the death of a parent, wife, husband, child, brother, sister, mother-in-law, father-in-law, common-law spouse, daughter-in-law, son-in-law, sister or brother of spouse, the wife or husband of the spouse's sister or brother, grandparent, grandchild, step children, step parents, latest foster parents, former legal guardian, fiancé and any other relative who was residing in the same household at the time of his/her death.
- 36:02 In the case of a local funeral, an employee may be granted up to four (4) hours off without loss of pay to attend a funeral as a pallbearer, or up to four (4) hours without loss of pay may be granted where she attends the funeral as a mourner. This clause is not to be regarded as cumulative with any of the foregoing.
- 36:03 An employee shall be entitled to additional compassionate or special leave up to a maximum of two (2) calendar days without salary, requested for the purpose of attending a funeral at a distance. The employee may use banked time or vacation credits to avoid loss of salary during this time.

Article 37 Leave for Other Reasons

37:01 Leave of absence may be granted where necessary upon written application to the Executive Director.

37:02 Parenting Leave

Parenting Leave consists of Maternity Leave and Parental Leave. Parental Leave includes Paternity and Adoption Leave.

(i) Maternity/Parental Leave

An employee shall receive Maternity Leave of seventeen (17) weeks and Parental Leave of up to thirty seven (37) weeks without pay, subject to the following conditions:

- (a) An employee must have completed six (6) months employment as of the intended date of leave unless otherwise agreed to by the Employer.
- (b) A written request must be submitted not later than the end of the twenty-second (22nd) week of pregnancy, indicating length of time required. In cases where an earlier leave is required, a written request must be submitted not less than four (4) weeks before the intended date of leave, indicating length of time requested.
- (c) In the interest of job performance or employee health, as verified by a qualified medical practitioner, the Employer will have the right to place the employee on Maternity Leave.
- (d) Where an employee takes Parental Leave in addition to Maternity Leave, the employee must commence the Parental Leave immediately on the expiry of the Maternity Leave without a return to work unless otherwise approved by the Employer.
- (e) A full-time employee may choose to receive up to five (5) days payment of normal salary from accumulated income protection credits before or after the period covered by Employment Insurance. Such days that may be utilized for this purpose will be as set out in Article 35:10 (a).

A part-time employee may choose to receive income protection credits similar to full-time employees but prorated to reflect her paid hours of work within the previous fifty-two (52) weeks. Such days that may be utilized for this purpose will be as set out in Article 35:10 (a).

(ii) Parental Leave - Paternity

An employee shall receive Parental Leave without pay of up to thirty seven (37) weeks, subject to the following conditions:

(a) He becomes the natural father of a child and assumes actual care and custody of his child.

- (b) He has completed six (6) months employment as of the date of the intended leave.
- (c) He submits to the Employer an application in writing for Parental Leave at least four (4) weeks before the day specified in the application as the day on which the employee intends to commence the leave.
- (d) Parental Leave must be completed not later than the anniversary date of the birth of the child or the date on which the child came into the actual care and custody of the employee.

(iii) Parental Leave - Adoption

An employee shall receive Parental Leave of up to thirty seven (37) weeks without pay, subject to the following conditions:

- (a) An employee must adopt a child under the laws of the Province.
- (b) An employee may commence Adoption Leave upon one (1) days' notice provided that application for such leave is made when the adoption has been approved and the Employer is kept informed of the progress of the adoption proceedings.
- (c) An employee has completed six (6) months employment as of the date of the intended leave.
- (d) Parental Leave must be completed no later than the first anniversary date of adoption of the child or the date on which the child comes into actual care and custody of the employee.
- (e) An employee may end her parental leave earlier than the thirty seven (37) weeks by giving the employer written notice at least two (2) weeks, or one (1) pay period, whichever is longer before the day the employee wishes to end the leave. On return from Maternity and/or Parental Leave, the employee shall be placed in her former classification and shift schedule at the same increment step.

(iv) Maternity Leave Top-Up

Plan B

- 1. In order to qualify for Plan B, a pregnant employee must:
 - (a) Have completed six (6) continuous months of employment with the Employer;
 - (b) Submit to the Employer an application in writing, for leave under Plan B at least four (4) weeks before the day specified by her in the application as the day on which she intends to commence such leave;
 - (c) Provide the Employer with a certificate of a duly qualified medical practitioner certifying that she is pregnant and specifying the estimated date of her delivery;
 - (d) Provide the Employer with proof that she has applied for Employment Insurance benefits and that the HRDC has agreed that the employee has qualified for and is entitled to such Employment Insurance benefits pursuant to the Employment Insurance Act.
- 2. An applicant for Maternity Leave under Plan B must sign an agreement with the Employer providing that:
 - (a) She will return to work and remain in the employ of the Employer for at least six (6) months following her return to work, except that where an employee is the successful applicant for a part-time position which commences on the date of her return from Maternity Leave or at any time during the six (6) months following her return from Maternity Leave, she must remain in the employ of the Employer, and work the working hours remaining in the balance of the six (6) months of the full-time employment; and

- (b) She will return to work on the date of the expiry of her maternity leave and where applicable, her parental leave, unless this date is modified by the Employer; and
- (c) Should she fail to return to work as provided under (a) and/or (b) above, she is indebted to the Employer for the full amount of pay received from the Employer as a maternity allowance during her entire period of maternity leave.
- 3. An employee who qualifies is entitled to a maternity leave consisting of:
 - (a) A period not exceeding seventeen (17) weeks if delivery occurs on or before the date of delivery specified in the certificate, as in Article 50:01(1)(c).
 - (b) A period of seventeen (17) weeks plus an additional period equal to the period between the date of delivery specified in the certificate and the actual date of delivery, if delivery occurs after the date mentioned in that certificate, as in Article 50:01(1)(c).
 - (c) The Employer shall vary the length of maternity leave upon proper certification by the attending physician or recommendation by the Department Head.
- 4. During the period of maternity leave, an employee who qualifies is entitled to a maternity leave allowance with the SUB Plan as follows:
 - (a) For the first two (2) weeks an employee shall receive ninety-three percent (93%) of her weekly rate of pay;
 - (b) For up to a maximum of fifteen (15) additional weeks, payments equivalent to the difference between the EI benefits the employee is eligible to receive and ninety-three percent (93%) of the employee's normal weekly earnings.

- (c) All other time as may be provided under Article 50:01 (3), shall be on a leave without pay basis.
- 5. An employee may end her Maternity Leave earlier than the date specified by giving her Employer written notice at least two weeks or one pay period, whichever is longer, before the date she wishes to end the leave.
- 6. Plan B does not apply to temporary employees.
- 7. A leave of absence under Plan B shall be considered to be an unpaid leave of absence. Income protection credits and vacation entitlement shall not accrue.

Sections 52 through 57.1(2) inclusive and Section 60 of the Employment Standards Code respecting maternity leave shall apply.

37:03 Compassionate Care Leave

An employee shall receive compassionate care leave without pay to provide care or support to a seriously ill family member, subject to the following conditions:

- (a) An employee must have completed at least thirty (30) days of employment as of the intended date of leave.
- (b) An employee who wishes to take a leave under this section must give the Employer notice of at least one (1) pay period, unless circumstances necessitate a shorter period.
- (c) An employee may take no more than two (2) periods of leave, totaling no more than eight (8) weeks, which must end no later than twenty-six (26) weeks after the day the first period of leave began. No period of leave may be less than one (1) weeks duration.
- (d) For an employee to be eligible for leave, a physician who provides care to the family member must issue a certificate stating that:

- (i) A family member of the employee has a serious medical condition with a significant risk of death within twenty-six (26) weeks from:
 - (1) The day the certificate is issued, or
 - (2) If the leave was begun before the certificate was issued, the day the leave began; and
- (ii) The family member requires the care or support on one (1) or more family members.
 - The employee must give the Employer a copy of the physician's certificate as soon as possible.
- (e) A family member for the purpose of this Article shall be defined as:
 - (i) A spouse or common-law partner of the employee;
 - (ii) A child of the employee or a child of the employee's spouse or common-law partner;
 - (iii) A parent of the employee or a spouse or common-law partner of the parent;
 - (iv) Or any other person described as family in the applicable regulations of the Employment Standards Code.
- (f) An employee may end their compassionate leave earlier than eight (8) weeks by giving the Employer at least forty-eight (48) hours' notice. Where an employee has been provided necessary time off under this section, and where the Employer has made arrangements for alternate staffing for covering the anticipated absence, the Employer shall have the right to cancel the relief shifts scheduled to cover the anticipated absence without additional cost.
- (g) Seniority shall accrue as per Article 13.

- (h) Subject to the provisions of 35:10 (a) and (b), an employee may apply to utilize incoming protection to cover part of the two (2) week Employment Insurance waiting period.
- (i) In the event that the death of a family member occurs during this period of leave the employee shall be eligible for Bereavement Leave as outlined in Article 36.

Article 38 Workers Compensation

38:01 <u>Income Protection and Workers Compensation</u>

- (a) (i) An employee who becomes injured or ill in the course of performing his/her duties must report such injury or illness as soon as possible to his/her immediate supervisor.
 - (ii) An employee unable to work because of a work-related injury or illness will inform the Employer immediately in accordance with established procedures, so that a claim for compensation benefits can be forwarded to the Workers Compensation Board (W.C.B.). Workers Compensation payment will be paid directly to the employee by W.C.B.
 - (iii) Where an employee has applied for W.C.B. benefits and where a loss of normal salary would result while awaiting a W.C.B. decision, the employee may elect to submit a written application to the Employer requesting an advance subject to the following conditions:
 - (A) Advance payment(s) shall not exceed the employee's basic salary as defined in this Agreement (exclusive of overtime), less the employee's usual income tax deductions, Canada Pension Plan contributions, and E.I. contributions.
 - (B) The advance(s) will cover the period of time from the date of injury until the date the final W.C.B. decision is received, however in no case shall the total amount of the advance

- exceed seventy percent (70%) of the value of the employee's accumulated income protection credits.
- (C) The employee shall reimburse the Employer by assigning sufficient W.C.B. payments to be paid directly to the Employer to offset the total amount of the advance.
- (D) In the event the W.C.B. disallows the claim, including any appeal, the employee shall be paid for the absence in accordance with the income protection provisions of this Collective Agreement and the Employer shall recover the total amount of the advance by payroll deduction.
- (E) Upon written request, the Employer will provide a statement to the employee indicating the amount of advance payment(s) made and repayment(s) received by the Employer.
- (b) (i) An employee who has accumulated sufficient income protection credits may elect to submit a written application to the Employer requesting that the Employer supplement the W.C.B. payments. The amount of such supplement will equal ten percent (10%) of the employee's regular net salary not earned due to the time loss. Regular net salary will be based on the employee's basic salary as defined in this Agreement (exclusive of overtime), less the employee's usual income tax deduction, Canada Pension Plan contributions and Employment Insurance contributions.
 - (ii) The Employer's supplement shall be charged to the employee's accumulated income protection credits and such supplement shall be paid until the employee's accumulated income protection credits are exhausted, or until one hundred and nineteen (119) calendar days have elapsed since the first day of supplement, whichever occurs first.
 - (iii) Subject to the provisions of each plan, the employee may request in writing that the Employer deduct from the supplement, if

sufficient, the contributions which would have been paid by the employee to the Employer's pension plan, dental care plan, D&R plan and group life insurance plan as if the employee was not disabled. If the supplement is not sufficient, or where the employee elects to receive an advance, the employee may, subject to the provisions of each plan, forward self-payments to the Employer to ensure the continuation of these benefit plans. The Employer will contribute its usual contributions to these benefit plans while the employee contributes.

- (iv) Further to this, the Employer shall notify the Workers Compensation Board of salary adjustments at the time they occur.
- (v) In accordance with Section 41 (6) (b) of the Workers
 Compensation Act of Manitoba, the Employer shall make
 application to the Workers Compensation Board by January 1,
 1994, so that the W.C.B. may determine whether or not the
 supplements referenced in (B) (i) above shall continue in effect after
 January 1, 1995.
- (vi) If at any time it is decided by the Workers Compensation Board that any payment to be made to the employee by the Employer must be offset against benefits otherwise payable by the Workers Compensation Board, then such payment shall not be payable.
- (c) Where an employee is injured on the job and is required to leave for medical treatment and/or is sent home by management due to the injury, the employee shall incur no loss in regular pay and benefits for the day on which the accident occurs.
- (d) (i) Where an employee is fit to return to work, the employee shall return to her position of employment, provided it is still a current position.
 - (ii) Where such an employee is unable to return to her position of employment because she is physically or mentally unable to carry

out her former duties, the Employer shall endeavour to place her in a comparable job or provide training and assistance that may enable her to acquire another comparable job within the Authority.

Article 39 Jury or Witness Duty

- 39:01 Leave of absence without loss of pay shall be granted to an employee who is required to attend jury duty, or where the employee is summoned as a witness in a legal proceeding other than a legal proceeding occasioned by the employee's private affairs.
- 39:02 If an employee receives any fees or stipend for being a witness or juror, she shall give same to the Employer excluding any amount which is for reimbursement of expenses paid her for being a witness or juror.

Article 40 Employee Expenses

- **40:01** The Employer shall reimburse employees for reasonable expenses incurred in the course of their duties as authorized by the Employer subject to the following.
- 40:02 An employee shall be reimbursed for the actual costs of overnight accommodation(s) at a conveniently and comfortably equipped commercial establishment, taxi fare(s), or vehicle rental(s) as dictated by the nature of the travel/work per 40:01 above. Accommodation shall be reserved for the employee by the Employer prior to her departure and billed, if possible, directly back to the Employer. Taxi fares and vehicle rentals shall be paid upon submission of receipts.
- 40:03 Air or Rail tickets and reservations shall be made and paid for by the Employer for the employee prior to her departure.
- 40:04 An employee shall be paid five (5) dollars as a per diem to cover incidental expenses for each night the employee is away from Churchill on business as per 40:01 above.

40:05 An employee shall receive the following amounts for each meal that she is absent from Churchill on Authority business as per 40:01 above:

Breakfast - \$10.00

Dinner - \$15.00

Supper - \$20.00

40:06 Where an employee arranges for private accommodations while on Authority business, she shall receive twenty dollars (\$20.00) per night away on Authority business in lieu of claiming for commercial accommodation's costs in 40:02 above.

40:07 The conditions of outward removal reimbursement for employees as in effect at the time of hiring of an employee shall not be altered in the event of the termination of that employee. Inward and outward removal shall be upgraded to current rates.

The Employer agrees to amend its policy on a non-prejudice, non-precedent setting basis to allow for the following:

MGEU bargaining members upon retirement shall be eligible for the Centres Policy on Outward Removal. This is contingent upon the employee moving out of Churchill.

40:08 An employee who is required to use a Personal Motor Vehicle in the course of performing duties on behalf of the Employer, shall be reimbursed as follows:

Summer Months (April 16 - October 14)

Three dollars and fifty cents (\$3.50) per trip in town.

Twelve dollars (\$12.00) per return trip to airport.

Winter Months (October 15 - April 15)

Seven dollars (\$7.00) per trip in town.

Fifteen dollars (\$15.00) per return trip to airport.

In addition to the above a non-accumulative daily allowance of seven dollars and fifty cents (\$7.50) shall be paid for each day that an employee is required to use a personal motor vehicle.

Article 41 Patient Escort Duty

- 41:01 Where an employee is required to escort a patient, she shall be paid at straight time for all time spent with the patient, defined as all time during the period in which the patient becomes the employee's responsibility and until such time the patient is turned over to another person or agency as directed.
- 41:02 Wherever possible, escort duty shall be rotated as equitably as possible amongst employees who are qualified to perform the required escort, and who make a request to the Evacuation Officer to be put on the list. Such list shall be updated as necessary and shall be used as the basis for rotational call.
- 41:03 Wherever possible, an employee on escort duty shall be given her days off in conjunction with the evacuation.
- 41:04 In the event that no days off are scheduled in conjunction with escort duty, an employee shall suffer no loss of regular pay for shifts not worked as a result of the escort trip, the return trip to Churchill by fastest available means of transportation, and necessary waiting time between trips.

Article 42 Pay Plan

42:01 The provision of any pay plan insofar as it applies to employees covered by this Agreement, after being mutually agreed upon by both parties hereto shall be incorporated into and form part of this Agreement, and will be known as Schedule "A". Payday shall be every second Friday.

Article 43 Employee Assistance Program

- 43:01 The Employer recognizes that alcohol and drug abuse and any other personal problem(s) could lead to serious health and behavioural problems affecting many areas of an employee's life. It also recognizes that alcohol and/or drug addiction and any other personal problem(s) are defined as a treatable illness.
- 43:02 In the event a supervisor has documented evidence of deteriorating work performance on the part of an employee and suspects alcohol and/or drug addiction to be involved, she may make a mandatory referral of that employee to a physician.
- 43:03 If the employee does not keep the physician's appointment or enter into prescribed treatment, normal disciplinary action may be taken.
- 43:04 The confidential nature of the medical records of employees with alcohol and/or drug problems will be treated in the same manner as other medical information.
- 43:05 If an employee requires time off work for treatment, she will be eligible for any income protection accumulated. If the period of absence required for treatment extends beyond accumulated income protection, the employee may be granted either a leave of absence without pay and/or accumulated vacation leave.
- 43:06 The Employee Assistance Program shall be culturally sensitive, and that the use of spiritual elders can be used where deemed to be appropriate.

Article 44 Damage to Personal Property

44:01 In recognition of the performance of duties, employees may have their clothing or other personal property damaged, the Employer agrees to make reasonable compensation.

Article 45 Video Display Terminals

45:01 A VDT Operator who is required to work at a Video Display Terminal (VDT) for twenty-five percent (25%) or more of the normal work week shall upon request have her eyes examined by an Optometrist or Ophthalmologist once per year. The Optometrist or Ophthalmologist shall be selected by the Churchill Health Centre or an Optometrist or Ophthalmologist of the employee's choice acceptable to the **Employer**.

The Churchill Health Centre shall pay the fee of the Optometrist or Ophthalmologist for such examination or tests when not covered by a medical plan.

- 45:02 A pregnant VDT Operator may request a job re-assignment for the period of pregnancy by forwarding a written request to the Employer along with a certificate from a duly qualified medical practitioner certifying she is pregnant. Upon receipt of the request the Employer, where possible, will assign the VDT Operator to an alternate position and/or classification or to alternate duties within five (5) working days of the request. Where the Employer is unable to do this, the Executive Director of the Churchill Health Centre and the Union will meet without delay in an effort to resolve the matter.
- 45:03 Where a VDT Operator is of the opinion that the work results in undue eye fatigue, the employee may request a review of the job duties. The Churchill Health Centre will endeavour to design the job of the Operator in a manner that will, whenever practicable, permit a VDT Operator to be assigned at least ten (10) minutes of alternate duties during any two (2) hour period of continuous operation.

Article 46 Technological Change

46:01 Technological change shall mean the introduction by an Employer into his work, undertaking or business of equipment or material of a different nature or kind than that previously used by him in the operation of the work, undertaking or business, and a change in the manner in which the Employer

carries on the work, undertaking or business that is directly related to the introduction of that equipment or material.

In the event of a technological change which will displace or affect the classification of employees in the bargaining unit:

- (a) The Employer shall notify the Union at least one hundred and twenty (120) days before the introduction of any technological change, with a detailed description of the project it intends to carry out, disclosing all foreseeable effects and repercussions on employees.
- (b) Negotiations on the effects of the technological change will take place not later than ninety (90) days prior to the intended date of implementation.
- (c) If the Union and the Employer fail to agree upon measures to protect the employees from any adverse effects, the matter may be referred by either party to arbitration as provided for under the terms of this Agreement.
- An employee who is displaced from her job as a result of the technological change shall be given an opportunity to fill any vacancy for which she has institutional seniority and for which she has the qualifications and ability to perform. If there is no vacancy, she shall have the right to displace employees with less institutional seniority, in accordance with layoff procedures specified in this Agreement.
 - (a) Where new or greater skills are required than are already possessed by affected employees' under the present methods of operations as a result of the technological change, the Employer agrees that employees shall be trained on the new equipment or new methods of operation, and said training shall be provided and paid for by the Employer during normal working hours if possible. In addition, at the option of the Employer, the employee may be trained in a new area in respect of which there is a demand within the facility for individuals possessing such skills. A reasonable training period (not to exceed twelve [12] months) will be

- provided by the Employer. During the above training periods the employees shall be paid at their current rate of pay.
- (b) The Employer agrees that where two (2) or more employees require training in (a) above, first consideration shall be given to the employee with the most institutional seniority.

Article 47 Healthcare Employees Benefits Plan- Disability and Rehabilitation Plan (DNR)

47:01 (a) The Employer agrees to participate in the HEB Disability and Rehabilitation (D&R) Plan. The benefit levels will be as stipulated in the D&R Plan. The Employer will pay the D&R premium to a maximum of 2.3% of base salary.

The parties agree that income protection credits and Workers Compensation benefits will be used where applicable, to offset the elimination period. Once the elimination period has been exhausted, and subject to the approval of the employees' application for D&R benefits by HEB, the employee may commence drawing disability benefits. It is understood that the elimination period for the Disability and Rehabilitation Plan is one hundred and nineteen (119) calendar days. An employee may claim income protection benefits for the period of time not to exceed this elimination period and payment of accrued income protection within the elimination period represents the maximum, amount of income protection available to the employee regardless of the dispensation of the D&R application or the status of the D&R application or the status of the D&R application on the 120th calendar day. An employee may not utilize income protection contiguous to the date of termination of D&R coverage.

(b) Where an employee has been away from work due to illness for four consecutive weeks the employee must complete all required documentation and make application for coverage under the HEB

D&R Plan. The Employer and the Union are willing to assist the employee with completion of the documentation/application should the employee request.

- (c) Subject to compliance with paragraph 2, in the event;
 - (i) An employee does not have sufficient accrued income protection to cover the 119 calendar day elimination period, or
 - (ii) The employee's D&R application has not been approved by the end of the elimination period.

The Employer shall pay the D&R Premium, Health Plan Premium, and Dental Plan Premium in respect of any portion of the elimination period where the employee is not in receipt of paid income protection or in respect of the period of time between the end of the elimination period and the date of final disposition of the employee's D&R application.

Article 48 Workplace Safety and Health

- 48:01 The Employer and the Union recognize that safety, accident prevention, and the preservation of health are of primary importance in the Authority's operations and that these activities require the combined efforts of the Employer, the Union and the employee.
- 48:02 The Employer will provide its employees with safe working conditions, equipment and materials, and will continue to ensure that reasonable precautions are taken.
- 48:03 The Union will continue to make every effort to obtain cooperation of each employee within the bargaining unit in the observation of all reasonable safety rules, practices and procedures.
- **48:04** Every employee shall take all reasonable precautions and follow all reasonable safety rules, practices and procedures in order to protect the employee's

safety and health and the safety and health of other persons who may be affected by the employee's acts or omissions at work.

- 48:05 (a) A joint Workplace Safety and Health Committee shall exist to examine all aspects of safety and health within the site. Union representation on the committee shall not exceed two (2) members who shall be appointed by the Union.
 - (b) The Employer and the Union recognize the role of the local Workplace Safety and Health Committee in accordance with the Workplace Safety and Health Act of Manitoba and will comply with the Workplace Safety and Health Act of Manitoba.
 - (c) The joint Workplace Safety and Health Committee shall hold meetings at regular intervals for jointly considering, monitoring, inspecting, investigating and reviewing health and safety conditions and practices within the site. The duties of the committee include:
 - (i) The receipt, consideration and disposition of concerns and complaints respecting the safety and health of the workers;
 - (ii) Participation in the identification of risks to the safety or health of workers or other persons, arising out of or in connection with activities in the workplace;
 - (iii) The development and promotion of measures to protect the safety, health and welfare of the persons in the workplace, and checking the effectiveness of such measures;
 - (iv) Cooperation with the occupational health service;
 - (v) Cooperation with a safety and health officer who is exercising his duties under the Workplace Safety and Health Act;
 - (vi) The development and promotion of programs for education and information concerning safety and health in the workplace;

- (vii) The maintenance of records in connection with the receipt and disposition of concerns and complaints and the attendance to other matters relating to the duties of the committee; and
- (viii) Such other duties as may be specified in the Workplace Safety and Health Act or regulations.
- (d) Minutes of the Workplace Safety and Health Committee meeting shall be recorded, provided to committee members and posted on the appropriate bulletin boards.
- 48:06 Upon application, each employee on the Workplace Safety and Health Committee or each employee's respective designate shall be granted paid educational leave each year for the number of hours the employee normally works during two (2) working days, without loss of pay or benefits, for the purpose of attending workplace safety and health training seminars, programs for courses of instruction offered by the Workplace Safety and Health Division or approved by the Workplace Safety and Health Committee in consultation with the Union.

Article 49 Part Time Additional Hours

- 49:01 (a) Part-time employees who indicate in writing to the Employer that they wish to work additional hours shall be offered such work when available providing they are able to perform the required duties. Such additional hours shall be allocated on a rotational basis within the department amongst those employees who have requested additional hours. It is further understood that such additional hours shall be offered only to the extent that they will not incur any overtime costs to the Employer.
 - (b) Should a part-time employee as described in (a) above refuse to report for work on three (3) occasions in a calendar year when requested and without an explanation satisfactory to the Employer, she will henceforth be offered additional hours at the sole discretion of the Employer until the next seniority list is posted.

- (c) (i) Where a part-time employee is unable to work all or part of an additional casual shift for any reason, payment shall be made only in respect of hours actually worked.
 - (ii) Additional casual hours worked by a part-time employee shall be included in the determination of seniority.
 - (iii) Additional casual hours worked by a part-time employee shall be included when determining an employee's earned vacation, accumulated income protection credits, and general holiday pay.
 - (iv) When a part-time employee is scheduled to work additional shifts for a period of time as described under Article 4:07 ("TERM POSITION"), she shall be entitled to income protection benefits and bereavement leave.

Schedule "B"

Normal Daily Hours of Work

7 ½ Hours	8 Hours
Accounting Clerk	CSR Aid
Activity Worker	Home Support Worker
Administration Clerk	Housekeeping Aide
Administration Secretary	Suppliers/Distribution Aide
Capital Projects Facility Coordinator	Ward Clerk
Change Technologist	Cook
Child Care Assistant	Dietary Aide
Children's Centre Coordinator	Receiving Home Parent
Clerk Typist	EMS
Community Wellness Worker	
Community Services Clerk	
Early Childhood Education II & III	
Family Services Worker	11 ½ Hours
Health Information Clerk	Nurse Aide Trained
Health Information Technician	Nurse Aide Trainee
Laboratory or Radiology	Health Care Aide
Laboratory/Radiology (cross trained)	
Maintenance Helper	
Maintenance Tradesperson	
Maintenance Worker	
Medical Clerk	
NPTP Clerk	
Parole and Probation Officer	
Pharmacy Clerk	
Pharmacy Technician	
Radiology/Ultrasound (cross trained)	
Receiving Home Coordinator	
Social Worker	
Stores/Transportation Assistant	
Radiology Technologist	
Ultrasound Technologist	

List of Out of Scope Employees

As per MGEU/Churchill Regional Health Authority Bargaining Unit

Chief Operating Officer

Director of Corporate Services

Manager of Patient Care and Quality Assurance

Manager of Integrated Primary Care and Quality Assurance

Human Resources Manager

Human Resources Officer

EMS Manager

Executive Assistant

Health Information Services Supervisor

Materials Management Supervisor

Network Administrator

Pharmacist

Financial Assistant/Payroll

IN WITNESS WHEREOF A representative of WRHA Churchill Health Centre has hereunto set their hand for, and on behalf of, Laura Nelson, Staff Representative of Manitoba Government and General Employees' Union has set her hand for, and on behalf of, Manitoba Government and General Employees' Union.

Letter of Understanding

between

Winnipeg Regional Health Authority Churchill Health Centre

and

Manitoba Government and General Employees' Union

Re: Additional Hours Utilization Review for Casual Employees

Whereas the parties recognize that there may be a proliferation of regular positions having a low EFT and a proliferation of utilization of casual work;

And whereas it is the intent of the parties to maximize the EFT of part-time positions and the creation of as many full-time positions as is reasonably possible;

And whereas by minimizing the use of casual work; the parties agree that these will be the potential to convert casual employment into regular employment status:

And whereas the parties wish to investigate and address these issues;

Therefore the parties have agreed that these issues will be examined utilizing the following guidelines;

(a) When it is determined by the Employer that a vacancy will be filled, the Employer and the Union will examine the potential of reallocating part, or all of the vacant EFT of part-time positions, in accordance with the Collective Agreement, to qualified part-time employees within the relevant classification, within the service department / patient care unit, or within the Centre as applicable.

- (b) Part-time employees who wish to increase their EFT under the provision of this Letter of Understanding will be required to indicate in writing to the Employer within 60 days of ratification of the Collective Agreement and no later than May 1 of each year thereafter.
- (c) The Employer and the Union will meet in order to identify the most appropriate method of reallocating such EFT. Unless otherwise mutually agreed, such reallocation will not require job posting under Article 15 or invoking of any provisions of Article 15.
- (d) In the event that mutual agreement cannot be reached regarding the reallocation of additional hours, a regular part-time position will then be posted.
- (e) The nature and the rate of utilization of additional hours (including casual hours) worked will be examined by the Employer and the Union on a semi-annual basis, during the second and fourth quarter of each calendar year, to determine whether such hours may be incorporated into regular positions or, whether regular or term positions could be created based on operational need. If it is determined that regular or term positions will be created, the Union and the Employer will meet to discuss the process under which the newly created positions will be posted or allocated.

Signed thisday of	March 2015.
al Care	West (
On behalf of WRHA Churchill	On behalf of Manitoba Government
Health Centre	and General Employees' Union
On behalf of WRI-LA Churchill	Miller
Health Centre	On behalf of Manitoba Government
ricaini Centre	and General Employees' Union

between

Winnipeg Regional Health Authority Churchill Health Centre

and

Manitoba Government and General Employees' Union

Re: Past Practices

The Employer agrees to provide reasonable notice, to the Union, of any changes to any current practices enjoyed between the parties. In addition the Employer agrees to meet with the Union to discuss the resulting change in practice.

Signed this 10th day of	March 2015.
San D	
On behalf of WRHA Churchill	On behalf of Manitoba Government
Health Centre	and General Employees' Union
boller.	Miller
On behalf of WRI-IA Churchill	On behalf of Manitoba Government
Health Centre	and General Employees' Union

between

Winnipeg Regional Health Authority Churchill Health Centre

and

Manitoba Government and General Employees' Union

Re: Inclement Weather

The Employer will endeavour to provide comfortable environmental conditions in the workplace. The following are guidelines for addressing inclement weather conditions:

- (a) Should the temperature exceed twenty-seven (27°C) degrees Celsius the following administrative controls may be utilized:
 - Schedule an increase in the frequency and duration of rest breaks.
 - - Schedule hot jobs to cooler times of the day.
 - Provide cool drinking water near the work location and educate and encourage employees to drink the water even if not thirsty.
 - - Slow down the work pace or assign additional workers to decrease the workload.
 - Educate employees to recognize the signs and symptoms of heat related illness.
 - Use nearby cooler areas for rest areas.

If these measures prove not to be effective, employees may be allowed to leave work early and suffer no loss of pay or benefits, provided safe patient/client care is maintained. The Supervisor, in consultation with the Chief Executive Officer or designate shall make the final determination.

- (b) When the temperature reaches minus fifty five (-55°C) degrees Celsius or the wind chill is equivalent to minus fifty five (-55°C), or when the visibility is down to one-quarter (½) mile or point four (.4) kilometres, those employees already at the worksite shall remain until replacement staff has arrived and/or until transportation home can be arranged. Those employees scheduled to work but who have not arrived shall remain at their home and accessible until transportation to work can be arranged.
- (c) The local weather office will be the information source. The information will be available at the following times:

7:35 a.m.,

12:00 noon

3:00 p.m.

(d) The department supervisor will verify weather conditions at these times, and, after consultation with the Chief Executive Officer or designate, will advise their employees should they not be required for work and/or transportation arrangements.

between

Winnipeg Regional Health Authority Churchill Health Centre

and

Manitoba Government and General Employees' Union

Re: Wage Adjustment – Professional/Technical Component Classifications

For the continued maintenance of wage standardization, and to ensure the salary scales of Professional / Technical classifications as represented by MGEU maintain an appropriate relationship to salary scales of the same classifications represented by the MGEU (Professional / Technical central table), application of current and future wage adjustment will be as follows:

- 1. Classifications listed herein shall have wages adjusted in accordance with the value and effective date as established within the MGEU central table collective agreement.
- 2. Classifications listed herein may be revised to remove or include additional classifications, as deemed necessary by the parties, for the continued maintenance of wage standardization.
- 3. Affected classifications:

Churchill RHA Classification Title
Pharmacy Assistants
EMS
Addictions Worker
Adult Mental Health Worker
Mental Health Worker
Child and Family Services Worker
Child and Family & Wellness Counselor
Adult & Geriatric Mental Health Worker

Signed this day of	March 2015.
day .	West (
On behalf of WRHA Churchill	On behalf of Manitoba Government
Health Centre	and General Employees' Union
boller.	Miller
On behalf of WRI-IA Churchill	On behalf of Manitoba Government
Health Centre	and General Employees' Union

between

Winnipeg Regional Health Authority Churchill Health Centre

and

Manitoba Government and General Employees' Union

Re: Northern Isolation/Remoteness Retention Allowance – Professional/Technical Positions Only

The parties agree that a Northern Isolation /Remoteness Retention Allowance shall be payable in a lump sum annually to all MGEU - Professional/Technical members (including full-time, part-time and casual) within the Winnipeg Regional Health Authority-Churchill Division (as listed below), as follows:

Pharmacy Assistants
EMS
Addictions Worker
Adult Mental Health Worker
Mental Health Worker
Child and Family Services Worker
Child and Family & Wellness Counselor
Adult & Geriatric Mental Health Worker

Effective April 1, 2014 \$9,000.00 for each full-time employee - with payment being made following March 31, 2014, calculated based on employment up to and including March 31, 2014. (subject to Note #1)

NOTE # 1

The above amounts shall be prorated on the basis of all regular hours worked in the previous twelve (12) month period (April 1st of the previous year to March 31st of the current year).

NOTE # 2

The parties further agree that such lump sum payments shall be provided to applicable employees within one (1) pay period of the last date of the bi-weekly period following March 31st of each year. This lump sum payment shall be paid on a separate deposit without a surcharge.

between

Winnipeg Regional Health Authority Churchill Health Centre

and

Manitoba Government and General Employees' Union

Re: Northern Isolation/Remoteness Allowance (excluding those paid under MOU #4 above)

- 1. The parties agree that a Northern Isolation/Remoteness Retention Allowance shall be payable in a lump sum annually to all MGEU members with greater than 2 years of employment from their last date of hire as determined on March 31st of each year (including full-time, part-time and casual) within WRHA Churchill as follows:
- 2. Effective April 1, 2016: \$1,000.00 for each full-time employee, with the first payment being made March 31, 2017, calculated based on employment up to and including March 31, 2017.
- 3. For part-time and casual employees, the above amount shall be prorated on the basis of all regular hours worked or paid in the previous twelve (12) month period (April 1st of the previous year to March 31st of the current year).
- 4. The parties further agree that such lump sum payment shall be provided to applicable employees within one full (1) pay period of the last date of the biweekly period following March 31st of each year. This lump sum payment shall be paid on a separate cheque without a surcharge.

5. For greater clarity, an employee must have completed 2 years of employment as of March 31st, 2016 in order to qualify for the first payment.

Signed thisday of	March 2015.
Say	We of (
On behalf of WRHA Churchill	On behalf of Manitoba Government
Health Centre	and General Employees' Union
boller.	Miller
On behalf of WRI-IA Churchill	On behalf of Manitoba Government
Health Centre	and General Employees' Union

between

Winnipeg Regional Health Authority Churchill Health Centre

and

Manitoba Government and General Employees' Union

Re: Churchill Regional Health Authority - Article 14:04 Housing Policy

The Employer hereto agrees to conform with the Housing Policy as per its original intent for Recruitment and Retention of external hires from outside the community.

Signed this day of	March 2015.
Say D	West (
On behalf of WRHA Churchill	On behalf of Manitoba Government
Health Centre	and General Employees' Union
boller.	Miller
On behalf of WRI-IA Churchill	On behalf of Manitoba Government
Health Centre	and General Employees' Union

between

Winnipeg Regional Health Authority Churchill Health Centre

and

Manitoba Government and General Employees' Union

Re: Pension or Benefit Plan Improvements

During the term of the 2012 to 2017 collective agreement, should another healthcare union receive enhanced pension or benefit plan improvements, the WRHA-Churchill-MGEU unit will also receive the same enhancements at the same time.

Signed this day of	March 2015.
ES CONTRACTOR OF THE PARTY OF T	
On behalf of WRHA Churchill	On behalf of Manitoba Government
Health Centre	and General Employees' Union
boller.	Miller
On behalf of WRI-IA Churchill	On behalf of Manitoba Government
Health Centre	and General Employees' Union

between

Winnipeg Regional Health Authority Churchill Health Centre

and

Manitoba Government and General Employees' Union

Re: Maintenance and On Call Schedule

The Employer and Union agree to the Maintenance and On Call schedule that is currently being administered. It is agreed that this schedule will not change without appropriate notice to the union.

General Wage Increases and Long Service Step

April 1, 2012	0.00%
April 1, 2013	0.00%
April 1, 2014	2.50%
April 1, 2015	2.50%
April 1, 2016	2.00%

Long Service Step

- 1. Effective October 1, 2014 a Long Service Step equivalent to 2.00% shall be added to Schedule A. Employees shall be eligible for the Long Service Step identified in Schedule A upon completion of the following:
 - (a) Twenty (20) or more years of continuous service; and
 - (b) The employee has been at the maximum step of their salary scale for a minimum of twelve (12) consecutive months.
- 2. Employees who do not meet the above criteria on October 1, 2014 shall be eligible for the Long Service Step on the employee's anniversary date in which the employee meets both conditions outlined in (1) above.
- Note: For the purposes of (1) and (2) continuous service shall be calculated based on continuous calendar years of service in an EFT position (FT, PT or Term).

Schedule "A" - Salary Schedule

Effective April 1, 2012

Employer Classification	Annual Hours		Start	Year 1	Year 2	Year 3	Year 4	Year 5	Year 6	Year 7	Year 8	Year 9
Dietary Aide	2080	Hourly	14.479	14.913	15.361	15.822	16.296	16.785				
		Monthly	2,509.69	2,584.92	2,662.57	2,742.48	2,824.64	2,909.40				
		Annual	30,116.32	31,019.04	31,950.88	32,909.76	33,895.68	34,912.80				
Housekeeping Aide	2080	Hourly	14.479	14.913	15.361	15.822	16.296	16.785				
		Monthly	2,509.69	2,584.92	2,662.57	2,742.48	2,824.64	2,909.40				
		Annual	30,116.32	31,019.04	31,950.88	32,909.76	33,895.68	34,912.80				
Activity Worker	1950	Hourly	15.040	15.491	15.956	16.434	16.927	17.435				
		Monthly	2,444.00	2,517.29	2,592.85	2,670.53	2,750.64	2,833.19				
		Annual	29,328.00	30,207.45	31,114.20	32,046.30	33,007.65	33,998.25				
Receiving Home Parent	2080	Hourly	15.206	15.567	15.924	16.315						
		Monthly	2,635.71	2,698.28	2,760.16	2,827.93						
		Annual	31,628.48	32,379.36	33,121.92	33,935.20						
Supplies / Distribution Aide	2080	Hourly	15.366	15.687	16.009	16.328						
		Monthly	2,663.44	2,719.08	2,774.89	2,830.19						
		Annual	31,961.28	32,628.96	33,298.72	33,962.24						
Home Support Worker I	2080	Hourly	15.366	15.687	16.009	16.328						
		Monthly	2,663.44	2,719.08	2,774.89	2,830.19						
		Annual	31,961.28	32,628.96	33,298.72	33,962.24						
Cook - Uncertified	2080	Hourly	15.441	15.904	16.381	16.873	17.379	17.900				
		Monthly	2,676.44	2,756.69	2,839.37	2,924.65	3,012.36	3,102.67				
		Annual	32,117.28	33,080.32	34,072.48	35,095.84	36,148.32	37,232.00				
CSR Aide	2080	Hourly	15.550	16.016	16.497	16.992	17.502	18.027				
		Monthly	2,695.33	2,776.11	2,859.48	2,945.28	3,033.68	3,124.68				
		Annual	32,344.00	33,313.28	34,313.76	35,343.36	36,404.16	37,496.16				
Family First Visitor II	1950	Hourly	15.685	16.133	16.582	17.019	17.467	17.938				
		Monthly	2,548.81	2,621.61	2,694.58	2,765.59	2,838.39	2,914.93				
		Annual	30,585.75	31,459.35	32,334.90	33,187.05	34,060.65	34,979.10				
Clinic Aide - Untrained	2080	Hourly	16.391	16.732	17.076	17.416						
		Monthly	2,841.11	2,900.21	2,959.84	3,018.77						
		Annual	34,093.28	34,802.56	35,518.08	36,225.28						
Health Care Aide - Untrained	2080	Hourly	16.391	16.732	17.076	17.416						
		Monthly	2,841.11	2,900.21	2,959.84	3,018.77						
		Annual	34,093.28	34,802.56	35,518.08	36,225.28						

Employer Classification	Annual Hours		Start	Year 1	Year 2	Year 3	Year 4	Year 5	Year 6	Year 7	Year 8	Year 9
Child Care Assistant	1950	Hourly	16.440	16.781	17.122	17.463						
		Monthly	2,671.50	2,726.91	2,782.33	2,837.74						
		Annual	32,058.00	32,722.95	33,387.90	34,052.85						
Receiving Home Coordinator	2080	Hourly	16.788	17.199	17.609	18.015	18.427	18.836				
-		Monthly	2,909.92	2,981.16	3,052.23	3,122.60	3,194.01	3,264.91				
		Annual	34,919.04	35,773.92	36,626.72	37,471.20	38,328.16	39,178.88				
Maintenance Helper	1950	Hourly	16.805	17.154	17.498	17.865	18.211					
		Monthly	2,730.81	2,787.53	2,843.43	2,903.06	2,959.29					
		Annual	32,769.75	33,450.30	34,121.10	34,836.75	35,511.45					
Store / Transport Assistant	1950	Hourly	17.044	17.555	18.082	18.624	19.183	19.759				
		Monthly	2,769.65	2,852.69	2,938.33	3,026.40	3,117.24	3,210.84				
		Annual	33,235.80	34,232.25	35,259.90	36,316.80	37,406.85	38,530.05				
CSR - Certified	2080	Hourly	17.044	17.555	18.082	18.624	19.183	19.759				
		Monthly	2,954.29	3,042.87	3,134.21	3,228.16	3,325.05	3,424.89				
		Annual	35,451.52	36,514.40	37,610.56	38,737.92	39,900.64	41,098.72				
Clinic Aide - Trained	2080	Hourly	17.044	17.555	18.082	18.624	19.183	19.759				
		Monthly	2,954.29	3,042.87	3,134.21	3,228.16	3,325.05	3,424.89				
		Annual	35,451.52	36,514.40	37,610.56	38,737.92	39,900.64	41,098.72				
Health Care Aide - Trained	2080	Hourly	17.044	17.555	18.082	18.624	19.183	19.759				
		Monthly	2,954.29	3,042.87	3,134.21	3,228.16	3,325.05	3,424.89				
		Annual	35,451.52	36,514.40	37,610.56	38,737.92	39,900.64	41,098.72				
Ward Clerk	2080	Hourly	17.044	17.555	18.082	18.624	19.183	19.759				
		Monthly	2,954.29	3,042.87	3,134.21	3,228.16	3,325.05	3,424.89				
		Annual	35,451.52	36,514.40	37,610.56	38,737.92	39,900.64	41,098.72				
Administrative Clerk	1950	Hourly	17.187	17.570	17.952	18.336						
		Monthly	2,792.89	2,855.13	2,917.20	2,979.60						
		Annual	33,514.65	34,261.50	35,006.40	35,755.20						
Clerk Typist	1950	Hourly	17.187	17.570	17.952	18.336						
		Monthly	2,792.89	2,855.13	2,917.20	2,979.60						
		Annual	33,514.65	34,261.50	35,006.40	35,755.20						
Community Services Clerk	1950	Hourly	17.187	17.570	17.952	18.336						
		Monthly	2,792.89	2,855.13	2,917.20	2,979.60						
		Annual	33,514.65	34,261.50	35,006.40	35,755.20						
Health Information Services Clerk	1950	Hourly	17.187	17.570	17.952	18.336		-		-		
		Monthly	2,792.89	2,855.13	2,917.20	2,979.60						
		Annual	33,514.65	34,261.50	35,006.40	35,755.20						
Medical Accounts Clerk	1950	Hourly	17.187	17.570	17.952	18.336						
		Monthly	2,792.89	2,855.13	2,917.20	2,979.60						
		Annual	33,514.65	34,261.50	35,006.40	35,755.20						

Employer Classification	Annual Hours		Start	Year 1	Year 2	Year 3	Year 4	Year 5	Year 6	Year 7	Year 8	Year 9
Medical Clinic Clerk	1950	Hourly	17.187	17.570	17.952	18.336						
		Monthly	2,792.89	2,855.13	2,917.20	2,979.60						
		Annual	33,514.65	34,261.50	35,006.40	35,755.20						
Pharmacy Clerk Pharmacy Clerk	1950	Hourly	17.187	17.570	17.952	18.336						
		Monthly	2,792.89	2,855.13	2,917.20	2,979.60						
		Annual	33,514.65	34,261.50	35,006.40	35,755.20						
Early Childhood Educator II	1950	Hourly	17.211	17.593	17.977	18.357						
		Monthly	2,796.79	2,858.86	2,921.26	2,983.01						
		Annual	33,561.45	34,306.35	35,055.15	35,796.15						
Accounting Clerk	1950	Hourly	17.403	17.925	18.462	19.016	19.587	20.174				
		Monthly	2,827.99	2,912.81	3,000.08	3,090.10	3,182.89	3,278.28				
		Annual	33,935.85	34,953.75	36,000.90	37,081.20	38,194.65	39,339.30				
Administrative Secretary	1950	Hourly	17.403	17.925	18.462	19.016	19.587	20.174				
		Monthly	2,827.99	2,912.81	3,000.08	3,090.10	3,182.89	3,278.28				
		Annual	33,935.85	34,953.75	36,000.90	37,081.20	38,194.65	39,339.30				
Home Support Worker II	2080	Hourly	17.540	17.916	18.290	18.658						
		Monthly	3,040.27	3,105.44	3,170.27	3,234.05						
		Annual	36,483.20	37,265.28	38,043.20	38,808.64						
NPT P Clerk	1950	Hourly	17.861	18.397	18.949	19.517	20.103	20.706				
		Monthly	2,902.41	2,989.51	3,079.21	3,171.51	3,266.74	3,364.73				
		Annual	34,828.95	35,874.15	36,950.55	38,058.15	39,200.85	40,376.70				
Cook - Certified	2080	Hourly	17.896	18.501	19.090	19.597	20.171	20.780				
		Monthly	3,101.97	3,206.84	3,308.93	3,396.81	3,496.31	3,601.87				
		Annual	37,223.68	38,482.08	39,707.20	40,761.76	41,955.68	43,222.40				
Health Information Services	1950	Hourly	18.540	19.096	19.669	20.259	20.867	21.493				
Technician		Monthly	3,012.75	3,103.10	3,196.21	3,292.09	3,390.89	3,492.61				
		Annual	36,153.00	37,237.20	38,354.55	39,505.05	40,690.65	41,911.35				
Early Childhood Educator III	1950	Hourly	19.217	19.602	19.982	20.367						
		Monthly	3,122.76	3,185.33	3,247.08	3,309.64						
		Annual	37,473.15	38,223.90	38,964.90	39,715.65						
Maintenance Worker	1950	Hourly	19.221	19.637	20.037	20.446						
		Monthly	3,123.41	3,191.01	3,256.01	3,322.48						
		Annual	37,480.95	38,292.15	39,072.15	39,869.70						
Children's Centre Coordinator	1950	Hourly	19.781	20.219	20.654	21.090	21.528	21.963		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		<u> </u>
		Monthly	3,214.41	3,285.59	3,356.28	3,427.13	3,498.30	3,568.99				
		Annual	38,572.95	39,427.05	40,275.30	41,125.50	41,979.60	42,827.85				
Family Services Worker	1950	Hourly	21.824	22.517	23.297	24.132	24.938	25.845				
(Entry level-No degree)		Monthly	3,546.40	3,659.01	3,785.76	3,921.45	4,052.43	4,199.81				
		Annual	42,556.80	43,908.15	45,429.15	47,057.40	48,629.10	50,397.75				

Employer Classification	Annual Hours		Start	Year 1	Year 2	Year 3	Year 4	Year 5	Year 6	Year 7	Year 8	Year 9
Parole & Probation Officer	1950	Hourly	21.824	22.517	23.297	24.132	24.938	25.845				•
(Entry level-No degree)		Monthly	3,546.40	3,659.01	3,785.76	3,921.45	4,052.43	4,199.81				
		Annual	42,556.80	43,908.15	45,429.15	47,057.40	48,629.10	50,397.75				
Social Worker	1950	Hourly	21.824	22.517	23.297	24.132	24.938	25.845				
(Entry level-No degree)		Monthly	3,546.40	3,659.01	3,785.76	3,921.45	4,052.43	4,199.81				
		Annual	42,556.80	43,908.15	45,429.15	47,057.40	48,629.10	50,397.75				
Family Services Worker	1950	Hourly	23.297	24.132	24.938	25.845	26.737	27.712				
(5 to 7 yrs ExpNo degree)		Monthly	3,785.76	3,921.45	4,052.43	4,199.81	4,344.76	4,503.20				
		Annual	45,429.15	47,057.40	48,629.10	50,397.75	52,137.15	54,038.40				
Parole & Probation Officer	1950	Hourly	23.297	24.132	24.938	25.845	26.737	27.712				
(5 to 7 yrs ExpNo degree)		Monthly	3,785.76	3,921.45	4,052.43	4,199.81	4,344.76	4,503.20				
		Annual	45,429.15	47,057.40	48,629.10	50,397.75	52,137.15	54,038.40				
Social Worker	1950	Hourly	23.297	24.132	24.938	25.845	26.737	27.712				
(5 to 7 yrs ExpNo degree)		Monthly	3,785.76	3,921.45	4,052.43	4,199.81	4,344.76	4,503.20				
		Annual	45,429.15	47,057.40	48,629.10	50,397.75	52,137.15	54,038.40				
Family Services Worker	1950	Hourly	24.938	25.845	26.737	27.712	28.760	29.821	30.910	32.128		
(+7 yrs Exp No Degree)		Monthly	4,052.43	4,199.81	4,344.76	4,503.20	4,673.50	4,845.91	5,022.88	5,220.80		
		Annual	48,629.10	50,397.75	52,137.15	54,038.40	56,082.00	58,150.95	60,274.50	62,649.60		
Parole & Probation Officer	1950	Hourly	24.938	25.845	26.737	27.712	28.760	29.821	30.910	32.128		
(+7 yrs ExpNo Degree)		Monthly	4,052.43	4,199.81	4,344.76	4,503.20	4,673.50	4,845.91	5,022.88	5,220.80		
		Annual	48,629.10	50,397.75	52,137.15	54,038.40	56,082.00	58,150.95	60,274.50	62,649.60		
Social Worker	1950	Hourly	24.938	25.845	26.737	27.712	28.760	29.821	30.910	32.128		
(+7 yrs ExpNo degree)		Monthly	4,052.43	4,199.81	4,344.76	4,503.20	4,673.50	4,845.91	5,022.88	5,220.80		
		Annual	48,629.10	50,397.75	52,137.15	54,038.40	56,082.00	58,150.95	60,274.50	62,649.60		
Parole and Probation Officer	1950	Hourly	26.326	27.288	28.221	29.269	30.331	31.449	32.609	33.899	35.199	36.544
(Degree)		Monthly	4,277.98	4,434.30	4,585.91	4,756.21	4,928.79	5,110.46	5,298.96	5,508.59	5,719.84	5,938.40
_		Annual	51,335.70	53,211.60	55,030.95	57,074.55	59,145.45	61,325.55	63,587.55	66,103.05	68,638.05	71,260.80
Maintenance Trades Person	1950	Hourly	27.404	28.407	29.454	30.596						
		Monthly	4,453.15	4,616.14	4,786.28	4,971.85						
		Annual	53,437.80	55,393.65	57,435.30	59,662.20						
Capital Projects / Facility	1950	Hourly	31.466	32.410	33.382	34.385	35.415	36.478				
Coordinator		Monthly	5,113.23	5,266.63	5,424.58	5,587.56	5,754.94	5,927.68				
		Annual	61,358.70	63,199.50	65,094.90	67,050.75	69,059.25	71,132.10				

Effective April 1, 2012

Employer Classification	Annual Hours		Start	Year 1	Year 2	Year 3	Year 4	Year 5	Year 6	Year 7	Year 8	Year 9
Pharmacy Technician Pharmacy Technician	2080	Hourly	17.441	18.232	18.897	19.608	20.386	21.196				
		Monthly	3,023.11	3,160.21	3,275.48	3,398.72	3,533.57	3,673.97				
		Annual	36,277.28	37,922.56	39,305.76	40,784.64	42,402.88	44,087.68				
Technician - Paramedic	2080	Hourly	20.121	20.715	21.329	21.959	22.609					
		Monthly	3,487.64	3,590.60	3,697.03	3,806.23	3,918.89					
		Annual	41,851.68	43,087.20	44,364.32	45,674.72	47,026.72					
Technician - Intermediate	2080	Hourly	22.254	22.914	23.592	24.290	25.007					
Paramedic		Monthly	3,857.36	3,971.76	4,089.28	4,210.27	4,334.55					
		Annual	46,288.32	47,661.12	49,071.36	50,523.20	52,014.56					
Social Worker (Degree)	1950	Hourly	29.500	30.506	31.637	32.777	33.990	35.243	36.610	38.048	39.518	40.689
		Monthly	4,793.67	4,957.30	5,140.97	5,326.30	5,523.33	5,727.03	5,949.10	6,182.85	6,421.62	6,611.96
		Annual	57,524.07	59,487.63	61,691.61	63,915.64	66,279.92	68,724.34	71,389.16	74,194.23	77,059.42	79,343.55
Family Services Worker (Degree)	1950	Hourly	29.500	30.506	31.637	32.777	33.990	35.243	36.610	38.048	39.518	40.689
		Monthly	4,793.67	4,957.30	5,140.97	5,326.30	5,523.33	5,727.03	5,949.10	6,182.85	6,421.62	6,611.96
		Annual	57,524.07	59,487.63	61,691.61	63,915.64	66,279.92	68,724.34	71,389.16	74,194.23	77,059.42	79,343.55
Community Wellness Worker	1950	Hourly	29.500	30.506	31.637	32.777	33.990	35.243	36.610	38.048	39.518	40.689
(Degree)		Monthly	4,793.67	4,957.30	5,140.97	5,326.30	5,523.33	5,727.03	5,949.10	6,182.85	6,421.62	6,611.96
		Annual	57,524.07	59,487.63	61,691.61	63,915.64	66,279.92	68,724.34	71,389.16	74,194.23	77,059.42	79,343.55

Effective October 1, 2012

Employer Classification	Annual Hours		Start	Year 1	Year 2	Year 3	Year 4	Year 5	Year 6	Year 7	Year 8	Year 9
Pharmacy Technician	2080	Hourly	17.441	18.232	18.897	19.608	20.386	21.196				
		Monthly	3,023.11	3,160.21	3,275.48	3,398.72	3,533.57	3,673.97				
		Annual	36,277.28	37,922.56	39,305.76	40,784.64	42,402.88	44,087.68				
Technician - Paramedic *	2080	Hourly	20.493	21.099	21.723	22.365	23.027					
		Monthly	3,552.07	3,657.10	3,765.39	3,876.59	3,991.41					
		Annual	42,624.89	43,885.22	45,184.73	46,519.07	47,896.95					
Technician - Intermediate	2080	Hourly	22.665	23.338	24.029	24.739	25.470					
Paramedic *		Monthly	3,928.65	4,045.29	4,165.01	4,288.17	4,414.79					
		Annual	47,143.80	48,543.44	49,980.09	51,458.09	52,977.45					
Social Worker (Degree)	1950	Hourly	29.500	30.506	31.637	32.777	33.990	35.243	36.610	38.048	39.518	40.689
		Monthly	4,793.67	4,957.30	5,140.97	5,326.30	5,523.33	5,727.03	5,949.10	6,182.85	6,421.62	6,611.96
		Annual	57,524.07	59,487.63	61,691.61	63,915.64	66,279.92	68,724.34	71,389.16	74,194.23	77,059.42	79,343.55
Family Services Worker (Degree)	1950	Hourly	29.500	30.506	31.637	32.777	33.990	35.243	36.610	38.048	39.518	40.689
		Monthly	4,793.67	4,957.30	5,140.97	5,326.30	5,523.33	5,727.03	5,949.10	6,182.85	6,421.62	6,611.96
		Annual	57,524.07	59,487.63	61,691.61	63,915.64	66,279.92	68,724.34	71,389.16	74,194.23	77,059.42	79,343.55
Community Wellness Worker	1950	Hourly	29.500	30.506	31.637	32.777	33.990	35.243	36.610	38.048	39.518	40.689
(Degree)		Monthly	4,793.67	4,957.30	5,140.97	5,326.30	5,523.33	5,727.03	5,949.10	6,182.85	6,421.62	6,611.96
		Annual	57,524.07	59,487.63	61,691.61	63,915.64	66,279.92	68,724.34	71,389.16	74,194.23	77,059.42	79,343.55

^{*} Market Adjustment - 1.85%. Applicable only to EMS classifications.

Effective April 1, 2013

Employer Classification	Annual Hours		Start	Year 1	Year 2	Year 3	Year 4	Year 5	Year 6	Year 7	Year 8	Year 9
Dietary Aide	2080	Hourly	14.479	14.913	15.361	15.822	16.296	16.785				
		Monthly	2,509.69	2,584.92	2,662.57	2,742.48	2,824.64	2,909.40				
		Annual	30,116.32	31,019.04	31,950.88	32,909.76	33,895.68	34,912.80				
Housekeeping Aide	2080	Hourly	14.479	14.913	15.361	15.822	16.296	16.785				
		Monthly	2,509.69	2,584.92	2,662.57	2,742.48	2,824.64	2,909.40				
		Annual	30,116.32	31,019.04	31,950.88	32,909.76	33,895.68	34,912.80				
Activity Worker	1950	Hourly	15.040	15.491	15.956	16.434	16.927	17.435				
		Monthly	2,444.00	2,517.29	2,592.85	2,670.53	2,750.64	2,833.19				
		Annual	29,328.00	30,207.45	31,114.20	32,046.30	33,007.65	33,998.25				
Receiving Home Parent	2080	Hourly	15.206	15.567	15.924	16.315						
		Monthly	2,635.71	2,698.28	2,760.16	2,827.93						
		Annual	31,628.48	32,379.36	33,121.92	33,935.20						
Supplies / Distribution Aide	2080	Hourly	15.366	15.687	16.009	16.328						
		Monthly	2,663.44	2,719.08	2,774.89	2,830.19						
		Annual	31,961.28	32,628.96	33,298.72	33,962.24						
Home Support Worker I	2080	Hourly	15.366	15.687	16.009	16.328						
		Monthly	2,663.44	2,719.08	2,774.89	2,830.19						
		Annual	31,961.28	32,628.96	33,298.72	33,962.24						
Cook - Uncertified	2080	Hourly	15.441	15.904	16.381	16.873	17.379	17.900				
		Monthly	2,676.44	2,756.69	2,839.37	2,924.65	3,012.36	3,102.67				
		Annual	32,117.28	33,080.32	34,072.48	35,095.84	36,148.32	37,232.00				
CSR Aide	2080	Hourly	15.550	16.016	16.497	16.992	17.502	18.027				
		Monthly	2,695.33	2,776.11	2,859.48	2,945.28	3,033.68	3,124.68				
		Annual	32,344.00	33,313.28	34,313.76	35,343.36	36,404.16	37,496.16				
Family First Visitor II	1950	Hourly	15.685	16.133	16.582	17.019	17.467	17.938				
		Monthly	2,548.81	2,621.61	2,694.58	2,765.59	2,838.39	2,914.93				
		Annual	30,585.75	31,459.35	32,334.90	33,187.05	34,060.65	34,979.10				
Clinic Aide - Untrained	2080	Hourly	16.391	16.732	17.076	17.416				· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
		Monthly	2,841.11	2,900.21	2,959.84	3,018.77						
		Annual	34,093.28	34,802.56	35,518.08	36,225.28						
Health Care Aide - Untrained	2080	Hourly	16.391	16.732	17.076	17.416						
		Monthly	2,841.11	2,900.21	2,959.84	3,018.77						
		Annual	34,093.28	34,802.56	35,518.08	36,225.28						

Employer Classification	Annual Hours		Start	Year 1	Year 2	Year 3	Year 4	Year 5	Year 6	Year 7	Year 8	Year 9
Child Care Assistant	1950	Hourly	16.440	16.781	17.122	17.463						
		Monthly	2,671.50	2,726.91	2,782.33	2,837.74						
		Annual	32,058.00	32,722.95	33,387.90	34,052.85						
Receiving Home Coordinator	2080	Hourly	16.788	17.199	17.609	18.015	18.427	18.836				
		Monthly	2,909.92	2,981.16	3,052.23	3,122.60	3,194.01	3,264.91				
		Annual	34,919.04	35,773.92	36,626.72	37,471.20	38,328.16	39,178.88				
Maintenance Helper	1950	Hourly	16.805	17.154	17.498	17.865	18.211					
		Monthly	2,730.81	2,787.53	2,843.43	2,903.06	2,959.29					
		Annual	32,769.75	33,450.30	34,121.10	34,836.75	35,511.45					
Store / Transport Assistant	1950	Hourly	17.044	17.555	18.082	18.624	19.183	19.759				
		Monthly	2,769.65	2,852.69	2,938.33	3,026.40	3,117.24	3,210.84				
		Annual	33,235.80	34,232.25	35,259.90	36,316.80	37,406.85	38,530.05				
CSR - Certified	2080	Hourly	17.044	17.555	18.082	18.624	19.183	19.759				
		Monthly	2,954.29	3,042.87	3,134.21	3,228.16	3,325.05	3,424.89				
		Annual	35,451.52	36,514.40	37,610.56	38,737.92	39,900.64	41,098.72				
Clinic Aide - Trained	2080	Hourly	17.044	17.555	18.082	18.624	19.183	19.759				
		Monthly	2,954.29	3,042.87	3,134.21	3,228.16	3,325.05	3,424.89				
		Annual	35,451.52	36,514.40	37,610.56	38,737.92	39,900.64	41,098.72				
Health Care Aide - Trained	2080	Hourly	17.044	17.555	18.082	18.624	19.183	19.759				
		Monthly	2,954.29	3,042.87	3,134.21	3,228.16	3,325.05	3,424.89				
		Annual	35,451.52	36,514.40	37,610.56	38,737.92	39,900.64	41,098.72				
Ward Clerk	2080	Hourly	17.044	17.555	18.082	18.624	19.183	19.759				
		Monthly	2,954.29	3,042.87	3,134.21	3,228.16	3,325.05	3,424.89				
		Annual	35,451.52	36,514.40	37,610.56	38,737.92	39,900.64	41,098.72				
Administrative Clerk	1950	Hourly	17.187	17.570	17.952	18.336						
		Monthly	2,792.89	2,855.13	2,917.20	2,979.60						
		Annual	33,514.65	34,261.50	35,006.40	35,755.20						
Clerk Typist	1950	Hourly	17.187	17.570	17.952	18.336						
-		Monthly	2,792.89	2,855.13	2,917.20	2,979.60						
		Annual	33,514.65	34,261.50	35,006.40	35,755.20						
Community Services Clerk	1950	Hourly	17.187	17.570	17.952	18.336						
,		Monthly	2,792.89	2,855.13	2,917.20	2,979.60						
		Annual	33,514.65	34,261.50	35,006.40	35,755.20						
Health Information Services Clerk	1950	Hourly	17.187	17.570	17.952	18.336						
		Monthly	2,792.89	2,855.13	2,917.20	2,979.60						
		Annual	33,514.65	34,261.50	35,006.40	35,755.20						
Medical Accounts Clerk	1950	Hourly	17.187	17.570	17.952	18.336						
		Monthly	2,792.89	2,855.13	2,917.20	2,979.60						
		Annual	33,514.65	34,261.50	35,006.40	35,755.20						

Employer Classification	Annual Hours		Start	Year 1	Year 2	Year 3	Year 4	Year 5	Year 6	Year 7	Year 8	Year 9
Medical Clinic Clerk	1950	Hourly	17.187	17.570	17.952	18.336						
		Monthly	2,792.89	2,855.13	2,917.20	2,979.60						
		Annual	33,514.65	34,261.50	35,006.40	35,755.20						
Pharmacy Clerk	1950	Hourly	17.187	17.570	17.952	18.336						
		Monthly	2,792.89	2,855.13	2,917.20	2,979.60						
		Annual	33,514.65	34,261.50	35,006.40	35,755.20						
Early Childhood Educator II	1950	Hourly	17.211	17.593	17.977	18.357						
		Monthly	2,796.79	2,858.86	2,921.26	2,983.01						
		Annual	33,561.45	34,306.35	35,055.15	35,796.15						
Accounting Clerk	1950	Hourly	17.403	17.925	18.462	19.016	19.587	20.174				
		Monthly	2,827.99	2,912.81	3,000.08	3,090.10	3,182.89	3,278.28				
		Annual	33,935.85	34,953.75	36,000.90	37,081.20	38,194.65	39,339.30				
Administrative Secretary	1950	Hourly	17.403	17.925	18.462	19.016	19.587	20.174				
		Monthly	2,827.99	2,912.81	3,000.08	3,090.10	3,182.89	3,278.28				
		Annual	33,935.85	34,953.75	36,000.90	37,081.20	38,194.65	39,339.30				
Home Support Worker II	2080	Hourly	17.540	17.916	18.290	18.658						
		Monthly	3,040.27	3,105.44	3,170.27	3,234.05						
		Annual	36,483.20	37,265.28	38,043.20	38,808.64						
NPTP Clerk	1950	Hourly	17.861	18.397	18.949	19.517	20.103	20.706				
		Monthly	2,902.41	2,989.51	3,079.21	3,171.51	3,266.74	3,364.73				
		Annual	34,828.95	35,874.15	36,950.55	38,058.15	39,200.85	40,376.70				
Cook - Certified	2080	Hourly	17.896	18.501	19.090	19.597	20.171	20.780				
		Monthly	3,101.97	3,206.84	3,308.93	3,396.81	3,496.31	3,601.87				
		Annual	37,223.68	38,482.08	39,707.20	40,761.76	41,955.68	43,222.40				
Health Information Services	1950	Hourly	18.540	19.096	19.669	20.259	20.867	21.493				
Technician		Monthly	3,012.75	3,103.10	3,196.21	3,292.09	3,390.89	3,492.61				
		Annual	36,153.00	37,237.20	38,354.55	39,505.05	40,690.65	41,911.35				
Early Childhood Educator III	1950	Hourly	19.217	19.602	19.982	20.367						
		Monthly	3,122.76	3,185.33	3,247.08	3,309.64						
		Annual	37,473.15	38,223.90	38,964.90	39,715.65						
Maintenance Worker	1950	Hourly	19.221	19.637	20.037	20.446						
		Monthly	3,123.41	3,191.01	3,256.01	3,322.48						
		Annual	37,480.95	38,292.15	39,072.15	39,869.70						
Children's Centre Coordinator	1950	Hourly	19.781	20.219	20.654	21.090	21.528	21.963				
		Monthly	3,214.41	3,285.59	3,356.28	3,427.13	3,498.30	3,568.99				
		Annual	38,572.95	39,427.05	40,275.30	41,125.50	41,979.60	42,827.85				
Family Services Worker	1950	Hourly	21.824	22.517	23.297	24.132	24.938	25.845				
(Entry level-No degree)		Monthly	3,546.40	3,659.01	3,785.76	3,921.45	4,052.43	4,199.81				
		Annual	42,556.80	43,908.15	45,429.15	47,057.40	48,629.10	50,397.75				

Employer Classification	Annual Hours		Start	Year 1	Year 2	Year 3	Year 4	Year 5	Year 6	Year 7	Year 8	Year 9
Parole & Probation Officer	1950	Hourly	21.824	22.517	23.297	24.132	24.938	25.845				
(Entry level-No degree)		Monthly	3,546.40	3,659.01	3,785.76	3,921.45	4,052.43	4,199.81				
		Annual	42,556.80	43,908.15	45,429.15	47,057.40	48,629.10	50,397.75				
Social Worker	1950	Hourly	21.824	22.517	23.297	24.132	24.938	25.845				
(Entry level-No degree)		Monthly	3,546.40	3,659.01	3,785.76	3,921.45	4,052.43	4,199.81				
		Annual	42,556.80	43,908.15	45,429.15	47,057.40	48,629.10	50,397.75				
Family Services Worker	1950	Hourly	23.297	24.132	24.938	25.845	26.737	27.712				
(5 to 7 yrs ExpNo degree)		Monthly	3,785.76	3,921.45	4,052.43	4,199.81	4,344.76	4,503.20				
		Annual	45,429.15	47,057.40	48,629.10	50,397.75	52,137.15	54,038.40				
Parole & Probation Officer	1950	Hourly	23.297	24.132	24.938	25.845	26.737	27.712				
(5 to 7 yrs ExpNo degree)		Monthly	3,785.76	3,921.45	4,052.43	4,199.81	4,344.76	4,503.20				
		Annual	45,429.15	47,057.40	48,629.10	50,397.75	52,137.15	54,038.40				
Social Worker	1950	Hourly	23.297	24.132	24.938	25.845	26.737	27.712				
(5 to 7 yrs ExpNo degree)		Monthly	3,785.76	3,921.45	4,052.43	4,199.81	4,344.76	4,503.20				
		Annual	45,429.15	47,057.40	48,629.10	50,397.75	52,137.15	54,038.40				
Family Services Worker	1950	Hourly	24.938	25.845	26.737	27.712	28.760	29.821	30.910	32.128		
(+7 yrs Exp No Degree)		Monthly	4,052.43	4,199.81	4,344.76	4,503.20	4,673.50	4,845.91	5,022.88	5,220.80		
		Annual	48,629.10	50,397.75	52,137.15	54,038.40	56,082.00	58,150.95	60,274.50	62,649.60		
Parole & Probation Officer	1950	Hourly	24.938	25.845	26.737	27.712	28.760	29.821	30.910	32.128		
(+7 yrs ExpNo Degree)		Monthly	4,052.43	4,199.81	4,344.76	4,503.20	4,673.50	4,845.91	5,022.88	5,220.80		
		Annual	48,629.10	50,397.75	52,137.15	54,038.40	56,082.00	58,150.95	60,274.50	62,649.60		
Social Worker	1950	Hourly	24.938	25.845	26.737	27.712	28.760	29.821	30.910	32.128		
(+7 yrs ExpNo degree)		Monthly	4,052.43	4,199.81	4,344.76	4,503.20	4,673.50	4,845.91	5,022.88	5,220.80		
		Annual	48,629.10	50,397.75	52,137.15	54,038.40	56,082.00	58,150.95	60,274.50	62,649.60		
Parole and Probation Officer	1950	Hourly	26.326	27.288	28.221	29.269	30.331	31.449	32.609	33.899	35.199	36.544
(Degree)		Monthly	4,277.98	4,434.30	4,585.91	4,756.21	4,928.79	5,110.46	5,298.96	5,508.59	5,719.84	5,938.40
		Annual	51,335.70	53,211.60	55,030.95	57,074.55	59,145.45	61,325.55	63,587.55	66,103.05	68,638.05	71,260.80
Maintenance Trades Person	1950	Hourly	27.404	28.407	29.454	30.596	-	-	-		-	
		Monthly	4,453.15	4,616.14	4,786.28	4,971.85						
		Annual	53,437.80	55,393.65	57,435.30	59,662.20						
Capital Projects / Facility	1950	Hourly	31.466	32.410	33.382	34.385	35.415	36.478				
Coordinator		Monthly	5,113.23	5,266.63	5,424.58	5,587.56	5,754.94	5,927.68				
		Annual	61,358.70	63,199.50	65,094.90	67,050.75	69,059.25	71,132.10				

Effective April 1, 2013

Employer Classification	Annual Hours		Start	Year 1	Year 2	Year 3	Year 4	Year 5	Year 6	Year 7	Year 8	Year 9	Year 20
PharmacyTechnician	2080	Hourly	17.920	18.733	19.416	20.147	20.946	21.779					22.215
-		Monthly	3,106.13	3,247.05	3,365.44	3,492.15	3,630.64	3,775.03					3,609.94
		Annual	37,273.60	38,964.64	40,385.28	41,905.76	43,567.68	45,300.32					43,319.25
Technician - Paramedic	2080	Hourly	21.056	21.679	22.321	22.980	23.661						24.134
		Monthly	3,649.76	3,757.67	3,868.94	3,983.20	4,101.18						3,921.78
		Annual	43,797.07	45,092.06	46,427.31	47,798.35	49,214.11						47,061.30
Technician - Intermediate	2080	Hourly	23.289	23.980	24.690	25.420	26.170						26.694
Paramedic		Monthly	4,036.69	4,156.53	4,279.55	4,406.10	4,536.20						4,337.78
		Annual	48,440.25	49,878.38	51,354.54	52,873.19	54,434.33						52,053.30
Social Worker (Degree) *	1950	Hourly	31.826	32.913	34.132	35.363	36.671	38.023	39.497	41.049	42.635	43.898	44.776
		Monthly	5,171.77	5,348.31	5,546.46	5,746.42	5,958.98	6,178.75	6,418.33	6,670.53	6,928.12	7,133.48	7,276.10
		Annual	62,061.29	64,179.71	66,557.54	68,956.98	71,507.74	74,144.97	77,019.98	80,046.30	83,137.48	85,601.77	87,313.20
Family Services Worker	1950	Hourly	31.826	32.913	34.132	35.363	36.671	38.023	39.497	41.049	42.635	43.898	44.776
(Degree) *		Monthly	5,171.77	5,348.31	5,546.46	5,746.42	5,958.98	6,178.75	6,418.33	6,670.53	6,928.12	7,133.48	7,276.10
		Annual	62,061.29	64,179.71	66,557.54	68,956.98	71,507.74	74,144.97	77,019.98	80,046.30	83,137.48	85,601.77	87,313.20
Community Wellness Worker	1950	Hourly	31.826	32.913	34.132	35.363	36.671	38.023	39.497	41.049	42.635	43.898	44.776
(Degree) *		Monthly	5,171.77	5,348.31	5,546.46	5,746.42	5,958.98	6,178.75	6,418.33	6,670.53	6,928.12	7,133.48	7,276.10
		Annual	62,061.29	64,179.71	66,557.54	68,956.98	71,507.74	74,144.97	77,019.98	80,046.30	83,137.48	85,601.77	87,313.20

 $[\]mbox{^*}$ Market Adjustment - 5.00% . Applicable only to Social Worker classifications.

Effective October 1, 2013

Employer Classification	Annual Hours		Start	Year 1	Year 2	Year 3	Year 4	Year 5	Year 6	Year 7	Year 8	Year 9	Year 20
PharmacyTechnician	2080	Hourly	17.920	18.733	19.416	20.147	20.946	21.779					22.215
		Monthly	3,106.13	3,247.05	3,365.44	3,492.15	3,630.64	3,775.03					3,609.94
		Annual	37,273.60	38,964.64	40,385.28	41,905.76	43,567.68	45,300.32					43,319.25
Technician - Paramedic **	2080	Hourly	21.056	21.679	22.321	22.980	23.661	24.370					24.858
		Monthly	3,649.76	3,757.67	3,868.94	3,983.20	4,101.18	4,224.21					4,039.43
		Annual	43,797.07	45,092.06	46,427.31	47,798.35	49,214.11	50,690.54					48,473.10
Technician - Intermediate	2080	Hourly	23.289	23.980	24.690	25.420	26.170	26.955					27.495
Paramedic **		Monthly	4,036.69	4,156.53	4,279.55	4,406.10	4,536.20	4,672.28					4,467.94
		Annual	48,440.25	49,878.38	51,354.54	52,873.19	54,434.33	56,067.36					53,615.25
Social Worker (Degree)	1950	Hourly	31.826	32.913	34.132	35.363	36.671	38.023	39.497	41.049	42.635	43.898	44.776
		Monthly	5,171.77	5,348.31	5,546.46	5,746.42	5,958.98	6,178.75	6,418.33	6,670.53	6,928.12	7,133.48	7,276.10
		Annual	62,061.29	64,179.71	66,557.54	68,956.98	71,507.74	74,144.97	77,019.98	80,046.30	83,137.48	85,601.77	87,313.20
Family Services Worker (Degree)	1950	Hourly	31.826	32.913	34.132	35.363	36.671	38.023	39.497	41.049	42.635	43.898	44.776
		Monthly	5,171.77	5,348.31	5,546.46	5,746.42	5,958.98	6,178.75	6,418.33	6,670.53	6,928.12	7,133.48	7,276.10
		Annual	62,061.29	64,179.71	66,557.54	68,956.98	71,507.74	74,144.97	77,019.98	80,046.30	83,137.48	85,601.77	87,313.20
Community Wellness Worker	1950	Hourly	31.826	32.913	34.132	35.363	36.671	38.023	39.497	41.049	42.635	43.898	44.776
(Degree)		Monthly	5,171.77	5,348.31	5,546.46	5,746.42	5,958.98	6,178.75	6,418.33	6,670.53	6,928.12	7,133.48	7,276.10
		Annual	62,061.29	64,179.71	66,557.54	68,956.98	71,507.74	74,144.97	77,019.98	80,046.30	83,137.48	85,601.77	87,313.20

^{**} Addition of Year 5 step.

Effective April 1, 2014 (2.5%)

Employer Classification	Annual Hours		Start	Year 1	Year 2	Year 3	Year 4	Year 5	Year 6	Year 7	Year 8	Year 9
Dietary Aide	2080	Hourly	14.841	15.286	15.745	16.217	16.704	17.205				
,		Monthly	2,572.44	2,649.57	2,729.13	2,810.95	2,895.36	2,982.20				
		Annual	30,869.28	31,794.88	32,749.60	33,731.36	34,744.32	35,786.40				
Housekeeping Aide	2080	Hourly	14.841	15.286	15.745	16.217	16.704	17.205				
		Monthly	2,572.44	2,649.57	2,729.13	2,810.95	2,895.36	2,982.20				
		Annual	30,869.28	31,794.88	32,749.60	33,731.36	34,744.32	35,786.40				
Activity Worker	1950	Hourly	15.416	15.878	16.354	16.845	17.350	17.871				
		Monthly	2,505.10	2,580.18	2,657.53	2,737.31	2,819.38	2,904.04				
		Annual	30,061.20	30,962.10	31,890.30	32,847.75	33,832.50	34,848.45				
Receiving Home Parent	2080	Hourly	15.587	15.956	16.322	16.723						
		Monthly	2,701.75	2,765.71	2,829.15	2,898.65						
		Annual	32,420.96	33,188.48	33,949.76	34,783.84						
Supplies / Distribution Aide	2080	Hourly	15.750	16.079	16.409	16.736						
		Monthly	2,730.00	2,787.03	2,844.23	2,900.91						
		Annual	32,760.00	33,444.32	34,130.72	34,810.88						
Home Support Worker I	2080	Hourly	15.750	16.079	16.409	16.736						
		Monthly	2,730.00	2,787.03	2,844.23	2,900.91						
		Annual	32,760.00	33,444.32	34,130.72	34,810.88						
Cook - Uncertified	2080	Hourly	15.827	16.302	16.791	17.294	17.813	18.348				
		Monthly	2,743.35	2,825.68	2,910.44	2,997.63	3,087.59	3,180.32				
		Annual	32,920.16	33,908.16	34,925.28	35,971.52	37,051.04	38,163.84				
CSR Aide	2080	Hourly	15.939	16.417	16.909	17.417	17.939	18.477				
		Monthly	2,762.76	2,845.61	2,930.89	3,018.95	3,109.43	3,202.68				
		Annual	33,153.12	34,147.36	35,170.72	36,227.36	37,313.12	38,432.16				
Family First Visitor II	1950	Hourly	16.077	16.537	16.996	17.444	17.904	18.387				
		Monthly	2,612.51	2,687.26	2,761.85	2,834.65	2,909.40	2,987.89				
		Annual	31,350.15	32,247.15	33,142.20	34,015.80	34,912.80	35,854.65				
Clinic Aide - Untrained	2080	Hourly	16.801	17.150	17.503	17.851						
		Monthly	2,912.17	2,972.67	3,033.85	3,094.17						
		Annual	34,946.08	35,672.00	36,406.24	37,130.08						
Health Care Aide - Untrained	2080	Hourly	16.801	17.150	17.503	17.851						
		Monthly	2,912.17	2,972.67	3,033.85	3,094.17						
		Annual	34,946.08	35,672.00	36,406.24	37,130.08						

Employer Classification	Annual Hours		Start	Year 1	Year 2	Year 3	Year 4	Year 5	Year 6	Year 7	Year 8	Year 9
Child Care Assistant	1950	Hourly	16.851	17.201	17.550	17.899						
		Monthly	2,738.29	2,795.16	2,851.88	2,908.59						
		Annual	32,859.45	33,541.95	34,222.50	34,903.05						
Receiving Home Coordinator	2080	Hourly	17.207	17.629	18.050	18.466	18.888	19.307				
		Monthly	2,982.55	3,055.69	3,128.67	3,200.77	3,273.92	3,346.55				
		Annual	35,790.56	36,668.32	37,544.00	38,409.28	39,287.04	40,158.56				
Maintenance Helper	1950	Hourly	17.226	17.583	17.936	18.311	18.666					
		Monthly	2,799.23	2,857.24	2,914.60	2,975.54	3,033.23					
		Annual	33,590.70	34,286.85	34,975.20	35,706.45	36,398.70					
Store / Transport Assistant	1950	Hourly	17.470	17.994	18.534	19.090	19.663	20.252				
		Monthly	2,838.88	2,924.03	3,011.78	3,102.13	3,195.24	3,290.95				
		Annual	34,066.50	35,088.30	36,141.30	37,225.50	38,342.85	39,491.40				
CSR - Certified	2080	Hourly	17.470	17.994	18.534	19.090	19.663	20.252				
		Monthly	3,028.13	3,118.96	3,212.56	3,308.93	3,408.25	3,510.35				
		Annual	36,337.60	37,427.52	38,550.72	39,707.20	40,899.04	42,124.16				
Clinic Aide - Trained	2080	Hourly	17.470	17.994	18.534	19.090	19.663	20.252				
		Monthly	3,028.13	3,118.96	3,212.56	3,308.93	3,408.25	3,510.35				
		Annual	36,337.60	37,427.52	38,550.72	39,707.20	40,899.04	42,124.16				
Health Care Aide - Trained	2080	Hourly	17.470	17.994	18.534	19.090	19.663	20.252				
		Monthly	3,028.13	3,118.96	3,212.56	3,308.93	3,408.25	3,510.35				
		Annual	36,337.60	37,427.52	38,550.72	39,707.20	40,899.04	42,124.16				
Ward Clerk	2080	Hourly	17.470	17.994	18.534	19.090	19.663	20.252				
		Monthly	3,028.13	3,118.96	3,212.56	3,308.93	3,408.25	3,510.35				
		Annual	36,337.60	37,427.52	38,550.72	39,707.20	40,899.04	42,124.16				
Administrative Clerk	1950	Hourly	17.617	18.010	18.401	18.795						
		Monthly	2,862.76	2,926.63	2,990.16	3,054.19						
		Annual	34,353.15	35,119.50	35,881.95	36,650.25						
Clerk Typist	1950	Hourly	17.617	18.010	18.401	18.795						
		Monthly	2,862.76	2,926.63	2,990.16	3,054.19						
		Annual	34,353.15	35,119.50	35,881.95	36,650.25						
Community Services Clerk	1950	Hourly	17.617	18.010	18.401	18.795						
		Monthly	2,862.76	2,926.63	2,990.16	3,054.19						
		Annual	34,353.15	35,119.50	35,881.95	36,650.25						
Health Information Services Clerk	1950	Hourly	17.617	18.010	18.401	18.795	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		
		Monthly	2,862.76	2,926.63	2,990.16	3,054.19						
		Annual	34,353.15	35,119.50	35,881.95	36,650.25						
Medical Accounts Clerk	1950	Hourly	17.617	18.010	18.401	18.795						
		Monthly	2,862.76	2,926.63	2,990.16	3,054.19						
		Annual	34,353.15	35,119.50	35,881.95	36,650.25						

Employer Classification	Annual Hours		Start	Year 1	Year 2	Year 3	Year 4	Year 5	Year 6	Year 7	Year 8	Year 9
Medical Clinic Clerk	1950	Hourly	17.617	18.010	18.401	18.795						
		Monthly	2,862.76	2,926.63	2,990.16	3,054.19						
		Annual	34,353.15	35,119.50	35,881.95	36,650.25						
Pharmacy Clerk	1950	Hourly	17.617	18.010	18.401	18.795						
		Monthly	2,862.76	2,926.63	2,990.16	3,054.19						
		Annual	34,353.15	35,119.50	35,881.95	36,650.25						
Early Childhood Educator II	1950	Hourly	17.642	18.033	18.427	18.815						
		Monthly	2,866.83	2,930.36	2,994.39	3,057.44						
		Annual	34,401.90	35,164.35	35,932.65	36,689.25						
Accounting Clerk	1950	Hourly	17.838	18.373	18.924	19.492	20.076	20.679				
_		Monthly	2,898.68	2,985.61	3,075.15	3,167.45	3,262.35	3,360.34				
		Annual	34,784.10	35,827.35	36,901.80	38,009.40	39,148.20	40,324.05				
Administrative Secretary	1950	Hourly	17.838	18.373	18.924	19.492	20.076	20.679				
		Monthly	2,898.68	2,985.61	3,075.15	3,167.45	3,262.35	3,360.34				
		Annual	34,784.10	35,827.35	36,901.80	38,009.40	39,148.20	40,324.05				
Home Support Worker II	2080	Hourly	17.978	18.364	18.747	19.125						
• •		Monthly	3,116.19	3,183.09	3,249.48	3,315.00						
		Annual	37,394.24	38,197.12	38,993.76	39,780.00						
NPT P Clerk	1950	Hourly	18.308	18.857	19.423	20.005	20.606	21.224				
		Monthly	2,975.05	3,064.26	3,156.24	3,250.81	3,348.48	3,448.90				
		Annual	35,700.60	36,771.15	37,874.85	39,009.75	40,181.70	41,386.80				
Cook - Certified	2080	Hourly	18.344	18.963	19.567	20.087	20.675	21.299				
		Monthly	3,179.63	3,286.92	3,391.61	3,481.75	3,583.67	3,691.83				
		Annual	38,155.52	39,443.04	40,699.36	41,780.96	43,004.00	44,301.92				
Health Information Services	1950	Hourly	19.003	19.574	20.161	20.766	21.389	22.030				
Technician		Monthly	3,087.99	3,180.78	3,276.16	3,374.48	3,475.71	3,579.88				
		Annual	37,055.85	38,169.30	39,313.95	40,493.70	41,708.55	42,958.50				
Early Childhood Educator III	1950	Hourly	19.698	20.092	20.482	20.876						
		Monthly	3,200.93	3,264.95	3,328.33	3,392.35						
		Annual	38,411.10	39,179.40	39,939.90	40,708.20						
Maintenance Worker	1950	Hourly	19.702	20.128	20.538	20.957						
		Monthly	3,201.58	3,270.80	3,337.43	3,405.51						
		Annual	38,418.90	39,249.60	40,049.10	40,866.15						
Children's Centre Coordinator	1950	Hourly	20.276	20.724	21.170	21.617	22.067	22.512				
		Monthly	3,294.85	3,367.65	3,440.13	3,512.76	3,585.89	3,658.20				
		Annual	39,538.20	40,411.80	41,281.50	42,153.15	43,030.65	43,898.40				
Family Services Worker	1950	Hourly	22.369	23.080	23.879	24.735	25.561	26.491				
(Entry level-No degree)		Monthly	3,634.96	3,750.50	3,880.34	4,019.44	4,153.66	4,304.79				
		Annual	43,619.55	45,006.00	46,564.05	48,233.25	49,843.95	51,657.45				

Employer Classification	Annual Hours		Start	Year 1	Year 2	Year 3	Year 4	Year 5	Year 6	Year 7	Year 8	Year 9
Parole & Probation Officer	1950	Hourly	22.369	23.080	23.879	24.735	25.561	26.491				
(Entry level-No degree)		Monthly	3,634.96	3,750.50	3,880.34	4,019.44	4,153.66	4,304.79				
		Annual	43,619.55	45,006.00	46,564.05	48,233.25	49,843.95	51,657.45				
Social Worker	1950	Hourly	22.369	23.080	23.879	24.735	25.561	26.491				
(Entry level-No degree)		Monthly	3,634.96	3,750.50	3,880.34	4,019.44	4,153.66	4,304.79				
		Annual	43,619.55	45,006.00	46,564.05	48,233.25	49,843.95	51,657.45				
Family Services Worker	1950	Hourly	23.879	24.735	25.561	26.491	27.405	28.405				
(5 to 7 yrs ExpNo degree)		Monthly	3,880.34	4,019.44	4,153.66	4,304.79	4,453.31	4,615.81				
		Annual	46,564.05	48,233.25	49,843.95	51,657.45	53,439.75	55,389.75				
Parole & Probation Officer	1950	Hourly	23.879	24.735	25.561	26.491	27.405	28.405				
(5 to 7 yrs ExpNo degree)		Monthly	3,880.34	4,019.44	4,153.66	4,304.79	4,453.31	4,615.81				
		Annual	46,564.05	48,233.25	49,843.95	51,657.45	53,439.75	55,389.75				
Social Worker	1950	Hourly	23.879	24.735	25.561	26.491	27.405	28.405				
(5 to 7 yrs ExpNo degree)		Monthly	3,880.34	4,019.44	4,153.66	4,304.79	4,453.31	4,615.81				
		Annual	46,564.05	48,233.25	49,843.95	51,657.45	53,439.75	55,389.75				
Family Services Worker	1950	Hourly	25.561	26.491	27.405	28.405	29.479	30.566	31.683	32.931		
(+7 yrs Exp No Degree)		Monthly	4,153.66	4,304.79	4,453.31	4,615.81	4,790.34	4,966.98	5,148.49	5,351.29		
		Annual	49,843.95	51,657.45	53,439.75	55,389.75	57,484.05	59,603.70	61,781.85	64,215.45		
Parole & Probation Officer	1950	Hourly	25.561	26.491	27.405	28.405	29.479	30.566	31.683	32.931		
(+7 yrs ExpNo Degree)		Monthly	4,153.66	4,304.79	4,453.31	4,615.81	4,790.34	4,966.98	5,148.49	5,351.29		
		Annual	49,843.95	51,657.45	53,439.75	55,389.75	57,484.05	59,603.70	61,781.85	64,215.45		
Social Worker	1950	Hourly	25.561	26.491	27.405	28.405	29.479	30.566	31.683	32.931		
(+7 yrs ExpNo degree)		Monthly	4,153.66	4,304.79	4,453.31	4,615.81	4,790.34	4,966.98	5,148.49	5,351.29		
		Annual	49,843.95	51,657.45	53,439.75	55,389.75	57,484.05	59,603.70	61,781.85	64,215.45		
Parole and Probation Officer	1950	Hourly	26.984	27.970	28.926	30.001	31.089	32.236	33.424	34.746	36.079	37.458
(Degree)		Monthly	4,384.90	4,545.13	4,700.48	4,875.16	5,051.96	5,238.35	5,431.40	5,646.23	5,862.84	6,086.93
		Annual	52,618.80	54,541.50	56,405.70	58,501.95	60,623.55	62,860.20	65,176.80	67,754.70	70,354.05	73,043.10
Maintenance Trades Person	1950	Hourly	28.089	29.117	30.191	31.361						
		Monthly	4,564.46	4,731.51	4,906.04	5,096.16						
		Annual	54,773.55	56,778.15	58,872.45	61,153.95						
Capital Projects / Facility	1950	Hourly	32.252	33.220	34.217	35.244	36.300	37.390		·	- 	
Coordinator		Monthly	5,240.95	5,398.25	5,560.26	5,727.15	5,898.75	6,075.88				
		Annual	62,891.40	64,779.00	66,723.15	68,725.80	70,785.00	72,910.50				

Effective April 1, 2014 (2.5%)

Employer Classification ¹	Annual Hours		Start	Year 1	Year 2	Year 3	Year 4	Year 5	Year 6	Year 7	Year 8	Year 9	Year 20
Pharmacy Technician	2080	Hourly Monthly Annual					To be de	etermined.					
Technician - Paramedic	2080	Hourly Monthly Annual		To be determined.									
Technician - Intermediate Paramedic	2080	Hourly Monthly Annual					To be de	etermined.					
Social Worker (Degree)	1950	Hourly Monthly Annual					To be de	etermined.					
Family Services Worker (Degree)	1950	Hourly Monthly Annual		To be determined.									
Community Wellness Worker (Degree)	1950	Hourly Monthly Annual					To be de	etermined.					

¹ Subject to the negotiated settlement at the MAHCP Professional/Technical Central Table.

Effective October 1, 2014

Employer Classification	Annual Hours		Start	Year 1	Year 2	Year 3	Year 4	Year 5	Year 6	Year 7	Year 8	Year 9	Year 20
Dietary Aide	2080	Hourly	14.841	15.286	15.745	16.217	16.704	17.205					17.549
,		Monthly	2,572.44	2,649.57	2,729.13	2,810.95	2,895.36	2,982.20					3,041.83
		Annual	30,869.28	31,794.88	32,749.60	33,731.36	34,744.32	35,786.40					36,501.92
Housekeeping Aide	2080	Hourly	14.841	15.286	15.745	16.217	16.704	17.205					17.549
		Monthly	2,572.44	2,649.57	2,729.13	2,810.95	2,895.36	2,982.20					3,041.83
		Annual	30,869.28	31,794.88	32,749.60	33,731.36	34,744.32	35,786.40					36,501.92
Activity Worker	1950	Hourly	15.416	15.878	16.354	16.845	17.350	17.871					18.228
		Monthly	2,505.10	2,580.18	2,657.53	2,737.31	2,819.38	2,904.04					2,962.05
		Annual	30,061.20	30,962.10	31,890.30	32,847.75	33,832.50	34,848.45					35,544.60
Receiving Home Parent	2080	Hourly	15.587	15.956	16.322	16.723							17.057
		Monthly	2,701.75	2,765.71	2,829.15	2,898.65							2,956.55
		Annual	32,420.96	33,188.48	33,949.76	34,783.84							35,478.56
Supplies / Distribution Aide	2080	Hourly	15.750	16.079	16.409	16.736							17.071
		Monthly	2,730.00	2,787.03	2,844.23	2,900.91							2,958.97
		Annual	32,760.00	33,444.32	34,130.72	34,810.88							35,507.68
Home Support Worker I	2080	Hourly	15.750	16.079	16.409	16.736							17.071
		Monthly	2,730.00	2,787.03	2,844.23	2,900.91							2,958.97
		Annual	32,760.00	33,444.32	34,130.72	34,810.88							35,507.68
Cook - Uncertified	2080	Hourly	15.827	16.302	16.791	17.294	17.813	18.348					18.715
		Monthly	2,743.35	2,825.68	2,910.44	2,997.63	3,087.59	3,180.32					3,243.93
		Annual	32,920.16	33,908.16	34,925.28	35,971.52	37,051.04	38,163.84					38,927.20
CSR Aide	2080	Hourly	15.939	16.417	16.909	17.417	17.939	18.477					18.847
		Monthly	2,762.76	2,845.61	2,930.89	3,018.95	3,109.43	3,202.68					3,266.81
		Annual	33,153.12	34,147.36	35,170.72	36,227.36	37,313.12	38,432.16					39,201.76
Family First Visitor II	1950	Hourly	16.077	16.537	16.996	17.444	17.904	18.387					18.755
		Monthly	2,612.51	2,687.26	2,761.85	2,834.65	2,909.40	2,987.89					3,047.69
		Annual	31,350.15	32,247.15	33,142.20	34,015.80	34,912.80	35,854.65					36,572.25
Clinic Aide - Untrained	2080	Hourly	16.801	17.150	17.503	17.851							18.208
		Monthly	2,912.17	2,972.67	3,033.85	3,094.17							3,156.05
		Annual	34,946.08	35,672.00	36,406.24	37,130.08							37,872.64
Health Care Aide - Untrained	2080	Hourly	16.801	17.150	17.503	17.851							18.208
		Monthly	2,912.17	2,972.67	3,033.85	3,094.17							3,156.05
		Annual	34,946.08	35,672.00	36,406.24	37,130.08							37,872.64

Employer Classification	Annual Hours		Start	Year 1	Year 2	Year 3	Year 4	Year 5	Year 6	Year 7	Year 8	Year 9	Year 20
Child Care Assistant	1950	Hourly	16.851	17.201	17.550	17.899							18.257
		Monthly	2,738.29	2,795.16	2,851.88	2,908.59							2,966.76
		Annual	32,859.45	33,541.95	34,222.50	34,903.05							35,601.15
Receiving Home Coordinator	2080	Hourly	17.207	17.629	18.050	18.466	18.888	19.307					19.693
		Monthly	2,982.55	3,055.69	3,128.67	3,200.77	3,273.92	3,346.55					3,413.45
		Annual	35,790.56	36,668.32	37,544.00	38,409.28	39,287.04	40,158.56					40,961.44
Maintenance Helper	1950	Hourly	17.226	17.583	17.936	18.311	18.666						19.040
		Monthly	2,799.23	2,857.24	2,914.60	2,975.54	3,033.23						3,094.00
		Annual	33,590.70	34,286.85	34,975.20	35,706.45	36,398.70						37,128.00
Store / Transport Assistant	1950	Hourly	17.470	17.994	18.534	19.090	19.663	20.252					20.658
		Monthly	2,838.88	2,924.03	3,011.78	3,102.13	3,195.24	3,290.95					3,356.93
		Annual	34,066.50	35,088.30	36,141.30	37,225.50	38,342.85	39,491.40					40,283.10
CSR - Certified	2080	Hourly	17.470	17.994	18.534	19.090	19.663	20.252					20.658
		Monthly	3,028.13	3,118.96	3,212.56	3,308.93	3,408.25	3,510.35					3,580.72
		Annual	36,337.60	37,427.52	38,550.72	39,707.20	40,899.04	42,124.16					42,968.64
Clinic Aide - Trained	2080	Hourly	17.470	17.994	18.534	19.090	19.663	20.252					20.658
		Monthly	3,028.13	3,118.96	3,212.56	3,308.93	3,408.25	3,510.35					3,580.72
		Annual	36,337.60	37,427.52	38,550.72	39,707.20	40,899.04	42,124.16					42,968.64
Health Care Aide - Trained	2080	Hourly	17.470	17.994	18.534	19.090	19.663	20.252					20.658
		Monthly	3,028.13	3,118.96	3,212.56	3,308.93	3,408.25	3,510.35					3,580.72
		Annual	36,337.60	37,427.52	38,550.72	39,707.20	40,899.04	42,124.16					42,968.64
Ward Clerk	2080	Hourly	17.470	17.994	18.534	19.090	19.663	20.252					20.658
		Monthly	3,028.13	3,118.96	3,212.56	3,308.93	3,408.25	3,510.35					3,580.72
		Annual	36,337.60	37,427.52	38,550.72	39,707.20	40,899.04	42,124.16					42,968.64
Administrative Clerk	1950	Hourly	17.617	18.010	18.401	18.795							19.171
		Monthly	2,862.76	2,926.63	2,990.16	3,054.19							3,115.29
		Annual	34,353.15	35,119.50	35,881.95	36,650.25							37,383.45
Clerk Typist	1950	Hourly	17.617	18.010	18.401	18.795							19.171
		Monthly	2,862.76	2,926.63	2,990.16	3,054.19							3,115.29
		Annual	34,353.15	35,119.50	35,881.95	36,650.25							37,383.45
Community Services Clerk	1950	Hourly	17.617	18.010	18.401	18.795							19.171
		Monthly	2,862.76	2,926.63	2,990.16	3,054.19							3,115.29
		Annual	34,353.15	35,119.50	35,881.95	36,650.25							37,383.45
Health Information Services Clerk	1950	Hourly	17.617	18.010	18.401	18.795							19.171
		Monthly	2,862.76	2,926.63	2,990.16	3,054.19							3,115.29
		Annual	34,353.15	35,119.50	35,881.95	36,650.25							37,383.45
Medical Accounts Clerk	1950	Hourly	17.617	18.010	18.401	18.795							19.171
		Monthly	2,862.76	2,926.63	2,990.16	3,054.19							3,115.29
		Annual	34,353.15	35,119.50	35,881.95	36,650.25							37,383.45

Employer Classification	Annual Hours		Start	Year 1	Year 2	Year 3	Year 4	Year 5	Year 6	Year 7	Year 8	Year 9	Year 20
Medical Clinic Clerk	1950	Hourly	17.617	18.010	18.401	18.795							19.171
		Monthly	2,862.76	2,926.63	2,990.16	3,054.19							3,115.29
		Annual	34,353.15	35,119.50	35,881.95	36,650.25							37,383.45
Pharmacy Clerk	1950	Hourly	17.617	18.010	18.401	18.795							19.171
		Monthly	2,862.76	2,926.63	2,990.16	3,054.19							3,115.29
		Annual	34,353.15	35,119.50	35,881.95	36,650.25							37,383.45
Early Childhood Educator II	1950	Hourly	17.642	18.033	18.427	18.815							19.192
		Monthly	2,866.83	2,930.36	2,994.39	3,057.44							3,118.70
		Annual	34,401.90	35,164.35	35,932.65	36,689.25							37,424.40
Accounting Clerk	1950	Hourly	17.838	18.373	18.924	19.492	20.076	20.679					21.092
-		Monthly	2,898.68	2,985.61	3,075.15	3,167.45	3,262.35	3,360.34					3,427.45
		Annual	34,784.10	35,827.35	36,901.80	38,009.40	39,148.20	40,324.05					41,129.40
Administrative Secretary	1950	Hourly	17.838	18.373	18.924	19.492	20.076	20.679					21.092
_		Monthly	2,898.68	2,985.61	3,075.15	3,167.45	3,262.35	3,360.34					3,427.45
		Annual	34,784.10	35,827.35	36,901.80	38,009.40	39,148.20	40,324.05					41,129.40
Home Support Worker II	2080	Hourly	17.978	18.364	18.747	19.125							19.507
		Monthly	3,116.19	3,183.09	3,249.48	3,315.00							3,381.21
		Annual	37,394.24	38,197.12	38,993.76	39,780.00							40,574.56
NPT P Clerk	1950	Hourly	18.308	18.857	19.423	20.005	20.606	21.224					21.648
		Monthly	2,975.05	3,064.26	3,156.24	3,250.81	3,348.48	3,448.90					3,517.80
		Annual	35,700.60	36,771.15	37,874.85	39,009.75	40,181.70	41,386.80					42,213.60
Cook - Certified	2080	Hourly	18.344	18.963	19.567	20.087	20.675	21.299					21.725
		Monthly	3,179.63	3,286.92	3,391.61	3,481.75	3,583.67	3,691.83					3,765.67
		Annual	38,155.52	39,443.04	40,699.36	41,780.96	43,004.00	44,301.92					45,188.00
Health Information Services	1950	Hourly	19.003	19.574	20.161	20.766	21.389	22.030					22.471
Technician		Monthly	3,087.99	3,180.78	3,276.16	3,374.48	3,475.71	3,579.88					3,651.54
		Annual	37,055.85	38,169.30	39,313.95	40,493.70	41,708.55	42,958.50					43,818.45
Early Childhood Educator III	1950	Hourly	19.698	20.092	20.482	20.876							21.293
-		Monthly	3,200.93	3,264.95	3,328.33	3,392.35							3,460.11
		Annual	38,411.10	39,179.40	39,939.90	40,708.20							41,521.35
Maintenance Worker	1950	Hourly	19.702	20.128	20.538	20.957							21.377
		Monthly	3,201.58	3,270.80	3,337.43	3,405.51							3,473.76
		Annual	38,418.90	39,249.60	40,049.10	40,866.15							41,685.15
Children's Centre Coordinator	1950	Hourly	20.276	20.724	21.170	21.617	22.067	22.512					22.962
		Monthly	3,294.85	3,367.65	3,440.13	3,512.76	3,585.89	3,658.20					3,731.33
		Annual	39,538.20	40,411.80	41,281.50	42,153.15	43,030.65	43,898.40					44,775.90
Family Services Worker	1950	Hourly	22.369	23.080	23.879	24.735	25.561	26.491					27.021
(Entry level-No degree)		Monthly	3,634.96	3,750.50	3,880.34	4,019.44	4,153.66	4,304.79					4,390.91
		Annual	43,619.55	45,006.00	46,564.05	48,233.25	49,843.95	51,657.45					52,690.95

Employer Classification	Annual Hours		Start	Year 1	Year 2	Year 3	Year 4	Year 5	Year 6	Year 7	Year 8	Year 9	Year 20
Parole & Probation Officer	1950	Hourly	22.369	23.080	23.879	24.735	25.561	26.491					27.021
(Entry level-No degree)		Monthly	3,634.96	3,750.50	3,880.34	4,019.44	4,153.66	4,304.79					4,390.91
		Annual	43,619.55	45,006.00	46,564.05	48,233.25	49,843.95	51,657.45					52,690.95
Social Worker	1950	Hourly	22.369	23.080	23.879	24.735	25.561	26.491					27.021
(Entry level-No degree)		Monthly	3,634.96	3,750.50	3,880.34	4,019.44	4,153.66	4,304.79					4,390.91
		Annual	43,619.55	45,006.00	46,564.05	48,233.25	49,843.95	51,657.45					52,690.95
Family Services Worker	1950	Hourly	23.879	24.735	25.561	26.491	27.405	28.405					28.973
(5 to 7 yrs ExpNo degree)		Monthly	3,880.34	4,019.44	4,153.66	4,304.79	4,453.31	4,615.81					4,708.11
		Annual	46,564.05	48,233.25	49,843.95	51,657.45	53,439.75	55,389.75					56,497.35
Parole & Probation Officer	1950	Hourly	23.879	24.735	25.561	26.491	27.405	28.405					28.973
(5 to 7 yrs ExpNo degree)		Monthly	3,880.34	4,019.44	4,153.66	4,304.79	4,453.31	4,615.81					4,708.11
		Annual	46,564.05	48,233.25	49,843.95	51,657.45	53,439.75	55,389.75					56,497.35
Social Worker	1950	Hourly	23.879	24.735	25.561	26.491	27.405	28.405					28.973
(5 to 7 yrs ExpNo degree)		Monthly	3,880.34	4,019.44	4,153.66	4,304.79	4,453.31	4,615.81					4,708.11
		Annual	46,564.05	48,233.25	49,843.95	51,657.45	53,439.75	55,389.75					56,497.35
Family Services Worker	1950	Hourly	25.561	26.491	27.405	28.405	29.479	30.566	31.683	32.931			33.589
(+7 yrs Exp No Degree)		Monthly	4,153.66	4,304.79	4,453.31	4,615.81	4,790.34	4,966.98	5,148.49	5,351.29			5,458.21
		Annual	49,843.95	51,657.45	53,439.75	55,389.75	57,484.05	59,603.70	61,781.85	64,215.45			65,498.55
Parole & Probation Officer	1950	Hourly	25.561	26.491	27.405	28.405	29.479	30.566	31.683	32.931			33.589
(+7 yrs ExpNo Degree)		Monthly	4,153.66	4,304.79	4,453.31	4,615.81	4,790.34	4,966.98	5,148.49	5,351.29			5,458.21
		Annual	49,843.95	51,657.45	53,439.75	55,389.75	57,484.05	59,603.70	61,781.85	64,215.45			65,498.55
Social Worker	1950	Hourly	25.561	26.491	27.405	28.405	29.479	30.566	31.683	32.931			33.589
(+7 yrs ExpNo degree)		Monthly	4,153.66	4,304.79	4,453.31	4,615.81	4,790.34	4,966.98	5,148.49	5,351.29			5,458.21
		Annual	49,843.95	51,657.45	53,439.75	55,389.75	57,484.05	59,603.70	61,781.85	64,215.45			65,498.55
Parole and Probation Officer	1950	Hourly	26.984	27.970	28.926	30.001	31.089	32.236	33.424	34.746	36.079	37.458	38.207
(Degree)		Monthly	4,384.90	4,545.13	4,700.48	4,875.16	5,051.96	5,238.35	5,431.40	5,646.23	5,862.84	6,086.93	6,208.64
		Annual	52,618.80	54,541.50	56,405.70	58,501.95	60,623.55	62,860.20	65,176.80	67,754.70	70,354.05	73,043.10	74,503.65
Maintenance Trades Person	1950	Hourly	28.089	29.117	30.191	31.361							31.988
		Monthly	4,564.46	4,731.51	4,906.04	5,096.16							5,198.05
		Annual	54,773.55	56,778.15	58,872.45	61,153.95							62,376.60
Capital Projects / Facility	1950	Hourly	32.252	33.220	34.217	35.244	36.300	37.390					38.138
Coordinator		Monthly	5,240.95	5,398.25	5,560.26	5,727.15	5,898.75	6,075.88					6,197.43
		Annual	62,891.40	64,779.00	66,723.15	68,725.80	70,785.00	72,910.50					74,369.10

Effective October 1, 2014

Employer Classification ¹	Annual Hours		Start	Year 1	Year 2	Year 3	Year 4	Year 5	Year 6	Year 7	Year 8	Year 9	Year 20
PharmacyTechnician	2080	Hourly											
		Monthly					To be de	termined.					
		Annual											
Technician - Paramedic *	2080	Hourly	21.688	22.329	22.990	23.669	24.370	25.102					25.604
		Monthly	3,759.25	3,870.36	3,984.93	4,102.63	4,224.13	4,351.01					4,160.65
		Annual	45,111.04	46,444.32	47,819.20	49,231.52	50,689.60	52,212.16					49,927.80
Technician - Intermediate	2080	Hourly	23.987	24.699	25.430	26.182	26.955	27.764					28.319
Paramedic *		Monthly	4,157.75	4,281.16	4,407.87	4,538.21	4,672.20	4,812.43					4,601.84
		Annual	49,892.96	51,373.92	52,894.40	54,458.56	56,066.40	57,749.12					55,222.05
Social Worker (Degree)	1950	Hourly											
		Monthly					To be de	termined.					
		Annual											
Family Services Worker (Degree)	1950	Hourly											
		Monthly					To be de	termined.					
		Annual											
Community Wellness Worker	1950	Hourly						· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·					<u>-</u>
(Degree)		Monthly					To be de	termined.					
		Annual											

¹ Subject to the negotiated settlement at the MAHCP Professional/Technical Central Table.

107

Effective April 1, 2015 (2.5%)

Employer Classification	Annual Hours		Start	Year 1	Year 2	Year 3	Year 4	Year 5	Year 6	Year 7	Year 8	Year 9	Year 20
Dietary Aide	2080	Hourly	15.212	15.668	16.139	16.623	17.121	17.635					17.988
-		Monthly	2,636.75	2,715.79	2,797.43	2,881.32	2,967.64	3,056.73					3,117.92
		Annual	31,640.96	32,589.44	33,569.12	34,575.84	35,611.68	36,680.80					37,415.04
Housekeeping Aide	2080	Hourly	15.212	15.668	16.139	16.623	17.121	17.635					17.988
		Monthly	2,636.75	2,715.79	2,797.43	2,881.32	2,967.64	3,056.73					3,117.92
		Annual	31,640.96	32,589.44	33,569.12	34,575.84	35,611.68	36,680.80					37,415.04
Activity Worker	1950	Hourly	15.801	16.275	16.763	17.266	17.784	18.318					18.684
		Monthly	2,567.66	2,644.69	2,723.99	2,805.73	2,889.90	2,976.68					3,036.15
		Annual	30,811.95	31,736.25	32,687.85	33,668.70	34,678.80	35,720.10					36,433.80
Receiving Home Parent	2080	Hourly	15.976	16.355	16.731	17.141							17.484
		Monthly	2,769.17	2,834.87	2,900.04	2,971.11							3,030.56
		Annual	33,230.08	34,018.40	34,800.48	35,653.28							36,366.72
Supplies / Distribution Aide	2080	Hourly	16.144	16.481	16.820	17.154							17.497
		Monthly	2,798.29	2,856.71	2,915.47	2,973.36							3,032.81
		Annual	33,579.52	34,280.48	34,985.60	35,680.32							36,393.76
Home Support Worker I	2080	Hourly	16.144	16.481	16.820	17.154							17.497
		Monthly	2,798.29	2,856.71	2,915.47	2,973.36							3,032.81
		Annual	33,579.52	34,280.48	34,985.60	35,680.32							36,393.76
Cook - Uncertified	2080	Hourly	16.223	16.709	17.211	17.727	18.259	18.806					19.183
		Monthly	2,811.99	2,896.23	2,983.24	3,072.68	3,164.89	3,259.71					3,325.05
		Annual	33,743.84	34,754.72	35,798.88	36,872.16	37,978.72	39,116.48					39,900.64
CSR Aide	2080	Hourly	16.337	16.827	17.332	17.852	18.388	18.939					19.318
		Monthly	2,831.75	2,916.68	3,004.21	3,094.35	3,187.25	3,282.76					3,348.45
		Annual	33,980.96	35,000.16	36,050.56	37,132.16	38,247.04	39,393.12					40,181.44
Family First Visitor II	1950	Hourly	16.479	16.950	17.421	17.881	18.352	18.846					19.223
		Monthly	2,677.84	2,754.38	2,830.91	2,905.66	2,982.20	3,062.48					3,123.74
		Annual	32,134.05	33,052.50	33,970.95	34,867.95	35,786.40	36,749.70					37,484.85
Clinic Aide - Untrained	2080	Hourly	17.221	17.579	17.940	18.298							18.664
		Monthly	2,984.97	3,047.03	3,109.60	3,171.65							3,235.09
		Annual	35,819.68	36,564.32	37,315.20	38,059.84							38,821.12
Health Care Aide - Untrained	2080	Hourly	17.221	17.579	17.940	18.298							18.664
		Monthly	2,984.97	3,047.03	3,109.60	3,171.65							3,235.09
		Annual	35,819.68	36,564.32	37,315.20	38,059.84							38,821.12

Employer Classification	Annual Hours		Start	Year 1	Year 2	Year 3	Year 4	Year 5	Year 6	Year 7	Year 8	Year 9	Year 20
Child Care Assistant	1950	Hourly	17.272	17.631	17.988	18.347							18.714
		Monthly	2,806.70	2,865.04	2,923.05	2,981.39							3,041.03
		Annual	33,680.40	34,380.45	35,076.60	35,776.65							36,492.30
Receiving Home Coordinator	2080	Hourly	17.638	18.069	18.501	18.927	19.360	19.789					20.185
		Monthly	3,057.25	3,131.96	3,206.84	3,280.68	3,355.73	3,430.09					3,498.73
		Annual	36,687.04	37,583.52	38,482.08	39,368.16	40,268.80	41,161.12					41,984.80
Maintenance Helper	1950	Hourly	17.656	18.023	18.384	18.769	19.133						19.516
		Monthly	2,869.10	2,928.74	2,987.40	3,049.96	3,109.11						3,171.35
		Annual	34,429.20	35,144.85	35,848.80	36,599.55	37,309.35						38,056.20
Store / Transport Assistant	1950	Hourly	17.907	18.444	18.997	19.567	20.154	20.759					21.174
		Monthly	2,909.89	2,997.15	3,087.01	3,179.64	3,275.03	3,373.34					3,440.78
		Annual	34,918.65	35,965.80	37,044.15	38,155.65	39,300.30	40,480.05					41,289.30
CSR - Certified	2080	Hourly	17.907	18.444	18.997	19.567	20.154	20.759					21.174
		Monthly	3,103.88	3,196.96	3,292.81	3,391.61	3,493.36	3,598.23					3,670.16
		Annual	37,246.56	38,363.52	39,513.76	40,699.36	41,920.32	43,178.72					44,041.92
Clinic Aide - Trained	2080	Hourly	17.907	18.444	18.997	19.567	20.154	20.759					21.174
		Monthly	3,103.88	3,196.96	3,292.81	3,391.61	3,493.36	3,598.23					3,670.16
		Annual	37,246.56	38,363.52	39,513.76	40,699.36	41,920.32	43,178.72					44,041.92
Health Care Aide - Trained	2080	Hourly	17.907	18.444	18.997	19.567	20.154	20.759					21.174
		Monthly	3,103.88	3,196.96	3,292.81	3,391.61	3,493.36	3,598.23					3,670.16
		Annual	37,246.56	38,363.52	39,513.76	40,699.36	41,920.32	43,178.72					44,041.92
Ward Clerk	2080	Hourly	17.907	18.444	18.997	19.567	20.154	20.759					21.174
		Monthly	3,103.88	3,196.96	3,292.81	3,391.61	3,493.36	3,598.23					3,670.16
		Annual	37,246.56	38,363.52	39,513.76	40,699.36	41,920.32	43,178.72					44,041.92
Administrative Clerk	1950	Hourly	18.057	18.460	18.861	19.265							19.650
		Monthly	2,934.26	2,999.75	3,064.91	3,130.56							3,193.13
		Annual	35,211.15	35,997.00	36,778.95	37,566.75							38,317.50
Clerk Typist	1950	Hourly	18.057	18.460	18.861	19.265							19.650
		Monthly	2,934.26	2,999.75	3,064.91	3,130.56							3,193.13
		Annual	35,211.15	35,997.00	36,778.95	37,566.75							38,317.50
Community Services Clerk	1950	Hourly	18.057	18.460	18.861	19.265							19.650
		Monthly	2,934.26	2,999.75	3,064.91	3,130.56							3,193.13
		Annual	35,211.15	35,997.00	36,778.95	37,566.75							38,317.50
Health Information Services Clerk	1950	Hourly	18.057	18.460	18.861	19.265						<u> </u>	19.650
		Monthly	2,934.26	2,999.75	3,064.91	3,130.56							3,193.13
		Annual	35,211.15	35,997.00	36,778.95	37,566.75							38,317.50
Medical Accounts Clerk	1950	Hourly	18.057	18.460	18.861	19.265							19.650
		Monthly	2,934.26	2,999.75	3,064.91	3,130.56							3,193.13
		Annual	35,211.15	35,997.00	36,778.95	37,566.75							38,317.50

Employer Classification	Annual Hours		Start	Year 1	Year 2	Year 3	Year 4	Year 5	Year 6	Year 7	Year 8	Year 9	Year 20
Medical Clinic Clerk	1950	Hourly	18.057	18.460	18.861	19.265							19.650
		Monthly	2,934.26	2,999.75	3,064.91	3,130.56							3,193.13
		Annual	35,211.15	35,997.00	36,778.95	37,566.75							38,317.50
Pharmacy Clerk	1950	Hourly	18.057	18.460	18.861	19.265							19.650
		Monthly	2,934.26	2,999.75	3,064.91	3,130.56							3,193.13
		Annual	35,211.15	35,997.00	36,778.95	37,566.75							38,317.50
Early Childhood Educator II	1950	Hourly	18.083	18.484	18.887	19.286							19.672
		Monthly	2,938.49	3,003.65	3,069.14	3,133.98							3,196.70
		Annual	35,261.85	36,043.80	36,829.65	37,607.70							38,360.40
Accounting Clerk	1950	Hourly	18.284	18.832	19.397	19.979	20.578	21.196					21.620
		Monthly	2,971.15	3,060.20	3,152.01	3,246.59	3,343.93	3,444.35					3,513.25
		Annual	35,653.80	36,722.40	37,824.15	38,959.05	40,127.10	41,332.20					42,159.00
Administrative Secretary	1950	Hourly	18.284	18.832	19.397	19.979	20.578	21.196					21.620
		Monthly	2,971.15	3,060.20	3,152.01	3,246.59	3,343.93	3,444.35					3,513.25
		Annual	35,653.80	36,722.40	37,824.15	38,959.05	40,127.10	41,332.20					42,159.00
Home Support Worker II	2080	Hourly	18.428	18.823	19.215	19.603							19.995
		Monthly	3,194.19	3,262.65	3,330.60	3,397.85							3,465.80
		Annual	38,330.24	39,151.84	39,967.20	40,774.24							41,589.60
NPT P Clerk	1950	Hourly	18.765	19.328	19.908	20.506	21.121	21.754					22.189
		Monthly		3,140.80	3,235.05	3,332.23	3,432.16	3,535.03					3,605.71
		Annual	36,591.75	37,689.60	38,820.60	39,986.70	41,185.95	42,420.30					43,268.55
Cook - Certified	2080	Hourly	18.802	19.437	20.056	20.589	21.192	21.832					22.269
		Monthly		3,369.08	3,476.37	3,568.76	3,673.28	3,784.21					3,859.96
			39,108.16	40,428.96	41,716.48	42,825.12	44,079.36	45,410.56					46,319.52
Health Information Services	1950	Hourly	19.479	20.063	20.665	21.285	21.923	22.581					23.033
Technician		Monthly		3,260.24	3,358.06	3,458.81	3,562.49	3,669.41					3,742.86
		Annual	37,984.05	39,122.85	40,296.75	41,505.75	42,749.85	44,032.95					44,914.35
Early Childhood Educator III	1950	Hourly	20.190	20.594	20.994	21.398							21.826
		Monthly		3,346.53	3,411.53	3,477.18							3,546.73
		Annual	39,370.50	40,158.30	40,938.30	41,726.10							42,560.70
Maintenance Worker	1950	Hourly	20.194	20.631	21.051	21.481							21.911
		Monthly		3,352.54	3,420.79	3,490.66							3,560.54
		Annual	39,378.30	40,230.45	41,049.45	41,887.95							42,726.45
Children's Centre Coordinator	1950	Hourly	20.783	21.242	21.699	22.157	22.618	23.075					23.537
		Monthly		3,451.83	3,526.09	3,600.51	3,675.43	3,749.69					3,824.76
		Annual	40,526.85	41,421.90	42,313.05	43,206.15	44,105.10	44,996.25					45,897.15
Family Services Worker	1950	Hourly	22.929	23.657	24.476	25.354	26.200	27.153					27.696
(Entry level-No degree)		Monthly		3,844.26	3,977.35	4,120.03	4,257.50	4,412.36					4,500.60
		Annual	44,711.55	46,131.15	47,728.20	49,440.30	51,090.00	52,948.35					54,007.20

Employer Classification	Annual Hours		Start	Year 1	Year 2	Year 3	Year 4	Year 5	Year 6	Year 7	Year 8	Year 9	Year 20
Parole & Probation Officer	1950	Hourly	22.929	23.657	24.476	25.354	26.200	27.153					27.696
(Entry level-No degree)		Monthly	3,725.96	3,844.26	3,977.35	4,120.03	4,257.50	4,412.36					4,500.60
		Annual	44,711.55	46,131.15	47,728.20	49,440.30	51,090.00	52,948.35					54,007.20
Social Worker	1950	Hourly	22.929	23.657	24.476	25.354	26.200	27.153					27.696
(Entry level-No degree)		Monthly	3,725.96	3,844.26	3,977.35	4,120.03	4,257.50	4,412.36					4,500.60
		Annual	44,711.55	46,131.15	47,728.20	49,440.30	51,090.00	52,948.35					54,007.20
Family Services Worker	1950	Hourly	24.476	25.354	26.200	27.153	28.090	29.115					29.697
(5 to 7 yrs ExpNo degree)		Monthly	3,977.35	4,120.03	4,257.50	4,412.36	4,564.63	4,731.19					4,825.76
		Annual	47,728.20	49,440.30	51,090.00	52,948.35	54,775.50	56,774.25					57,909.15
Parole & Probation Officer	1950	Hourly	24.476	25.354	26.200	27.153	28.090	29.115					29.697
(5 to 7 yrs ExpNo degree)		Monthly	3,977.35	4,120.03	4,257.50	4,412.36	4,564.63	4,731.19					4,825.76
		Annual	47,728.20	49,440.30	51,090.00	52,948.35	54,775.50	56,774.25					57,909.15
Social Worker	1950	Hourly	24.476	25.354	26.200	27.153	28.090	29.115					29.697
(5 to 7 yrs ExpNo degree)		Monthly	3,977.35	4,120.03	4,257.50	4,412.36	4,564.63	4,731.19					4,825.76
		Annual	47,728.20	49,440.30	51,090.00	52,948.35	54,775.50	56,774.25					57,909.15
Family Services Worker	1950	Hourly	26.200	27.153	28.090	29.115	30.216	31.331	32.475	33.754			34.429
(+7 yrs Exp No Degree)		Monthly	4,257.50	4,412.36	4,564.63	4,731.19	4,910.10	5,091.29	5,277.19	5,485.03			5,594.71
		Annual	51,090.00	52,948.35	54,775.50	56,774.25	58,921.20	61,095.45	63,326.25	65,820.30			67,136.55
Parole & Probation Officer	1950	Hourly	26.200	27.153	28.090	29.115	30.216	31.331	32.475	33.754			34.429
(+7 yrs ExpNo Degree)		Monthly	4,257.50	4,412.36	4,564.63	4,731.19	4,910.10	5,091.29	5,277.19	5,485.03			5,594.71
		Annual	51,090.00	52,948.35	54,775.50	56,774.25	58,921.20	61,095.45	63,326.25	65,820.30			67,136.55
Social Worker	1950	Hourly	26.200	27.153	28.090	29.115	30.216	31.331	32.475	33.754			34.429
(+7 yrs ExpNo degree)		Monthly	4,257.50	4,412.36	4,564.63	4,731.19	4,910.10	5,091.29	5,277.19	5,485.03			5,594.71
		Annual	51,090.00	52,948.35	54,775.50	56,774.25	58,921.20	61,095.45	63,326.25	65,820.30			67,136.55
Parole and Probation Officer	1950	Hourly	27.659	28.669	29.649	30.751	31.866	33.042	34.260	35.615	36.981	38.394	39.162
(Degree)		Monthly	4,494.59	4,658.71	4,817.96	4,997.04	5,178.23	5,369.33	5,567.25	5,787.44	6,009.41	6,239.03	6,363.83
		Annual	53,935.05	55,904.55	57,815.55	59,964.45	62,138.70	64,431.90	66,807.00	69,449.25	72,112.95	74,868.30	76,365.90
Maintenance Trades Person	1950	Hourly	28.791	29.845	30.946	32.145							32.788
		Monthly	4,678.54	4,849.81	5,028.73	5,223.56							5,328.05
		Annual	56,142.45	58,197.75	60,344.70	62,682.75							63,936.60
Capital Projects / Facility	1950	Hourly	33.059	34.051	35.072	36.125	37.208	38.325					39.091
Coordinator		Monthly	5,372.09	5,533.29	5,699.20	5,870.31	6,046.30	6,227.81					6,352.29
		Annual	64,465.05	66,399.45	68,390.40	70,443.75	72,555.60	74,733.75					76,227.45

Effective April 1, 2015 (2.5%)

Employer Classification ¹	Annual Hours		Start	Year 1	Year 2	Year 3	Year 4	Year 5	Year 6	Year 7	Year 8	Year 9	Year 20
Pharmacy Technician	2080	Hourly Monthly Annual					To be de	termined.					
Technician - Paramedic	2080	Hourly Monthly Annual					To be de	termined.					
Technician - Intermediate Paramedic	2080	Hourly Monthly Annual					To be de	termined.					
Social Worker (Degree)	1950	Hourly Monthly Annual					To be de	termined.					
Family Services Worker (Degree)	1950	Hourly Monthly Annual					To be de	termined.					
Community Wellness Worker (Degree)	1950	Hourly Monthly Annual					To be de	termined.					

¹ Subject to the negotiated settlement at the MAHCP Professional/Technical Central Table.

112

Effective April 1, 2016 (2%)

Employer Classification	Annual Hours		Start	Year 1	Year 2	Year 3	Year 4	Year 5	Year 6	Year 7	Year 8	Year 9	Year 20
Dietary Aide	2080	Hourly	15.516	15.982	16.461	16.955	17.464	17.988					18.347
-		Monthly	2,689.44	2,770.21	2,853.24	2,938.87	3,027.09	3,117.92					3,180.15
		Annual	32,273.28	33,242.56	34,238.88	35,266.40	36,325.12	37,415.04					38,161.76
Housekeeping Aide	2080	Hourly	15.516	15.982	16.461	16.955	17.464	17.988					18.347
-		Monthly	2,689.44	2,770.21	2,853.24	2,938.87	3,027.09	3,117.92					3,180.15
		Annual	32,273.28	33,242.56	34,238.88	35,266.40	36,325.12	37,415.04					38,161.76
Activity Worker	1950	Hourly	16.117	16.601	17.099	17.611	18.140	18.684					19.058
-		Monthly	2,619.01	2,697.66	2,778.59	2,861.79	2,947.75	3,036.15					3,096.93
		Annual	31,428.15	32,371.95	33,343.05	34,341.45	35,373.00	36,433.80					37,163.10
Receiving Home Parent	2080	Hourly	16.296	16.682	17.065	17.484							17.833
		Monthly	2,824.64	2,891.55	2,957.93	3,030.56							3,091.05
		Annual	33,895.68	34,698.56	35,495.20	36,366.72							37,092.64
Supplies / Distribution Aide	2080	Hourly	16.466	16.810	17.156	17.497							17.847
		Monthly	2,854.11	2,913.73	2,973.71	3,032.81							3,093.48
		Annual	34,249.28	34,964.80	35,684.48	36,393.76							37,121.76
Home Support Worker I	2080	Hourly	16.466	16.810	17.156	17.497							17.847
		Monthly	2,854.11	2,913.73	2,973.71	3,032.81							3,093.48
		Annual	34,249.28	34,964.80	35,684.48	36,393.76							37,121.76
Cook - Uncertified	2080	Hourly	16.547	17.043	17.555	18.081	18.624	19.183					19.566
		Monthly	2,868.15	2,954.12	3,042.87	3,134.04	3,228.16	3,325.05					3,391.44
		Annual	34,417.76	35,449.44	36,514.40	37,608.48	38,737.92	39,900.64					40,697.28
CSR Aide	2080	Hourly	16.664	17.164	17.679	18.209	18.755	19.318					19.704
		Monthly	2,888.43	2,975.09	3,064.36	3,156.23	3,250.87	3,348.45					3,415.36
		Annual	34,661.12	35,701.12	36,772.32	37,874.72	39,010.40	40,181.44					40,984.32
Family First Visitor II	1950	Hourly	16.808	17.289	17.770	18.238	18.719	19.223					19.608
		Monthly	2,731.30	2,809.46	2,887.63	2,963.68	3,041.84	3,123.74					3,186.30
		Annual	32,775.60	33,713.55	34,651.50	35,564.10	36,502.05	37,484.85					38,235.60
Clinic Aide - Untrained	2080	Hourly	17.565	17.931	18.299	18.664							19.037
		Monthly	3,044.60	3,108.04	3,171.83	3,235.09							3,299.75
		Annual	36,535.20	37,296.48	38,061.92	38,821.12							39,596.96
Health Care Aide - Untrained	2080	Hourly	17.565	17.931	18.299	18.664							19.037
		Monthly	3,044.60	3,108.04	3,171.83	3,235.09							3,299.75
		Annual	36,535.20	37,296.48	38,061.92	38,821.12							39,596.96

Employer Classification	Annual Hours		Start	Year 1	Year 2	Year 3	Year 4	Year 5	Year 6	Year 7	Year 8	Year 9	Year 20
Child Care Assistant	1950	Hourly	17.618	17.984	18.348	18.714							19.088
		Monthly	2,862.93	2,922.40	2,981.55	3,041.03							3,101.80
		Annual	34,355.10	35,068.80	35,778.60	36,492.30							37,221.60
Receiving Home Coordinator	2080	Hourly	17.990	18.431	18.871	19.306	19.747	20.185					20.589
		Monthly	3,118.27	3,194.71	3,270.97	3,346.37	3,422.81	3,498.73					3,568.76
		Annual	37,419.20	38,336.48	39,251.68	40,156.48	41,073.76	41,984.80					42,825.12
Maintenance Helper	1950	Hourly	18.009	18.383	18.752	19.145	19.516						19.906
		Monthly	2,926.46	2,987.24	3,047.20	3,111.06	3,171.35						3,234.73
		Annual	35,117.55	35,846.85	36,566.40	37,332.75	38,056.20						38,816.70
Store / Transport Assistant	1950	Hourly	18.265	18.813	19.377	19.958	20.557	21.174					21.597
		Monthly	2,968.06	3,057.11	3,148.76	3,243.18	3,340.51	3,440.78					3,509.51
		Annual	35,616.75	36,685.35	37,785.15	38,918.10	40,086.15	41,289.30					42,114.15
CSR - Certified	2080	Hourly	18.265	18.813	19.377	19.958	20.557	21.174					21.597
		Monthly	3,165.93	3,260.92	3,358.68	3,459.39	3,563.21	3,670.16					3,743.48
		Annual	37,991.20	39,131.04	40,304.16	41,512.64	42,758.56	44,041.92					44,921.76
Clinic Aide - Trained	2080	Hourly	18.265	18.813	19.377	19.958	20.557	21.174					21.597
		Monthly	3,165.93	3,260.92	3,358.68	3,459.39	3,563.21	3,670.16					3,743.48
		Annual	37,991.20	39,131.04	40,304.16	41,512.64	42,758.56	44,041.92					44,921.76
Health Care Aide - Trained	2080	Hourly	18.265	18.813	19.377	19.958	20.557	21.174					21.597
		Monthly		3,260.92	3,358.68	3,459.39	3,563.21	3,670.16					3,743.48
		Annual	37,991.20	39,131.04	40,304.16	41,512.64	42,758.56	44,041.92					44,921.76
Ward Clerk	2080	Hourly	18.265	18.813	19.377	19.958	20.557	21.174					21.597
		Monthly	•	3,260.92	3,358.68	3,459.39	3,563.21	3,670.16					3,743.48
		Annual	37,991.20	39,131.04	40,304.16	41,512.64	42,758.56	44,041.92					44,921.76
Administrative Clerk	1950	Hourly	18.419	18.829	19.238	19.650							20.043
		Monthly		3,059.71	3,126.18	3,193.13							3,256.99
		Annual	35,917.05	36,716.55	37,514.10	38,317.50							39,083.85
Clerk Typist	1950	Hourly	18.419	18.829	19.238	19.650							20.043
		Monthly		3,059.71	3,126.18	3,193.13							3,256.99
		Annual	35,917.05	36,716.55	37,514.10	38,317.50							39,083.85
Community Services Clerk	1950	Hourly	18.419	18.829	19.238	19.650							20.043
		Monthly		3,059.71	3,126.18	3,193.13							3,256.99
		Annual	35,917.05	36,716.55	37,514.10	38,317.50							39,083.85
Health Information Services Clerk	1950	Hourly	18.419	18.829	19.238	19.650							20.043
		Monthly	•	3,059.71	3,126.18	3,193.13							3,256.99
		Annual	35,917.05	36,716.55	37,514.10	38,317.50							39,083.85
Medical Accounts Clerk	1950	Hourly	18.419	18.829	19.238	19.650							20.043
		Monthly	•	3,059.71	3,126.18	3,193.13							3,256.99
		Annual	35,917.05	36,716.55	37,514.10	38,317.50							39,083.85

Employer Classification	Annual Hours		Start	Year 1	Year 2	Year 3	Year 4	Year 5	Year 6	Year 7	Year 8	Year 9	Year 20
Medical Clinic Clerk	1950	Hourly	18.419	18.829	19.238	19.650							20.043
		Monthly	2,993.09	3,059.71	3,126.18	3,193.13							3,256.99
		Annual	35,917.05	36,716.55	37,514.10	38,317.50							39,083.85
Pharmacy Clerk	1950	Hourly	18.419	18.829	19.238	19.650							20.043
		Monthly	2,993.09	3,059.71	3,126.18	3,193.13							3,256.99
		Annual	35,917.05	36,716.55	37,514.10	38,317.50							39,083.85
Early Childhood Educator II	1950	Hourly	18.444	18.853	19.265	19.672							20.065
		Monthly	2,997.15	3,063.61	3,130.56	3,196.70							3,260.56
		Annual	35,965.80	36,763.35	37,566.75	38,360.40							39,126.75
Accounting Clerk	1950	Hourly	18.649	19.209	19.785	20.379	20.990	21.620					22.052
		Monthly		3,121.46	3,215.06	3,311.59	3,410.88	3,513.25					3,583.45
		Annual	36,365.55	37,457.55	38,580.75	39,739.05	40,930.50	42,159.00					43,001.40
Administrative Secretary	1950	Hourly	18.649	19.209	19.785	20.379	20.990	21.620					22.052
		Monthly		3,121.46	3,215.06	3,311.59	3,410.88	3,513.25					3,583.45
		Annual	36,365.55	37,457.55	38,580.75	39,739.05	40,930.50	42,159.00					43,001.40
Home Support Worker II	2080	Hourly	18.796	19.199	19.600	19.995							20.395
		Monthly		3,327.83	3,397.33	3,465.80							3,535.13
		Annual	39,095.68	39,933.92	40,768.00	41,589.60							42,421.60
NPT P Clerk	1950	Hourly	19.141	19.715	20.306	20.916	21.543	22.189					22.633
		Monthly	•	3,203.69	3,299.73	3,398.85	3,500.74	3,605.71					3,677.86
		Annual	37,324.95	38,444.25	39,596.70	40,786.20	42,008.85	43,268.55					44,134.35
Cook - Certified	2080	Hourly	19.178	19.826	20.457	21.001	21.616	22.269					22.714
		Monthly		3,436.51	3,545.88	3,640.17	3,746.77	3,859.96					3,937.09
		Annual	39,890.24	41,238.08	42,550.56	43,682.08	44,961.28	46,319.52					47,245.12
Health Information Services	1950	Hourly	19.868	20.464	21.078	21.710	22.362	23.033					23.493
Technician		Monthly		3,325.40	3,425.18	3,527.88	3,633.83	3,742.86					3,817.61
		Annual	38,742.60	39,904.80	41,102.10	42,334.50	43,605.90	44,914.35					45,811.35
Early Childhood Educator III	1950	Hourly	20.594	21.006	21.414	21.826							22.262
		Monthly		3,413.48	3,479.78	3,546.73							3,617.58
	1050	Annual	40,158.30	40,961.70	41,757.30	42,560.70							43,410.90
Maintenance Worker	1950	Hourly	20.598	21.044	21.472	21.911							22.349
		Monthly		3,419.65	3,489.20	3,560.54							3,631.71
	1050	Annual	40,166.10	41,035.80	41,870.40	42,726.45	00.074	00.507					43,580.55
Children's Centre Coordinator	1950	Hourly	21.198	21.667	22.133	22.600	23.071	23.537					24.007
		Monthly		3,520.89	3,596.61	3,672.50	3,749.04	3,824.76					3,901.14
Family Combany Western	1050	Annual	41,336.10	42,250.65	43,159.35	44,070.00	44,988.45	45,897.15					46,813.65
Family Services Worker	1950	Hourly	23.387	24.130	24.965	25.861	26.724	27.696					28.250
(Entry level-No degree)		Monthly		3,921.13	4,056.81	4,202.41	4,342.65	4,500.60					4,590.63
		Annual	45,604.65	47,053.50	48,681.75	50,428.95	52,111.80	54,007.20					55,087.50

Employer Classification	Annual Hours		Start	Year 1	Year 2	Year 3	Year 4	Year 5	Year 6	Year 7	Year 8	Year 9	Year 20
Parole & Probation Officer	1950	Hourly	23.387	24.130	24.965	25.861	26.724	27.696					28.250
(Entry level-No degree)		Monthly	3,800.39	3,921.13	4,056.81	4,202.41	4,342.65	4,500.60					4,590.63
		Annual	45,604.65	47,053.50	48,681.75	50,428.95	52,111.80	54,007.20					55,087.50
Social Worker	1950	Hourly	23.387	24.130	24.965	25.861	26.724	27.696					28.250
(Entry level-No degree)		Monthly	3,800.39	3,921.13	4,056.81	4,202.41	4,342.65	4,500.60					4,590.63
. , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,		Annual	45,604.65	47,053.50	48,681.75	50,428.95	52,111.80	54,007.20					55,087.50
Family Services Worker	1950	Hourly	24.965	25.861	26.724	27.696	28.652	29.697					30.291
(5 to 7 yrs ExpNo degree)		Monthly	4,056.81	4,202.41	4,342.65	4,500.60	4,655.95	4,825.76					4,922.29
		Annual	48,681.75	50,428.95	52,111.80	54,007.20	55,871.40	57,909.15					59,067.45
Parole & Probation Officer	1950	Hourly	24.965	25.861	26.724	27.696	28.652	29.697					30.291
(5 to 7 yrs ExpNo degree)		Monthly	4,056.81	4,202.41	4,342.65	4,500.60	4,655.95	4,825.76					4,922.29
		Annual	48,681.75	50,428.95	52,111.80	54,007.20	55,871.40	57,909.15					59,067.45
Social Worker	1950	Hourly	24.965	25.861	26.724	27.696	28.652	29.697					30.291
(5 to 7 yrs ExpNo degree)		Monthly	4,056.81	4,202.41	4,342.65	4,500.60	4,655.95	4,825.76					4,922.29
, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,		Annual	48,681.75	50,428.95	52,111.80	54,007.20	55,871.40	57,909.15					59,067.45
Family Services Worker	1950	Hourly	26.724	27.696	28.652	29.697	30.821	31.957	33.124	34.429			35.118
(+7 yrs Exp No Degree)		Monthly	4,342.65	4,500.60	4,655.95	4,825.76	5,008.41	5,193.01	5,382.65	5,594.71			5,706.68
. ,		Annual	52,111.80	54,007.20	55,871.40	57,909.15	60,100.95	62,316.15	64,591.80	67,136.55			68,480.10
Parole & Probation Officer	1950	Hourly	26.724	27.696	28.652	29.697	30.821	31.957	33.124	34.429			35.118
(+7 yrs ExpNo Degree)		Monthly	4,342.65	4,500.60	4,655.95	4,825.76	5,008.41	5,193.01	5,382.65	5,594.71			5,706.68
		Annual	52,111.80	54,007.20	55,871.40	57,909.15	60,100.95	62,316.15	64,591.80	67,136.55			68,480.10
Social Worker	1950	Hourly	26.724	27.696	28.652	29.697	30.821	31.957	33.124	34.429			35.118
(+7 yrs ExpNo degree)		Monthly	4,342.65	4,500.60	4,655.95	4,825.76	5,008.41	5,193.01	5,382.65	5,594.71			5,706.68
. ,		Annual	52,111.80	54,007.20	55,871.40	57,909.15	60,100.95	62,316.15	64,591.80	67,136.55			68,480.10
Parole and Probation Officer	1950	Hourly	28.212	29.242	30.242	31.366	32.504	33.702	34.945	36.327	37.721	39.162	39.946
(Degree)		Monthly	4,584.45	4,751.83	4,914.33	5,096.98	5,281.90	5,476.58	5,678.56	5,903.14	6,129.66	6,363.83	6,491.23
		Annual	55,013.40	57,021.90	58,971.90	61,163.70	63,382.80	65,718.90	68,142.75	70,837.65	73,555.95	76,365.90	77,894.70
Maintenance Trades Person	1950	Hourly	29.367	30.441	31.565	32.788		•	•	•	•	•	33.444
		Monthly	4,772.14	4,946.66	5,129.31	5,328.05							5,434.65
		,	57,265.65	59,359.95	61,551.75	63,936.60							65,215.80
Capital Projects / Facility	1950	Hourly	33.720	34.732	35.774	36.848	37.952	39.091					39.873
Coordinator		Monthly	5,479.50	5,643.95	5,813.28	5,987.80	6,167.20	6,352.29					6,479.36
		Annual	65,754.00	67,727.40	69,759.30	71,853.60	74,006.40	76,227.45					77,752.35

Effective April 1, 2016 (2%)

Employer Classification ¹	Annual Hours		Start	Year 1	Year 2	Year 3	Year 4	Year 5	Year 6	Year 7	Year 8	Year 9	Year 20
Pharmacy Technician	2080	Hourly Monthly Annual					To be determined.						
Technician - Paramedic	2080	Hourly Monthly Annual					To be de	termined.					
Technician - Intermediate Paramedic	2080	Hourly Monthly Annual					To be de	termined.					
Social Worker (Degree)	1950	Hourly Monthly Annual					To be determined.						
Family Services Worker (Degree)	1950	Hourly Monthly Annual			To be determined.								
Community Wellness Worker (Degree)	1950	Hourly Monthly Annual					To be de	termined.					

¹ Subject to the negotiated settlement at the MAHCP Professional/Technical Central Table.